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ABUSE OF THE MEDICARE HOME HEALTH 
PROGRAM 

TUESDAY, AUGUST 28, 1979 

U.S. SENATE, 
SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON AGING, 

Miami, Fla. 
The committee met, pursuant to notice, at 10:15 a.m., in the 

Dade County Courthouse, Miami, Fla., Senator Lawton Chiles, 
chairman, presiding. 

Present: Senator Chiles. 
Also present: E. Bentley Lipscomb, staff director; Kathleen M. 

Deignan and Helena Sims, professional staff members; Theresa M. 
Forster, financial clerk; and Sam Deramo, General Accounting 
Office. 

OPENING STATEMENT BY SENATOR LAWTON CHILES, 
CHAIRMAN 

Senator CHILES. Good morning. This morning's hearing is one I 
really wish we didn't have to hold. More than 3 years ago I held a 
hearing right here in Miami, right in this room, on the same 
subject-the efficiency of the medicare program in disbursing funds 
to home health agencies. 

I said then that I fully supported the concept of home health 
care-that I believed care in the home was a valuable and needed 
service. I am even more convinced of that today. I also said then 
that I coudn't understand how the Congress could continue to 
encourage the development of home health programs while there 
were so many inefficiencies in the program and so many examples 
of outright abuse of the taxpayer's dollar. 

We saw a rapid rise in the number of "medicare only" home 
health agencies here in Florida. 

We saw medicare paying one home health agency $14 for a 
nurse's visit and paying another home health agency anywhere 
from two and a half to three times that amount for the identical 
visit. 

We saw medicare being billed for parties, gifts, trips, high sala­
ries and luxurious fringe benefits, and franchise fees. 

It certainly was not the congressional intent that medicare be 
used to create a lucrative situation for enterprising businessmen 
and it was not our intent that the taxpayer's dollar be used for 
expenses totally unrelated to patient care. 
,~ I had hQped then, 3 years ago, that those hearings and others we 
have had in Washington would quickly result in much nee'ded 
program changes. I am not able to come back to Miami today and 
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tell you that everything is working all right and that we can now 
take the next steps and expand this kind of care to more of those 
in need. Instead we are here to find out why 11 years after the 
beginning of thi~ program we are still hearing about the same old 
problems. . 

We have more than 130 medicare certified home health agen~Ies 
in Florida. Many of them, however, ~erve the sa.me people, locat~ng 
in heavily populated areas) competmg for patIe?ts and spendmg 
more on patient solicitation than on actual patIent care. In con­
trast, there are other areas of the State where there are no home 
health agencies. . . 

It becomes disturbingly clear that this same k.ind of prohferatlOn 
of home health agencies is occurring now in other areas of the 
country. I am also disturbed when I fi~d that s?me people. w~o 
have clearly been ripping off the medlCare syscem are stIll I.n 
business. That says a lot to anyone who wants to repeat thIS 
success in other areas and it makes me wonder about the adequacy 
of our prosecution efforts. This committee, for example, has bee? 
dealing with a case in California since early 1975 and that case IS 
still not resolved. . . 

What can I think when I see medicare cost reports WIth WIde 
discrepancies in home health costs per visit? 

'When I hear of very high administrative. fees? . 
And when we find home health agencIes refusmg to serve pa­

tients unless they can get quick, in-and-out visits as a way of 
keeping their rei~bursem~nt leyels up? 

Since our Flonda hearmgs m early 1~76, Congress ?a~ take? 
additional actions. A new law, the medIcare and medlCaid antI­
fraud and abuse amendments, was passed to provide .the Govern­
ment with additional tools to detect and deter abUSIve payment 
practices in the medicare program, including .home h~~lth. . 

I introduced a bill early this year to reqUlre specIfIc cost gUlde­
lines for certain home health administrative costs-;-such .as s~la­
ries contract fees and fringe benefits-and to reqUlre deSIgnatIOn 
of r~gional home health interm~diaries to serve ~o?1e health only. 
lVlOre recently I introduced a blll to authonze clvll money penal­
ties for home health and other medicare providers who intentional­
ly abuse the medicare program. I hope that this bill is gO.ing to 
afford some relief because where we cannot get prosecut~on or 
where that takes so long, I believe if we hit the abusers m the 
pocketbook and do it quickly it might h~lp t~ clear ~p the ab~ses. 

There is no doubt that home health IS stIll growmg. MedIcare 
payments to home health agencies next ye~r will .total $849 mil­
lion. This is almost double the amount medIcare WIll pay to nurs­
ing homes-$488 million-and double the amount paId for home 
health in 1977-$457 million. .. 

If this increase in payments directly represented an mcrease m 
the number of elderly persons in need receiving such services, I 
would not be as concerned as I am. If it represents, however, 
continuing and increased patterns of overutilization, padded cos~s 
and hidden profits bSl some providers, then we are very much m 
trouble. That is what we are here today to find out. . 

We will be asking those very questions today of representatIves 
of three major Federal offices which have responsibility under the 
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law f?r administering this program and for elimination of abusive 
practIce~. I have .al~o asked for comment from a representative of 
the Flol'1da AssoClatlOn of Home Health Agencies. 

I know t?at .there ~re home health agencies that are very tired 
of me lookmg mto thIS problem and hope that I would go away. I 
know some of those agencies are doing a creditable job and it is 
always .bad when they have to be lumped with others because the 
?ews ~111 always come out about the tremendous problems that are 
m the mdustry. 

At the same time if we are going to use $800 million plus of the 
taxp~yers money, we. have got to have a program which we are 
runn~ng for the benefIt of the people that it is supposed to be for. I 
am dIstressed as I can be, as I say, that 11 years after the program 
started we are still seeing these abuses and 3 years after we specifi­
cally held hearings on it in Florida. 

Our opening witness today will be Richard Lowe who is a Deputy 
Inspector Ge~eral of .the U.S. pepartment of Health, Education, 
a~d Welfare m Washmgton. WIth Mr. Lowe is Arthur Friedman 
DIrector of the Division of Special Assignments. ' 
Deput~ Insp~ctor Ge?eral Lowe, we are delighted to have you as 

our openmg WItness thIS morning. 

STATEMENT OF RICHARD B. LOWE III, DEPUTY INSPECTOR 
GENERAL, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND 
WELFARE, WASHINGTON, D.C., ACCOMPANIED BY ARTHUR 
FRIEDMAN, DIRECTOR, DIVISION OF SPECIAL ASSIGNMENTS 
Mr: LOWE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

. It .IS a pleasu~e to have this opportunity to participate in this 
mqulry and to dISC~SS with you abusive and fraudulent practices in 
the hom~ he~lth mdustry, as well as the role of the Inspector 
General m thIS field. 

Many of the a.buses which will be discussed today have been 
kno~n for some tr~ne. Most of them came to light as a result of the 
ea~her 1976 he~rmgs on home health chaired by you, Senator 
ChIles. ~he contmued existence of these self same abuses has been 
substa~tIate~ by the. v~lidat.ion functions conducted by the Health 
Car~ Fman~mg A:dm~mstratlOn-HCFA-the inquiries made by the 
audIt and mvestIgatIye staff of the Inspector General and, most 
GAQtly, by the audIt work of the General Accounting Office-

Frankly, we at HEW have not done all that we could have to 
addres~ these pr?blems and to correct the defects in the system. I 
~ec~gmze our faIlures, Mr. 9hairman, and I do not come here to 
JustIfy the?l: Rather, I feel It would be worthwhile to discuss the 
recent actiVIty of the Inspector General and brief this committee 
?n th~ he~dway the OIG is making in this area. I shall talk about 
mvestIgatlOns ~nd prosecutions. Additionally, I think it would be 
~seful t~ descrIbe .to you the obstacles which we have encountered 
II?- pursumg these mvestigations. We have profited from these expe­
l'1ences, and the lessons learned will help frame future endeavors 

As you know, M~. Ch~irman, the Office of the Inspector Generai 
commenced ~peratlOns m March 1977. Initially, there was a core 
group .of audItors an~ a small staff of criminal investigators. Since 
that tIme, we have mcreased those staffs to a level that has en-
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abled us to attack our current workload while at the same t~me 
allowing us the ability to direct small cadres of talented professIOn­
als toward new fraud and abuse initiatives and to address problems 
of systems design. . 

In this respect, we have just added ~ new legal. and pr?s~~utIve 
dimension to our investigative staff. ThIs new tool IS the DIvISIOn of 
Special Assignments, directed by Arthur. Friedman, a former 
member of the staff of New York State SpeCIal Prosecutor Charles 
J. Hynes. Mr. Friedman, in collaboration 'Yith -q-.s. Attorney ~ack 
Eskenazi is currently directing one of our Investigative efforts Into 
Florida home health agencies. I will elaborate on this sh~r~l~. 

Since its inception the Office of the Inspector General has InIti­
ated investigations involving approximately 43 home health agen­
cies. Four cases have resulted in the lodging of criminal charges, 
with six convictions having already been obtaIned. Two of those 
convictions one of which was in Florida, culminatedi11 jail sen­
tences for the defendants. Presently, three investigations are before 
the grand jury. . ... . 

A key factor in our future fraud and abuse activItIes IS our audIt 
staff. We too often speak of investigations without l?aying du~ 
respect to the integral and important work of t~e audItors. OrdI­
narily our audit staff is not directly involved In the day-to-d!ly 
auditing of home health agencies, or a~y. o.ther healtl?- car~ provld­
ers for that matter. That is the responsIbIlIty of the fIscal mterme­
diaries. Normally our OIG auditors review the procedur(~s a~d 
practices of the intermediaries, and their audits, as well as theIr 
settlement of provider cost reports.. . 

In special situations, however, our a~dItors do perform provIde:r 
audits. The most notable of this work In the home hea~th field IS 
the audit of the California operation of Flora Souza. ThIS case has 
been referred to the Department of Justice for grand jury presenta­
tion and we are continuing our audit efforts in support of the 
grand jury investigation. 

To be sure our resources are insufficient and inadequate to cope 
with the evJr burgeoning problems in the health care field, but 
with our full complement of auditors and investigators, our new 
initiatives, our new prosecutive dimension, program knowled~e and 
expertise from HCFA, and help from the Department of JustIce, we 
feel we will better those efforts. 

I would now like to relate to you some of the problems in home 
health from our viewpoint. 

Several abuses concern problems that we may call program defi­
ciencies. In this category we have the reimbursement system In 
general and, more specifically, the difficult~ of the Government 
collecting overpayments from nonprofit provIders. Ther~ are also 
the tremendous discrepancies we find between the operatIOnal costs 
of similar agencies providing similar services. . 

Second there is a category that goes beyond system abuse. ThIs 
is illustr~ted by a scheme prevalent in institutional care ~hereby 
the provider seeks to circumvent medicare laws and regulatIOns by 
establishing related entities which ?stensibly supp~y such servi~es 
'as accounting and technical c~msultIng to the p~ov~d~r. EmplOYIng 
deception and misrepresentatIOn, unscrupulous IndIvIduals employ 
this device to defraud the medicare system of needed resources. I 
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say defraud because the true non-arm's length relationship be­
tween the provider and the entity supplying the service is dis­
guised, thereby increasing' the reimbursement to the provider. 

It is also fraud to wilfully include personal nonpatient related 
expenses in the cost report. It is' against this fraudulent activity 
that we are directing our most concerned efforts and substantial 
resources. There is a difference, however, Mr. Chairman, in de­
scribing fraudulent criminal conduct and proving it in a court of 
law. 

Inquiries into the financial operation of home health agencies 
are classical white collar crime investigations; they are difficult to 
develop and difficult to prosecute. 

Traditionally, the criminal justice system has not found a satis­
factory way to deal with the white collar defendant. His schemes 
are complex, the investigation is costly, long, and tedious and, if 
convicted, he rarely gets a jail sentence. The public pressure has 
been to apprehend and prosecute the murderer, the drug dealer, 
the bank robber, and the mugger. 

Most of the time no dispute exists as to what the facts are. The 
key to a successful prosecution is the proof of criminal intent; in 
other words,. to show that the defendant had larceny in his heart. 
When the wItnesses who possess the knowledge to pinpoint intent 
iJ?- these c~ses .are in~iders-insiders who usually have strong finan­
cIa~ or soc~allInks WIth the defendant-necessary proof is practical­
ly ~I?possible. to uncover. How~ver, ~ometimes this insider greed 
faCIlItates whIte-collar prosecutIOn. SInce there are usually multi­
ple parties, rifts between the culprits occur and eventually some­
one turns to the authorities, but we cannot depend on these flukes 
of human nature. 

At all levels of government we must take an active role in 
ferreting out the wrongdoers. Our efforts in this regard have been 
encouraging. The Department of Justice has also taken a lead role 
in directing more attention to white collar crime. They have been 
most receptive to our prosecution efforts and we look forward to 
very positive r€~mlts. 

A silent accomplice to the financial abuser and ultimate perpe­
trator of fraud is the laxity in the writing, interpretation, and 
enforcement of regulations. HEW programs, as envisioned by the 
Congress, and as pointed out by you, Mr. Chairman were not 
directed toward helping profiteers but at providing ~ervices to 
people. 

What has happened, however, is that we have tried to patch 
holes in the regulations that are often loosely constructed and 
afford insufficient guidance for effective monitoring. What has ac­
tually been created is a vehicle within which fraud and abuse can 
flourish. The result is a prosecutor's nightmare and an interme­
diary's frustration. A prime example is the regulatory maze that 
att~mpts to set out all of the details necessary to carry out the 
baSIC rule that only reasonable costs will be reimbursed. 
. Eyer~ discussion of the fraudulent or abusive problems with our 
InstitutIOnal health system commences with a statement about our 
payment mechanism which allows for reimbursement based on 
reasonable cost. Without discussing the pros and cons it can cer­
tainly be argued that, ~t a minimum, this system does' not provide 
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an incentive for holding down costs. The term reasonable cost itself 
is obviously open to various interpretations. At a maximum, it is 
an open invitation for intentional abuse. . 

The argument is often made that an intermediary must demon­
strate that a cost is unreasonable. Obviously, that is not an easy 
task, particularly in light of the appeals process whereby the Fed­
eral Government must pay for the provider's attorney's fees, in­
cluding appeals costs. While I am not ready to make a formal 
recommendation, I want to assure you that we are· looking into 
possible improvements. One is to place the burden of proof for 
reasonable costs on the provider. Another is to establish a cutoff 
point where the Government is no longer required to pay for legal 
expenses. I do not want to dwell on these because they are quite 
controversial and these are substantive arguments that must be 
considered. However, we do see these as possible alternatives to 
help hold down medical costs and at the same time assisting the 
intermediaries with their jobs. 

Until recently the intermediaries, seeking to run a cost-effective 
operation, focused their audits on large institutional providers such 
as hospitals where recovery potential is much higher. Recently this 
has been changed to some extent with the reprograming of audit 
funds toward home health agencies. 

Keeping what I have just stated in mind, I want to briefly 
mention the magnitude of the problem. Home health expenses 
account for a very small, but increasing portion, of the total medi­
care budget. In 1976, home health represented only 1.6 percent; by 
1978 it jumped to 2.5 percent. To talk in dollars, in 1978 this 
amounted to $607 million out of $24 billion. The figures indicate 
that this component is rising faster than the overall inflation of 
program costs. One can assume that as the amount of reimburse­
ment rises, so does the magnitude of uncorrected program abuses. 

I do not suggest that $607 million is an insignificant figure or 
that it does not deserve substantial investigative attention. How­
ever, as with all agencies, the Office of Inspector General has 
limited resources and the relative amount of Federal dollars in­
volved enters into decisions of resource allocations. Even then it 
should be pointed out and noted that approximately 50 percent of 
our present investigative case load, or 227 cases, do deal with 
health care reimbursement. 

I now want to summarize our present activities, please, Mr. 
Chairman. 

In May of this year the Inspector General launched Project 
Integrity III which is a major investigative and audit initiative 
dealing with three classes of institutional health care providers­
nursing homes, hospitals, and home health agencies. As such, it 
follows the earlier efforts of Proje~t Integrity I and II. Home health 
agencies are the focus of the first phase of this initiative. These 
hearings have, quite frankly, caused us to accelerate our efforts 
and a three-pronged attack has been launched. 

First of all, we, in cooperation with the Department of Justice, 
have deployed significant resources to come to grips with the most 
meritorious cases in Florida. Based on the experience we gain, we 
will then channel our future efforts toward problems in California, 
Texas, Louisiana, Illinois, Puerto Rico, and New York. 
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Under my direc~ sup~r.vision, all open cases have been evaluated. 
To ~ate, we haye IdentifIed four cases with little or no prosecutive 
~ent. T?ese wIll be referred to HCFA for appropriate administra­
tIOn actlOn. I personally, as well as members of my staff have 
consul.ted.with Mr. ~ack.Eskenazi, the P:S. attorney for the South­
e.rn DIstnct of ~l0.nda, m order to facIhtate the possible prosecu­
tion of the !emammg cases. We have also met in Washington with 
representatives of th~ Depart?lent of. Justice. The Department is 
awar~ of .our present mterest m home health and it has assured us 
that It ~Ill su~ply, subject to their own manpower limitations, the 
prosecutive assIstance needed. 

The present .Flo.ri~a effort involves three individual initiatives 
and nearly 30 mdivIdua~ hO?le he~lth agencies, comprising about 
?ne-q~art~r of all agenCIes m Flonda. Almost all of those under 
mvestIgatIOn . are the ~o-called n0!lprofit 100 percenters-those 
almost exclusIvely catarmg to a medIcare clientele. 

One of these initiatives involves 01 investigators working with 
the Department of Justice on a group of cases based on evidence 
gather.ed by the ~ffice ,of hl.vestigations a.nd Office of Program 
Integnty. The cas~ IS presently be.fore a Flonda grand jury. 

The .Inspe9tor General has assIgned another team comprised of 
t~ree mvestIgators and two auditors to support a second effort 
dIrected by the U.~. attorney for .the Southern District of Florida. 

We have also assI~ned an expenenced trial attorney, two investi­
gator~, and two ~u~Itors to a third force which is working under 
the dIrect su~ervisIOn of the Director, Division of Special Assign­
ments, Mr. Fnedman. 

Our a';Idit st.aff ~s likewise looking beyond the immediate concern 
for the mvestIgatIve aspects of Project Integrity III. We have al­
r~ady reprogramed addit~onal ~ud!t time in our' 19,80 work plan to 
~Ive ~ome health agenCIes prIOnty attention. These audits will 
mvestIgate the ~oot. causes that allow abuses to occur. They will 
focus on determmatIOns as to whether or not medicare cost reim­
bursement procedures and guidelines adequately assure that only 
proper and reasonable paym€Jl~ts are bei~g ~ade. In particular, 
becau~e we know problems eXIst, emphasIs wIll be given to the 
prol?netar~ and ~he l?rivate nonpr?fit agencies. Matters for special 
audIt consideratlOn mclude salanes and fringe benefits, startup 
and consultant costs, fees for accounting and computer services 
space costs,. managem~nt agreements and double charging of costs: 

I have tne~ to outlme for you, Mr. Chairman, some of the key 
factors affectmg the home health agency prosecution. My intuition 
tells me that these problems are pervasive. When I came to HEW 
several m~nths. ago, I looked forward. to using my skills as a pros­
ecutor to Iden.~Ify the. fraud and abuse which steals money from 
vuln~rable SOCIal. ~ervICe programs. Since I have been here, I have 
~cqu~red an addItional perspective. I now view our programs not 
Just m terms of what is wr~ng with them but rather what is right 
about them: We have dedICated ourselves to insure that these 
programs wIll offer better and more accessible care while we strive 
to close loopholes that invite abuse 

Th? Office of Inspector General 'has stea~ily grown in 2 V2 years 
to a "well balanced te~m under. the able dIrection of Tom Morris. 
AdmIttedly, we are still beset wIth the typical staff limitations and 
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an ever burgeoning caseload, but we in partnership with the 
Health Care Financing Administration and the Department of Jus­
tice have begun to achieve what appears to be substantial progress 
and I believe that we will be able to come to grips with this 
problem in the future. 

I thank you for this opportunity, Mr. Chairman. 
Senator CHILES. Thank you, Mr. Lowe, for a very comprehensive 

statement. 
You mentioned that the Office of Inspector General in HEW has 

been there now 2% years. I recognize that, and I recognize even 
from the time in which the office was created originally, it didn't 
have the emphasis that it has now. Following the pattern from the 
creation of the Office of Inspector General in the HEW, as you 
know, we have now created Inspectors General in all of the major 
agencies of the Federal Government and I view this as really one 
of the most hopeful aspects that we have entered into in trying to 
deal with fraud and abuse and, more than that, trying to deal with 
the effective use of the taxpayers' dollars to see that that money is 
spent not only fraud free but also efficiently and effectively. The 
duties of the Office of Inspector General then go into much more 
than just fraud and abuse. 

I say it is one of the most hopeful aspects, but at the same time I 
think it is almost the last hope, because if we cannot deal with the 
fraud and abuse, whether it is in the General Services Administra­
tion-and I have had the misfortune to have the oversight capacity 
in our programs there-in HEW, or in grain in Agriculture, or in 
food stamps, or anything else where we are losing so much of our 
credibility with the American public and with the taxpayers be­
cause we have not been able to run these programs so that we are 
not ripped off all the time and also so that they are run effectively 
and efficiently. So I think we are dealing with the last great hope 
and that we have got to make it work. 

You mentioned resources. During the budget markup in the 
HEW appropriation bill, which I assume the President has now 
signed, we finished the conference report. Maybe we are still hung 
up on the abortion question, I guess we are. We never finished that 
question. We finished all the bill except that, I think. We have put 
in additional money. 

Senator Eagleton and I sponsored a bill on the Senate side for 
additional money for the Office of Inspector General. If you or the 
Inspector General tell me you need so many more slots to be able 
to deal with this probJ.em, we will get you the money because I 
think we have got to have the resources if we are going to have a 
credibility in the program. 

N ow I recognize that this is a small part of the overall budget of 
HEW and a small part of the overall problems that you all have to 
oversee and maybe right now you are putting a great deal of 
resources there but at the same time, as you pointed out in your 
statement, when you had these problems surfacing in 1976 and 
1977 in committee hearings that I held and also in committee 
hearings that other people held on the House side as well, and we 
see the same kinds of problems continuing while a program that 
starts off in small dollars is beginning to double and you raised the 
figure of $600 some million in 1978-1 cited the figure of $840 
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million in 1979 so we are . db' 
1977 to 1979 It . . t seeI~g a ou lmg of that program from 

We '1 If~ gO.mg 0 contmue to grow that way 
are on y mdmg some States ju t b . . . 

area. As we try to b;oaden ou h 1 s egmmng to go into the 
ices and home services and w r Woe rang~ of. home health serv­
to come up with a unified i are ~ow pushmg the administration 
services for our aD'ing "0 ulaf an 0 . how we r~ally develop these 
billions of dollar; andP if willlObn, thIS pro~ram IS g?ing to ;run into 
geometric rate right now and t~ hery .iUlCkly. It .IS gI'OWI~g at a 
the abuses and th 1 ave ~ . grow whIle we stIll have 
are taking' are pyr:~fJfn:, ~~~t i~Ys~~l1~~g °trhthe dol~ars that we 
to be very concerned with. ' e mg at I thmk we have 

I am delighted to see the stre th t 
function of your office On the S 5S t ~ d you place on the audit 
~ith the big Inspector' General b~lla t~ 81 e, when .we were dealing 
Cles, we named the title AUd't' ~ ore covermg all the agen­
changed a little bit in the c ~ or an b nspector General. That 
think, can set up the procedu~e~ ~h~~:b ut the audit function, I 
the fraud early on and not h 't th / you can prevent some of 
catch it after it OCcurs. ave 1 a you are around trying to 

So I think the audit functi . t . 
office. It also is tremendously ~~~~rtr:~~ndoH~~Amportapt i,n our 
for us to see that the intermediaries h or to deswn I~ and 
that they are using in monitorI'ng th ave t~e proper audIt cnteria 

GAO'd . e agencIes 
1 entIfied some 5 organizatio h' h' . 

lishin~ or providing assistance to at l~!s~ 7Sc d 'ffisslstetdhwit~ estab­
agencIes. Do you have an . d th 1 eren orne health 
related to each other? yevI ence at those organizations are all 

Mr. LOWE. There are indication M Ch' 
ent juncture we don't have any ha~d £. r. t t alrmban, b~t at. the pres-

Senator CHILES D 1 k ac s 0 su stantIate It. 
relationship there? 0 you 00 to determine whether there is a 

Mr. LOWE. Mr. Chairman with t 
some cases, as I said--' respec to your first question, 

Senator CHXLES. I am not al:lkin t 
that is under prosecution. " g you 0 speak of any specific case 

Mr. LOWE. I underst d btl . 
of those very cases a~~ ~nder J,ust ~~nt~.d to point out that some 
grand jury. I apologize for not a mve~ Iga Ion and are before the 

Senator CHILES. I was sa in nswermg the foll?wup question, sir. 
for in determining whethei th~r w~at are the ~hmgs that you look 
effect have a relations~ip with ea~hs O~h~~?nectlOn, whether they in 

Mr. LOWE. The audIt process M Ch' 1 

cost report. It goes into the ow~ersh" t~hman, looks behind the 
at the board of directors the sub Ip 0 e agency. It also looks 
services and costs incl~ding 10n~ractorJ' and other supportive 
charges. We try to'identif th ~a ~n.es an benefits and double 
relationships might exist tr les~ ~hdlvldual~ lr organizations where 
pattern or relationship, we try to foi~~r~ s ength. When we see a 

Senator CHILES Would 1 d e;ffi. 
that you plan to take und:~u pease . esc.nbe i~ detail the efforts 
it relates to the home healtl~ugr P~oJ~ctFmtlegnty III especially as 
man join in. enCles. ee free to let Mr. Fried- j: 
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Mr. LOWE. Project integrity III is a joint effort by HCF~ and .the 
Office of Inspector General. What we have done on the InvestIga­
tive side is to identify those cases, and particularly those cases here 
in Florida which are in need of investigation. A number of these 
cases wer~ referred to us from HCFA. We have identified three 
groupings of cases here in Florida to which we have committed 
three separate investigative teams. HCFA, on the other hand, has 
established a plan of action to identify the problems with the 
system that allow these abuses to oc.cur, a~ w~ll, a~ devoting addi­
tional resources. As problems on the InvestIgatIve sIde are revealed 
that can help HCFA we will pass that information on to HCFA. 
HCFA passes its information on to us. So it is a joint effort, to 
attack not just the criminal aspects, but more importantly, what 
we feel are the system's problems, which we feel that HCFA will be 
able to come to grips with. 

Senator CHILES. What are the manpower limitations you spoke of 
in the Justice Department, as you see them, as they relat~ to 
white-collar prosecution? 

Mr. LOWE. Mr. Eskenazi will be testifying this morning, as you 
know, Senator Chiles. I believe that he can address that area better 
than I can. But as a former prosecutor, I can tell you that the area 
of white-collar crime is a difficult area in which to commit re­
sources. It is difficult because the investigations are generally a 
very long and tedious process. When you have a :pr<:>secutor'~ office 
with a small cadre of prosecutors, a small staff, It IS very dIffIcult 
for the U.S. attorney to commit 2 or 3 members out of a staff of say 
10 or 11 to cases that can take anywhere from 6 to 18 months to 
dev~lop. Even t.hen, you cannot be assured of success many times 
because of the problems with the law itself. So it is primarily the 
extent and the length of the investigations, and the total number 
of individual assistant U.S. attorneys that that office may have at a 
particular time. 

Senator CHILES. Do you have an opinion on the bill that I was 
describing as I have introduced to provide for civil penalties as an 
expedited procedure in trying to deal with some of these cases? 

Mr. LOWE. Yes, I do, Mr. Chairman. rrhe civil money penalty bill 
affects many areas of the home health operation and it will obvi­
ously be of value in the gray area below pro'! able criminal fraud. 
One of the problems of the prosecutor is that you may have the 
indications and even the facts but you cannot prove it in a court of 
law and yet you still know tha,t abuses exist. 

The quantum of proof in. a court of law is a very severe one, it is 
proof beyond a reasonable doubt, as I am sure you are well aware, 
Senator. As an administrative hearing, the quantum of proof is 
different. The civil money penalty bill is one in which the quantum 
of proof is not as severe, it's the preponderance of the evidence as 
stated. The bill, however, is not a final solution in and of'itself, 
particularly in home health. We anticipate problems in that area. 
One of the problems that we have with the home health industry is 
with the not-for-profits. When you have a home health agency that 
is not a profitmaking organization, collecting disallowances, much 
less civil money penalties, is like getting blood out of a stone, so to 
speak. 
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Senator CHILES. You have a judgment but there IS no way to 
correct it, all the money is taken out of the salaries. 

Mr. LOWE. Exactly. 
Senator CHILES. That is a very good point. 
Mr. LOWE. We are exploring some possibilities to correct this, but 

we have not come to the point where we are ready to make full 
recommendations. One area we are considering is to back the civil 
money penalty bill to require nonprofits to put up a bond before 
they go into business. Another is to make them personally liable. 
These are areas we are exploring, so that there will be some teeth 
in the bill itself, and will allow the Government to recover. 

What happens when the Government identifies that there have 
been overpayments, or even fraudulent taking of money, but it is a 
not-for-profit organization? It is fine to say you can identify it and 
you owe us this money but if it ,is not a profitmaking organization, 
there is no profit or retained earnings to get that money back from. 
So as you can see, the bill is still not the final solution with respect 
to not-for-profit organizations. 

Senator CHILES. I think you raised a very valid point in regard to 
that. I suggested bond before, and at that time HEW came back 
and said that that would be impossible. I would hope that HEW 
might look at that again, because I think having some kind of 
resources or requiring some kind of resources be there is very 
necessary because the so-called not-for-profits turn out to be very 
profitable for the people that have them and they don't exactly 
meet the concepts of many of our feelings of what was a not-for­
profit like a visiting nursing association or something that was 
sponsored by some kind of a local group. 

Mr. LOWE. Another suggestion, Mr. Chairman, has been to elimi­
nate corporate ownership in home health agencies. One of the 
problems is, for example, if you can prove that the Government has 
been overbilled, or even fraudulently billed by a corporate entity, 
the personal liability of members of the corporation are limited 
only to that amount that they put in, unless you can pierce that 
corporate veil and show that it is just a shell. Of course, this is 
very difficult and it depends on various State laws. 

Senator CHILES. You mentioned this and you mentioned other 
studies. When are we going to see some results from these sugges­
tions? We have been dealing with this 11 years now. Our hearings 
were a long time ago and we are still talking about suggestions. 

Mr. LOWE. I appreciate that, Mr. Chairman. I think one of the 
things that has to be considered, as you pointed out, is that there 
are a number of honest, sound, and dedicated people in the health 
care field. Unfortunately, as in any other area where you have a 
few abuses, a few profiteers so to speak, they make the situation 
bad for everyone. I am sure that the approach that is being taken 
by HEW is not to just go and to make sweeping changes that may 
ultimately cause undue harm to the people in the industry or that 
can produce other problems. 

The intent and the desire is to provide the services and we must 
not get into an area of trying to shore up the holes and then-well, 
how do you say it-to inhibit the delivery of those services. So I 
think it is an approach that is t"aking time, but on the other hand I 
think that the abuses have now been recognized. One of the prob-
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lems that you speak of is 11 years, sir, and that is very true. We 
admit that we have devoted attention to t~is area only recent1:y. 
We have not done it for 11 years, we have Just started to commIt 
our attention and resources. 

I think that you will see great improvement in t~e area. ~t least 
I hope that I don't have to co~e before you agam and smg the 
same song. , 

Senator CHILES. I want to be sure I don t have to come back here 
again either. 

Do you have direct access t? records of home health management 
agencies, the so-called f~anchlsers? . . 

Mr. LOWE. The provIders recelvmg paymen~ :must p~ovlde ade-
quate cost data which can be ve:ified by qualIfIed audlto:S .and, a 
home health agency may be termmated fz:om ~h~ program If It falls 
to supply information on the, accuracy of ItS blllmgs and payment~. 
Obtaining provider records IS usually pro form~. Our problem. IS 
obtaining records of the contractors or the suppbe:s of the I?rovld­
er. We do not have the authority ~nder th~ law to Just walk m and 
ask for their records, as we do wIth provIders. W e can~ of course, 
use our administrative subpena and of course the JustIce Depart-
ment can use the grand jury s':!bpena.. . 

Senator CHILES. So you get It for the provIders but the. franchIs-
ers who are actually the ones that have set up the provIders, you 
actually have to go and subpona those records? 

Mr. LOWE. That is right. Of course there is an appellate process 
where they have the right to move t? quas~ the s?bp~na .. Thus, you 
have that whole time period wherm the mvestIgatIOn IS delayed 
until the appeals are resolved. 

Senator CHILES. Should the medicare law be extended to cover 
access to records of the provider's contractors? . 

Mr. LOWE. It certainly would facilitate ou~ operatIOn. It w?uld 
make it easier for us and it would make it eaSIer to have oversIght. 
There is no question about that. 

Senator CHILES. That is not exactly a new precedent. The Depart-
ment of Defense contracts have a clause stipulating access to sub­
contractors books and the same clause is stipulated in subcontrac­
tors books, that you have access to the prim~, so that .is already a 
provision where we do the bulk of our procurmg. That IS where the 
bulk of our procurement dollars are spent. ., . 

On page 8 of your statement, you refer. to a laxness m .wrIt~ng 
interpretation and enforcement of regulat~ons. W~o. there IS bemg 
lax? Your office is part of HEW. Are you m a l?osItIOn t? eyaluate 
the performance of the Medicare Bureau or .the mtermedlarIeS who 
actually interpret and carry out the regulatIOn? . .. . 

Mr. LOWE. Well, Mr. Chairman, our key responslbIlIty IS .the 
investigation of fraud and abuse. What we try to do ~ll of the tI~e 
when we recognize a problem in a p~rticular regulat~on.ls to pomt 
out the problem to the administratmg a~ency. Achlevmg regula­
tory change to correct abuses, however, IS not. an easy ta~k. Al­
though a regulation may create some problems m on~ ~rea,. It may 
well be sound in other important aspects of admmlstermg the 
program. We make recommendations and then work with HCFA to 
overcome the problem with the regulations. 
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Senator CHILES. In another place in your statement you say that 
there are 30 individual home health care agencies in Florida that 
are under scrutiny. What can you tell us about your findings 
there? How much money is involved? When can we expect those 
investigations to be resolved? 

Mr. LOWE. The investigations are presently underway. There are 
three groupings. One is presently before the grand jury and two 
others are presently under investigation. I cannot at this stage, Mr. 
Chairman, give you a dollar figure. That will be determined by the 
audit process being conducted by HCF A and the intermediaries, 
concurrent with our investigation. In this connection, however, I 
believe one of the problems, and it is a problem with prosecution 
traditionally, is that the U.S. attorney will look at it from a re­
source point of view. He will ask what it is worth in terms of the 
dollar recovery? I can appreciate that. From our perspective that is 
the only basis upon which the need for investigation and prosecu­
tion should be viewed. As you said earlier, the dollar figure may be 
low today and it may proliferate into a huge amount tomorrow. 

We want to recognize the abuses and attack them whether they 
are caused by system deficiencies or outright fraud. As far as the 
findings from our current cases, sir, I don't mean to beg the ques­
tion, but I also don't think that I can discuss these cases, at this 
stage. 

Senator CHILES. Fine. You have mentioned in your stater':lent 
there are problems existing in the proprietary agencies as well as 
the profit and nonprofit. What type of problems do you see in the 
proprietary agencies? 

Mr. LOWE. The inclusion of nonpatient-related cost, overutiliza­
tion, and excessive administrative overhead, are some examples of 
the problems that exist with both proprietary and private nonpro­
fits. The abuses are similar for the profits and the nonprofits when 
managed by private parties. 

Senator CHILES. How many home health fraud cases have been 
referred to you by the Health Care Financing Administration? Are 
you dependent upon the Health Care Financing Administration 
particularly for referrals, and how many cases have you referred to 
U.S. attorneys for prosecution? 

Mr. LOWE. Well, I don't have that exact figure here this morning, 
Mr. Chairman, but I will be glad to furnish that for the record but 
HCF A refers those cases to us which go beyond the abuse status 
and have indications of criminality. Most of our health care cases 
stem from HCF A referrals. Others have come from the Tampa task 
force, the FBI, insider tips, and beneficiaries. 

Senator CHILES. Can you tell me how many cases the U.S. attor­
neys have declined to prosecute and what the reasons have been 
for that? 

Mr. LOWE. We have declined several, Mr. Chairman. I will fur­
nish the exact number for the record. As I mentioned before, the 
declination by the U.S. attorney can be due to many reasons 
including the prosecutive merit of the case, the dollar recovery: 
and the amount of resources that the particular office may have at 
the particular time. The prospects of success influence a great deal 
the decision of the U.S. attorney to decline to prosecute or to 
accept the case. T~ey also look at the age of a case, how long the 
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particular abuse that you are charging the individual with has 
been in existence. In addition, there is a problem of program 
knowledge. Many of these programs are new and regulations are 
subject to various interpretations. The U.S. attorneys are under 
pressure just like any other prosecutor's office, and they have to 
deal with those cases which have priority in their area. I am sure 
that Mr. Eskenazi will be able to give you a more complete answer, 
SIr. 

Senator CHILES. You were talking about the auditors that you 
have assigned to this effort. How many auditors do you now have 
assigned as opposed to prosecutors, and do your auditors have prior 
experience in home health? 

Mr. LOWE. In the effort in Florida we have, six auditors-two for 
each of the three teams. All of them have experience in home 
health. 

Senator CHILES. Now you mentioned in your statement that Flor­
ida is the focal point right now. 

Mr. LOWE. That is because, as you know, Mr. Chairman, Florida 
has a great concentration of home health agencies. You also have 
here a large concentration of retired people and thus of medicare 
eligibles. That is why we are devoting our efforts here, so that we 
can use the lessons learned to attack the rest of the country. 

Senator CHILES. The point I wish to make, and you did say in 
your statement that you would be moving from here into the other 
States, is that I am not just trying to bring grief on Florida compa­
nies here and that I am not going to be satisfied and I don't think 
the Congress is going to be to just have Florida problems attacked. 
We are talking about an industry that sort of took over here in 
Florida because of that concentration of retired people and certain­
ly we want to see that it operates properly in Florida but we also 
want to see that it operates properly in the rest of the country and 
that all of the companies and organizations that enter into this 
industry are going to be held to the same accountability as we are 
going to try to require those in Florida to be held to. 

Mr. LOWE. I am aware of that, Senator. 
Senator CHILES. You mentioned that the Health Care Financing 

Administration is also conducting audits. Do you have a formal 
agreement with them and has any consideration been given to 
permitting their staff under program integrity to become more 
involved in the actual fraud investigations? In other words, should 
your staff and the Health Care Financing Administration's pro­
gram integrity staff merge? 

Mr. LOWE. Senator, we have a very cooperative working relation­
ship with HCFA. In addition, in project integrity III, we have a 
joint action plan and we also have a memorandum of understand­
ing between the two agencies, with using HCFA staff, their work 
papers, and program knowledge in our investigative effort. 

We do not view combining the two staffs as necessary, now, 
Senator. We feel that the current situation is a more efficient way 
of operating now. HCF A has the oversight responsibility of health 
care providers, whether it be home health agencies, nursing homes, 
or hospitals. 

The current relationship is that HCFA goes in first to validate 
program compliance. When they identify abuse, overutilization, 
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overcost, overbilling, and so forth, which in most instances do not 
amount to criminality, they work through administrative channels 
to correct the problem and make recoveries. When they identify 
that which appears to be criminal fraud, they refer it to us and 
then we take over. 

While there is no need now to combine the two forces, there are 
occasions when we could do much better with more access to some 
of their highly skilled auditors and program specialists. What hap­
pens is that their significant work force develops a workload of 
health cases faster than we can absorb them. Our investigative 
staff covers the full range of HEW programs. But we do not want 
to get in the business of overseeing the programmatic aspects of 
the various programs. That is not a function that the Inspector 
General should assume. HCF A is involved with the programmatic 
aspects and in improving and carrying out the programs. 

Senator CHILES. Can you give me any more specifics about the 
types of abuses that you have under probe in the 30 Florida cases 
that you are talking about? 

Mr. LOWE. In my statement, Senator, I believe that I tcmched on 
some of the prevalent problems that exist, both generally and with 
these ongoing cases. I do not feel that I can be more specific about 
ongoing confidential investigations. 

Senator CHILES. In our earlier hearings we were seeing promo­
tion fees being paid. Is that still a problem that is out there? I am 
trying to find out the kinds of problems that you are seeing. 

Mr. LOWE. That continues to exist. The gambit of costs that have 
been identified in the past are the very objectives of our concern 
now. 

Senator CHILES. So these are not some new abuses that are 
coming about, we are talking about the same kinds of problems 
that existed before? 

Mr. LOWE. The same kinds of problems. The one thing that may 
not have been mentioned back in 1976 were the discharge plan­
ners-those who steer the patients to home health agencies. 

Senator CHILES-. As I understand you have a situation where one 
parent or franchisee will set up a number of providers and then 
each one of them would have some kind of administrative plan-a 
"how to" manual. The cost of each of these manuals is billed to 
HEW as being a separate cost and expense of each one of those 
providers and maybe of the parent, too, where it is only really done 
once and after that time they just change the cover. 

Mr. LOWE. That is in the area of startup costs, yes. That is 
correct. That whole non-arm's-length relationship is involved in the 
development of new home health agencies. 

Senator CHILES. Do you have any idea what we are talking about 
in dollars and cents in these duplicate startup costs? 

Mr. LOWE. I think probably HCFA would be in a better position, 
Senator, to answer that. 

Senator CHILES. I notice that the General Accounting Office 
study was talking about the range of costs of $10,000 per manual. 

Mr. LOWE. What happens is that there is a flat fee for startup 
assistance, including procedure manuals. It is usually around 
$10,000 to $12,000, but sometimes more. Thus, on top of that there 
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is a percentage of the overall yearly take, and this can be quite a 
substantial sum of money. 

These outside contracts are for 25- to 35-year terms. These con­
tracts represent some of the targets of the concern of both HCFA 
and OIG. 

Senator CHILES. I understand you have been in this position some 
7 months. In your statement you have taken a personal responsibil­
ity in this area in the direction of this. Based on the work that you 
are doing then you are going to make some recommendations of 
the changes that you see that need to be made in the regulations 
and in the law and in the way the program is administered, is that 
correct? 

Mr. LOWE. Yes, sir. In addition, Mr. Chairman, I think it would 
be important for you to know of a letter from the Secretary to 
Senator Williams S. Cohen in regard to HEW's home health report 
that was rejected by the Congress because it failed to make the 
appropriate recommendations that were asked for. 

Senator CHILES. I have heard something about that report. 
Mr. LOWE. Senator Cohen had written a letter to the Secretary 

inquiring about the status of that, and I think that you would be 
interested in this and her response. It reads: 

To the Honorable William S. Cohen. 
Thank you for your letter of August 1 concerning the Department's report on 

home health and other in-home services. You enclosed a copy of Senate Resolution 
169 which directs the Department to resubmit the report. Although I have not had 
the time to familiarize myself with the report that was submitted to the Congress, I 
have asked the Administrator of the Health Care Financing Administration and the 
Assistant Secretary for Planning and Evaluation for a thorough briefing on the 
report and on the home health care policy. Once I have received their report I will 
be able to tell you what additional information we can provide and within what 
time frame. I intend to be as responsive as possible to the Congress' desire in this 
important area. 

Sincerely yours, 
PATRICIA ROBERTS HARRIS. 

We intend to make the recommendations and improvements in 
this area that has been asked for by the Congress. 

Senator CHILES. I thank you for that. Because that has been 
brought up, maybe we should say that this is a report that the 
Congress asked HEW to make giving the Congress some policy 
recommendations as to what directions we should be taking in 
home health and in the home care area trying to work toward 
some kind of a coordinated policy where we would really be provid­
ing our elderly citizens with an ability to be able to remain in the 
home as long as they possibly could and not be shunted off to 
nursing homes or hospitals prior to the time that that would be 
necessary. 

After the Department had had this request for a long time, we 
called for a report. After a considerably longer period than a year 
\ve got back what was to be a report which was simply sort of a 
restatement of the problems which we all knew existed. The Con­
gress did reject the report as inadequate, something that I under­
stand has only been done rarely since the War Between the States, 
and told HEW that we really meant what we said, that we wanted 
the policy recommendations in spite of the fact there are going to 
be some large costs and we recognize that. 
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We may not be able to start all of them right away but still 
Congress needed to know everything that the administration had, 
the experience they had, and their knowhow as to what directions 
that we should take. I am delighted to hear that Secretary Harris 
has said that that report is going to be forthcoming. 

Now to expand on that just a little, you will be making some 
recommendations to the Department based on your experience and 
your personal direction of this. I would like to have a copy of the 
recommendations so that I can evaluate them. I think our commit­
tee would like to have those. 

Mr. LOWE. Yes, sir. 
Senator CHILES. I thank you very much for your attendance 

today and also Mr. Friedman. We look forward to working with 
you in this area. 

Mr. LOWE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
[Subsequent to the hearing, Senator Chiles submitted a list of 

questions to Mr. Lowe. Those questions, with Mr. Lowe's response, 
follows:] 

Question. In your statement, you talk about a category of program deficiencies 
that goes beyond system abuse. You mention a scheme prevalent in institutional 
care whereby providers seek to circumvent the medicare laws by establishing relat­
ed entities which ostensibly supply such services as accounting and technical con­
sulting to the provider. You go on to say, in part, that if this relationship is 
disguised and if the parties employ deception and misrepresentation, it is fraud. 
What are some of the deceptions and misrepresentations? How widespread are these 
practices? Have you documented them? 

Response. What we have found is just a variation to the basic medicare fraud 
scheme: Occasionally, an individual or group of individuals who supply goods or 
services to medicare providers-in this case home health agencies-may themselves 
be instrumental in the creation of the agencies or the converse. Because of the 
IInon-arms length" relationship between the supplier and agency, a problem is 
created when the agency pays for goods and services at a price fixed by the supplier. 
Of course, this price is then passed along to medicare. 

Since the supplier and the provider agency are related by common ownership or 
control, regulations provide that medicare pay for only the cost incurred by the 
supplier or the charge to the agency, whichever is lower. When t.he agency fails to 
disclose the true nature of the relationship, medicare will pay for the goods or 
services at the invoiced price. Thus, the owner is in the position of being both the 
buyer and seller of a product that the Government will pay for in the end. 

We say it is fraud if the parties employ deception and misrepresentation to hide 
this relationship. Although we have not completed Qur investigation into the magni­
tude of the problem, these problems exist in California, Texas, Louisiana, Illinois, 
New York, and Puerto Rico. When we finish our full-scale effort in Florida, we will 
redirect our resources to those other localities. 

Question. On page 8, you refer to IIlaxness i.n writing, interpretation and enforce­
ment of regulations." Who is being lax? Your office is part of HEW. Are you in a 
position to evaluate the performance of the Medicare Bureau? Or the intermediar­
ies, who actually interpret and carry out the regUlations? 

Response. The initial writing of regulations are directed toward assuring that 
good care is provided. Oftentimes the creation process does not perceive or conceptu­
alize the financial manipulations that may be worked into or around the intent of 
the system. Later on, in an attempt to correct earlier shortcomings, a IIpatching 
process" is grafted onto the system. Since these new rules are aimed at specific 
abuses, the sharp manipulator merely shifts his schemes. What is created then is a 
system of regulations dealing with existing situations-a reaction-rather than a 
comprehensive set of guidelines. In this regard, we believe a stronger joint effort is 
needed by both HCF A and the intermediaries. When an indication of a problem 
surfaces, HCFA and the intermediary should join forces to stop it. This may take 
the form of new policies, intermediary letters, new regulations, or even recommen­
dations for legislative changes. The important thing is that it be a mutual and 
concentrated effort. The intermediaries are the first to see problems arising. When 
the guidelines are insufficient, they have a responsibility to go to HCFA. In turn, 
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. d g t the deficiencies t the intermediary an e t f the 
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~~f~b;;se~~ ti~\~le~~~~e~. i~re~~~~ia~~ t~tfh~Wr~vi~~t Re:~u~~e~~~tSBoard, it is 
the provider .app,eals t~~s~biiH~t~~rove that the cost is ~nreasd~~~;;;enting that a 
the intermedIary t

S 
rds1he existing principle of law from slmp~re in terms of compet-

We want to ex en denting that costs are reason a If th ovider has 
cost has been inc~rr7d to oc.um and necessary for patient care. e PI' this is the 
itive pricin

g
t f~~ slt~:rc~~r;h~~ld not be reimburs~d. Cldf:~ho~~~~: {he medicare 

no doc urn en a lOn, tl if there is a challenge 0 a 'd is a 100 percenter. 
cost of appeal~. 9~1{f~ {he provider's appeal wren lhf p~oob~fouslY if the provid-

~~r~,fi~~I::'des high prl;~d el~~ti~~d o~c:;:~~ ~"O'1:tsa (: is not ~r~h~:g:r:a~o~l 
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process. or. placmg a 0 attorne 's fees incurred 
beneficIal'les'b . terested in a recent court ca~e that foUndyment o~ fraud are not 
to Yd~f.n':la~ p~~~ider against c»arg';;'r~~e~:'~~i~:::;P;atien!". The court ~o~h~ 
reasona~l~ eX~li~e~~~llb~d~~l;t:d if the ptublih ilie:re th~qd~f~~d~~l~~e!~ils or that pu flC p lleging fraud or overpaymen , we. 
defense 0 cases ~ ttl d . . .' bpenas (sectIOn 
loses or the case IS se e. th 'ty to issue admInIstrative su .? Have Q~estion. Your office has au hon you issued for home health agencIes. P L 95-505). How many a~e ? 

;~~~n~~u~t~T~d 3:{. p:,b~~ i~~S?~!e~U~~~n~~ml~~~i:':~V~e~'iIW~~~ ~~~a~,o~: 
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ues wn. I' Ived in the mves 19ac H in Flonda equivalent personne are mvo. home health specifically? ow many . 
fraud and abuse? How many m . als and 
How adequate is this leyel? t bl eflects total employment of the professIOn 
. Response. The If<?llot'hmf u~ o;e~ating components of the DIG: support personne m eo. 

EMPLOYMENT OF PROFESSIONAL AND SUPPORT PERSONNEL 

Budgeted positions Employment ceiling Onboard personnel 

25 25 22 Executive management....................................................................... 40 40 1 ~~ 
Health care and systems review........................................................ 229 215 999 

Investigations ................ ·· .. · .... · ........ · .......... · .. · ........ · .............. · ............. ___ .~1.0~4::.3 ___ --.:9:::9~0--_:-:;;;:; 
Audit.................................................................................................. 1.337 1.270 1.227 

Total ................................................................................... .. 
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2 program specialists working on home health agencies. The audit agency will 
increase its commitment to 20 auditors in fiscal year 1980. 

Out of this group-there are six investigators, two attorneys, six auditors, and two 
program specialists working on home health agency cases in Florida. 

We are currently reviewing OUr personnel and budgetary requirements to deal 
with the actual workload after experience of 2 % years. This workload has been 
higher than anticipated and thus resulted in an ever-increasing backlog of cases. We 
have already identified a need for additional personnel to handle the backlog in Our 
current caseload. More importantly, however, is the shortage of personnel to handle 
696 actions which are under preliminary review but for which resources have not yet been considered. 

Question. How many home health fraud cases have been referred to you by 
HCFA? Are you dependent on HCFA for referrals? How many cases have you 
referred to U.S. Attorneys for prosecution? How many cases have the U.S. Attor­
neys declined to prosecute and why? How much of a time lag exists between referral and investigation by DIG and Justice? 

Response. HCFA has referred 27 cases to the Office of Investigations. While Our 
entire caseload is not generated by HCFA, they are the principal SOurce of referrals .. 
Leads from intermediary audits are an excellent basis for referrals. They go to HCFA for the initial compliance review. 

We also get cases from informants who come forward with .information about the 
operation and billing practices of a provider. Such informants may come directly to 
the Office of Investigations, or to the SSA district office, the medicare intermediary, 
HCFA, FBI, the U.S. Attorney, Or members of the Congress. 

Of the 12 home health agency cases formally presented to the U.S. Attorneys, 
three cases have resulted in six convictions, while three cases were declined for lack 
of prosecutive merit. Presently pending with the U.S. Attorney are seven cases at 
various stages in the investigative and prosecutive process. 

Regarding the time lag, a description of the process involved between the initial 
referral of a case and the investigation by DIG and Justice is the best answer I can 
give you right now. We do not have statistics on that type of data now. 

A preliminary inquiry is initiated Upon receipt of an allegation or referral. If the 
allegation appears meritorious, a case will be opened. Investigative and audit re­
sources are then committed to a new case in accordance with a system of priorities. 
Depending upon the number and type of cases in the backlog of a given DIG field 
office (Investigations or Audit), the issues in a home health case will be resolved in 1 
to 3 years by either a prosecution, an administrative recovery of an overpayment or 
by deciding that the allegation is unfounded and closing the case. 

Question. Policy recommendations: Based on your work to date, what recommen_ 
dations have you made to HCFA regarding changes needed in the program reim­
bursement policies? What action has HCFA taken on these suggestions? 

Response. We have not made any formal recommend::!tions yet. We are reviewing 
the entire reimbUrsement structure concurrently with OUi' investigation. Some of 
the things we are looking at are access to suppliers records, requiring management 
to be personally liable for disallowances in the non profits, surety bonds, limiting 
legal payments, and placing the burden of proof for reasonable costs on the provider. 

Senator CHILES. Our next witness is John Kennedy, Acting Direc­
tor of the Bureau of Quality Control, Health Care Financing Ad­
ministratio)l, U.S. Department of Health, Education, and Welfare, Washington, D.C. 

Mr. Kennedy, I understand that your Bureau is responsible for 
all the auditing of the home health care agencies. 

STATEMENT OF JOHN D. KENNEDY, ACTING DIRECTOR, 
BUREAU OF QUALITY CONTROL, HEALTH CARE FINANCING 
ADMINISTRATION, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCA­
TION, AND WELFARE, WASHINGTON, D.C., ACCOMPANIED BY 
DON NICHOLSON AND JOHN JANSAK 

Mr. KENNEDY. Good morning, Mr. Chairman. 
My name is John Kennedy. I am the Acting Director of the 

Bureau of Quality Control within the Health Care Financing Ad­
ministration. I have with me today a member of my staff, Don 
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Nicholson, and John Jansak, representing the Bureau of Oper­
ations within the Health Care Financing Administration. 

We are pleased to be here today to discuss home health service 
provisions under the medicare program and some of the problems 
in the reimbursement of those services. 

I would like to commend you and your committee for your con­
tinuing interest in this area. As you are well aware, there have 
been problems. We feel that progress is being made in addressing 
these problems. Through the hearings and discussions that we have 
with your committee and staff we believe that we can determine 
the most effective and cost efficient ways of dealing with these 
problems. 

Mr. Chairman, people may lose sight of the fact that before 
medicare and medicaid providers of home health services did not 
fit into any uniform model of a home health agency. Before 1966, 
home care was provided chiefly through the patients physicians 
making house calls, through charitably funded visiting nurse asso­
ciations, and public health departments. Other services were large­
ly provided by relatives, neighbors, and church groups. Third-party 
payment for home health services, where available, followed no 
consistent pattern either in terms of benefits or reimbursement 
proceS13es. Consequently, those organizations providing health serv­
ices in the home typically had no great experience or expertise 
regarding cost accounting, cost allocation, or cost reporting. 

With the advent of medicare, we had for the first time a stand­
ardized payment mechanism for basically a kind of service which 
the framers of the legislation intended as a less expensive alterna­
tive to institutional care. 

As mentioned, the experience base that preceded the mid-1960's 
in paying through an insurance mechanism for physician and hos­
pital care waH not available in structuring a reimbursement system 
for home health. Furthermore, in the years since the mid-1960's, 
with home health benefits constituting less than 2 percent of the 
part A medicare dollar, the same attention has not been given in 
developing a home health reimbursement system as was the case 
for other provider types in the medicare program. 

The level of sophistication that was built into the cost reporting 
process for HHA's was influenced by a recognition that those orga­
nizations providing home services did not approach the cost ac­
counting expertise of institutional providers. Experience is showing 
that there appears to be those who are attempting to abuse the 
home health benefit by capitalizing on the absence of cost finding 
and reporting structures, which require a rigorous accounting of 
costs and apportionment methodologies. 

As questionable practices on the part of some home health agen­
cies became more and more apparent, we have found ourselves 
lacking in having all the needed solutions for dealing with these 
problems. Recognizing this, we have begun to focus a good deal of 
attention on home health reimbursement. What we are working to 
accomplish is the development of a total system that will insure 
the appropriateness of home health payments based on reasonable 
costs for services medically required. 

Much of our stepped up activity is specific to Florida. We have 
asked the medicare intermediaries servicing Florida home health 
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agencies to develop audit work plans to intensify fiscal and utiliza­
tion audits. We are providing over $100,000 of additional audit 
money to allow the intermediaries to fulfill these requirements. 
Plans for these intensified audits are nearly complete and actual 
field work will begin shortly. As a result, we expect that question­
able utilization practices as well as questionable fiscal practices 
will be identified. We are asking each of the intermediaries associ­
ated with this project to keep records of the program benefits 
derived from this activity, and based on Florida results, we will 
examine possible other locations to launch similar approaches. 

Based on our own analysis and the feedback received through 
the developed intermediary audit plans, we will focus our review 
activity into two broad areas: Utilization review or questioning the 
appropriateness of home health care being rendered and billed for 
by individual agencies; and detailed audits of recent years cost 
reports. 

Inappropriate utilization.-We are requesting the intermediary 
to have nurses audit provider medical records and make home 
visits to verify that patients are homebound and that services being 
billed are medically required. As a general rule, when medical 
necessity is questionable, we have secured more documentation to 
support the billing but have seldom physically contacted the pa­
tient. We believe building this review process into the utilization 
control practices of the intermediary will reduce the number of 
questionable utilization situations. 

Questionable cost reimbursement items.-In addition to intensi­
fying our utilization screening activities, we will be requiring that 
the Florida intermediaries, through intensified cost report audits, 
focus close attention on specific areas of home health reimburse­
ment including: 

(a) personal expenses of owners; (b) organizational startup costs; 
(c) fees paid for adviser/director meetings; (d) contracted services 
including management/consultant contracts; (e) advertising; (f) 
rent; (g) travel and entertainment expenses; (h) legal and account­
ing services; (D application of the prudent buyer concept to major 
purchases and rentals; G) other related party arrangements such as 
where a home health agency owner also owns an interest in an­
other concern doing business with the agency; (k) a review of the 
ratio of the administrative salaries of the agency to the total sala­
ries of the agency to determine those agencies whose administra­
tive salaries are substantially out of line; and (1) costs associated 
with soliciting patients which are generally not reimbursable 
under medicare. 

Mr. Chairman, the intensified cost and utilization audits are 
being done to determine which home health agencies are defraud­
ing or abusing the system. Through the course of conducting these 
reviews, if we find apparent attempts at fraud, we will immediately 
turn the matters over to the Inspector General for criminal investi­
gation. 

As I mentioned, these stepped up audit approaches will be fol­
lowed in Florida. In addition, we have developed various other 
guides and instructions of a general nature which I would like to 
share with the committee: 
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1. Section 223 cost limits.-Section 223 .of Public Law 92:-603 
provides that regardless of the actual costs Incu,rred by a provIder, 
limits will be placed for pu~p?ses of m~dicare re1mb~rsement ba!?ed 
on the cost experience of sImIla~ provIders. In applymg the sectIOn 
223 principle to home health re1mburseI?~nt, w,e have ~egun plac­
ing cost limit!? on a p.er ~ome health VISIt basIs effectIve f?r cost 
reporting perIods begmnmg o~ or after J~ly 1, 1979. ThIS .new 
regulation should result in conSIderable medIcare program savmgs. 
It will also promote greater. effic~ency on the part of hOI?e health 
agencies who will be operatmg wIth the knowledge that total c~sts 
may not be allowed dependin~ on l~ke c,osts ?f comparable agenCl~s. 
Additionally, it will help us IdentIfy SItuatIOns where aberrancIes 
exist that could represent efforts to abuse the prograD;1. . 

2. New cost reporting system.-One problem assocIated wIth ~e­
termining apP!opriate ho~e health agency costs has to d~ wIth 
reporting reqUIrements. Qu~te ~rankly, the cost report for~ muse 
now by home health agenCIes IS not formate~ well to allow ques­
tionable areas to be easily pinpointed. We are m the process now of 
developing a revised home health agency cost report E!-nd expect 
this new cost report to be issued i~ 1980. Th~ new reportm~ format 
will require Home Health AgenCIes to pro:'lde more de~aIled co~t 
reporting than is currently the case and. WIll mo~~ readIly permIt 
an intermediary to identify and questIOn speCIfIc home health 
agency cost areas which ~ay be :abu~ed. . . . 

3. Improved intermedIary gUIdelmes for determI~mg m~dlCare 
allowable HHA costs.-We have issued severa] new mstr:uctIOns to 
intermediaries, all focusing on ways to assure approprIate home 
health reimbursement: . 

a. Management fees and consultant contracts. We. now requ.Ire 
that each home health agency maintain documentatIOn r~gardmg 
the amounts paid for management fees and c~nsultant se.rvlCes. ~nd 
the hours and nature of the services prOVIded. The mtensIfIed 
audits include steps to determine whethe~ these ar~angem~nts ac­
tually involve related parties, are franchIse operatIO~s or mv?lve 
other management service firms. We will e~pect th~ mtermedIary 
to carefully evaluate the costs of such serVIces agamst .the actu~l 
hours devoted to performing these serv.ices. <;Jost/benefIt analysI.s 
for each home health agency under reVIew WIll be done and deCI­
sions made on the allowability of such costs. 

b. Patient solicitation. In some instances home health agency 
personnel have been used to visit. hospitals for" the purpose of 
recruiting medicare patients for theIr hom~ health ~g~ncy employ­
er. We have provi?ed instruct~ons to. t.he ~ntermedIarIes that any 
costs incurred to mcrease patIent utIlIzatIOn are unallowable for 
reimbursement purposes. ... 

c. Administrative salaries. We have prOVIded gUIdance for m~er­
mediary's use in determining the reasonableness of ~omp~nsatIOn 
paid to home health agency administrators and medlC~l dIrector~. 
These instructions require an intermediary to determme the faIr 
market value of such services and compare th.at wi~h the am~}Un~s 
actually paid. If the c?mpe~sation pai~, inclu.dmg frI?g~ benefIts, ~s 
substantially out of lIne WIth that bemg paId for sImIla~ .wor~, It 
will be reduced. We intend to provide much .more ~pecIflC ~UI~e­
lines in the future. In addition we have remmded mtermedIarIes 
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that the cost of items furnished to employees not commonly recog­
nized as employee fringe benefits are not allowable. 

d. Transportation costs. We have provided guidance to interme­
diaries for evaluating the reasonableness of provider incurred 
transportation costs. We have provided guidelines to assist interme­
diaries in judging the necessity of transportation costs incurred by 
supervisory or administrative personnel. These costs are to be com­
pared to those of well established home health agencies to deter­
mine if they are reasonable. 

These are several of the areas where we are moving now, 1\'1r. 
Chairman, to improve the intermediary capacity and our own ca­
pacity to assure proper payments for home health services. Many 
of these actions have been taken to honor commitments made 
during testimony before this ccmmittee on earlier occasions. 

We will be doing more than simply asking the intermediaries to 
do this job and then hope that they do it. I already mentioned that 
we are working with the Florida intermediaries to assure the im­
plementation of an intlmsified- audit approach. 

In addition, we have routine monitoring programs which we will 
use to test intermediary adherence to home health agency reim­
bursement. Two such methods of monitoring intermediary perform­
ance by HCF A are the contractor inspection and evaluation pro­
gram and the home health agency cost report evaluation program. 

The contractor inspection and evaluation program consists of 
on site reviews of contractor performance. The purpose of these 
reviews is to insure that the intermediary understands the respon­
sibilities under the terms of the medicare contract and has the 
processes to meet those responsibilities. Inherent in this review is 
an evaluation of how well the intermediary is adhering to HCF A 
reimbursement principles including home health agency reim­
bursement. 

The contractor inspection and evaluation program review will 
also be buttressed by the home health agency cost report evalua­
tion program which is still in pilot stages and not yet fully imple­
mented. This program enables us to review contractor handling of 
home health agency cost reports to insure these reports are being 
processed according to RCF A instructions. This review focuses 
more on results than process and involves an after-the-fact sam­
pling and review of selected settled cost reports to evaluate the 
quality of the intermediary audit and the final cost settlement. 
Deviation from HCFA reimbursement principles will result in re­
opening of 'cost reports and recoupment of funds erroneously paid. 
We are just beginning these reviews for home health agencies 
through a pilot testing program and expect national implementa­
tion early next year. 

Through the Office of Program" Validation in the Bureau of 
Quality Control, reviews are being made of providers where statis­
tical or other information pose questionable utilization or reim­
bursement practices. These reviews consist of monitoring program 
payments in an effort to detect abusive or even fraudulent billing 
practices. Personnel from this office have been and continue to be 
involved in reviewing the home health problems. It has been large­
ly through their efforts that many of the home health agency 
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reimbursement problems before us today have been brought to our 
attention. 

Mr. Chairman, let me summarize by saying that HCFA recog­
nizes that there have been and continue to be problems in the 
payment for home health services under medicare. We have taken 
a number of steps to address these prohlems and as I have outlined 
here today we are intensifying our efforts in this area. 

That concludes my formal testimony, Senator, if I could be per­
mitted to make some closing remarks. 

Senator CHILES. Yes, sir. 
Mr. KENNEDY. I would like to echo the opening statement that 

you made, Senator, particularly with regard to the critical impor­
tance of the home health agency benefit. In and of itself, as well as 
an essential ingredient in the overall delivery system that was 
contemplated by the medicare legislation, it plays an extremely 
important role and we are extrerpely committed to making sure 
that that role not only continues but is protected from any unfortu­
nate bad names or other implications that could flow from the 
practices that I have been discussing here today. 

We want to make absolutely sure that in addressing these ques­
tions and designing solutions to these problems that people who 
have been in this business since the beginning providing a very 
valuable and a very critical service to the elderly and the poor are 
protected, as it were, and that any sort of strategy that we design 
to eliminate the bad actors from the program, that those strategies 
do not visit upon the people who have been providing this service 
over the years burdensome administrative requirements. That is 
the commitment that we are making to the home health agency 
benefit. 

We would be more than happy to try to answer any questions 
that you have, Senator. . 

Senator CHILES. Mr. Kennedy, I understand that you have been 
in this job for just a few months as the head of the quality program 
in the area but you do speak for the Health Care Financing Ad­
ministration and you speak ;or that Department. You say in your 
statement that the Health Care Financing Administration staff h~3 
been largely responsible to the Office of Program Evaluation for 
bringing these problems to your attention. I question that state­
ment and if it is true I would like to know why you are just 
starting now to make this review. 

In 1976, I held hearings in Tampa, and then we held hearings in 
Miami, and then we held hearings in Washington on the outright 
home health fraud in Florida and in California. We made a 
number of recommendations then and this is the first time that I 
have teard these problems officially acknowledged. 

In 1977, I asked Mr. Derzon of the Health Care Financing Ad­
ministration about these problems at another hearing in Washing­
ton and he said the Department was looking into them. 

In 1978, Congressman Sam Gibbons held two hearings, one with 
HCFA and one with the intermediaries, in which the same prob­
lems were uncovered. The recommendations were again made and 
the Health Care Financing Administration promised to respond. 

Now a few months ago, in May 1979, the General Accounting 
Office reports, that the problem still exists and that authority given 
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by Congress to the Health Care Financing Administration to re­
spond to these problems of fraud and abuse has not been adequate­
ly used. I am citing the General Accounting Office report. 

Here we are now and you say that we are going to take another 
look. Are we going to have to do this again in another year, 
another 2 years, another 3 years? Are we going to be back in the 
same place or are we really going to do something about it? 

Mr. KENNEDY. Senator, I did not mean to imply that we are now 
for the first time identifying these problems. The identification of 
the pro~lems, as you just indicated, has a long history. I was 
~ttemptmg to suggest that through this capability we are attempt­
mg to come to grips with those problems in the context of individu­
~l ca~e~ or. individual providers. While th~re is a long history of the 
IdentIfICatIOn of those problems, the ultImate solution of them in 
terms of providing the documentation, would permit a documented 
settlement. That would withstand challenge after a cost is allowed 
or a decision in the context of an individual case is unallowed. A 
different kind of commitment is, in this case, oriented in the direc­
tion of providing the documentation upon which adverse determi­
nations vis-a-vis an individual provider can be based. It was in this 
area that I was attempting to indicate that the activities that we 
are into now are providing that kind of documentation through 
these kinds of capabilities. 

Senator, the problem is certainly not resolved. I would think 
however, that it would not be appropriate to conclude that we ar~ 
still talking in a mode of what is going to happen in the futUre. 
Th~ p~ocess th~t I j~st allud~d to of providing, acquiring, and 
".ahda~mg t~e kmd of .mformatIon necessary to support determina­
tIons myolvmg the dIsallowance of very substantial amounts of 
money, IS a ~urdensome pro.cess and .it is a significant responsibili­
ty. We feel tnat to do that In a fashwn that will support scrutiny 
or be sustained on appeal is a considerable investment. That invest­
men~ is continuing, and in fact, has in relationship to individual 
provIders resulted already in some substantial disallowances of 
cost. 

For example, in Florida we have already reached determinations 
with respect to individual providers that entailed disallowances for 
such. ite~s as :pension c.osts in one instance over $18,000, The 
medICal dIrector s salary IS almost $13,000 and then other inciden­
tal legal fees of almost $23,000 were disallowed. Exclusive consult­
ing fees in excess of approximately $34,000 in another instance 
were denied. In another instance, $14,000 of undocumented startup 
costs we,re denied, $8,000 for unpaid expenses in another, $30,000 
for penSIOn expenses, $12,000 for controller's compensation $10000 
of salaries paid to administrative assistants. ' , 

The point I am trying to make, Senator, is that we are as it 
we~e, :pr.oceeding t? address t~ese generic problems in the c~ntext 
of mdIvIdual provIders. The Investments, the time and the re­
~ou~c~s are be&"inning to produce, decisions with r~lationship to 
mdIvIdual provIders that are denymg those costs. It was in that 
area, that I was attempting to indicate to you, Senator, that we are 
movmg ahe~d to make those tough decisions, and to acquire the 
documentatIOn necessary to support them. It was in that sense that 
I was speaking. 
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Senator CHILES. Well, the point I am trying to make, Mr. Kenne­
dy, is it seems like every time we are getting ready to hold one of 
these hearings we see a little flourish of activity, or something is 
going to be done. When Congressman Gibbons was holding his 
hearings in 1978 he was given all kinds of assurances of what was 
going to be done. I was told something in 1976, I was told more at 
my hearings in 1977, and now we find that 2 weeks ago these audit 
procedures are going into effect and you are talking of the 12 
points of the audit procedure. 

You are saying that it takes time to establish this framework to 
determine how we hold people accountable. It seems like to me, 
and these points look good to me, personal expense of owners. Did 
it take 11 years to determine that we ought to look at the personal 
expense of the owners when you make up one of these things and 
determine whether that is a valid charge in organizational startup 
costs? 

It would seem to me that it shouldn't take from 1976, when we 
were talking about organizational startup costs, to now, when we 
find that that is being asked for in a uniform audit. Fees paid for 
advisors and directors meetings, contracting services including 
management consulting contracts-all of those were the things 
that came out in 1976, all of those were points that came out in 
1978. They have been there since it finally started. 

Now thank the Lord that they are now part of the audit proce~ 
dure and that we are talking about them, but my whole concern is, 
is this something that is going to go away again? I hope Sam 
Gibbons is not going to go away and I want to try to hold hearings 
more than every 3 years on it to see that something is going to 
happen. 

As we see a program mushrooming from $100 million to $400 
million to $800 million to where it is going to go very quickly over 
$1 billion, I think that we are entitled to have some of these things 
go into effect and to have them actually working and not have it 
happen because we are holding another hearing. I have seen some 
of the memos about "Chiles is going to hold hearings in August and 
so prior to the time that those hearings are held we have got to 
have certain milestones-milestone 1, milestone 2, milestone 3." 

That is very good but, gosh, I would hope that sometimes that 
would happen without the fact that somebody is holding hearings, 
that we could get something underway and say that we have got to 
have accountability for the program. Now I am glad to hear about 
these $8,000 and $14,000 fees, but again I am concerned. Are we 
talking about finding some costs or are we talking about changing 
a system? Are we talking about putting in some proper controls 
that are going to direct the system so that it is going to work 
properly? 

Mr. KENNEDY. Senator, the ways that you have indicated, I 
cannot indicate to you today that these kinds of concern or these 
individual areas of concerns should not have been resolved earlier. 
I can indicate to you two things that have influenced our ability to 
resolve them within the timeframes that I think we would all 
agree to date have proven unsatisfactory. 

When the kinds of concerns that you have referred to first came 
forward, as you indicated earlier, several years ago the availability 
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of guidelines in relationship to those particular areas were not that 
specific. The lack of specificity there did create a situation that 
gave us some concern, particularly where the absence of specificity 
resulted in different intermediaries in different parts of the coun­
try taki:q,g different postures with regard to the allowability a cost 
in essentially the same type of situation. 

We felt that that was not the kind of a situation that was 
appropriate and we therefore felt the necessity to develop these 
more specific guidelines. That has progressed since 1976, where we 
had the basic instructions with respect to allowability, then some 
more specific instructions relating to certain of these items, three 
in 1978, and two in 1979, that we would have a better opportunity 
to achieve consistency in terms of these individual items. 

Senator CHILES. But that is what HCFA was supposed to be 
doing, was it not, setting the guidelines for the health care financ­
ing responsibility? Did HCFA ever come to the Congress and say, 
"We think the law is too vague or we need to change the law?" No 
one has ever said that to me. I would welcome some kind of a 
statement that if the law is vague or we don't like reasonable 
charge we have got to have something different, tell us what it 
should be. It seems like the very thing that was there in 1976, that 
you are now talking about, was what was right, what HCFA was 
designed to do, and what they are set up to do. 

Mr. KENNEDY. Well, Senator, as I indicated earlier, we are doing 
our best to build the kind of a guideline framework that would be 
necessary to achieve consistency in the application of decisionmak­
ing or decisionmaking in these areas, but that does not imply that 
what has happened in the past is somehow water under the bridge 
or over the falls. We are, through the kind of activity that is 
ongoing here in Florida, attempting to design a standardized 
sYS'l;em to look at the sort of an audit expectation format that we 
would hope to use not only here but elsewhere. And in the use of 
that, Senator, having achieved a grea.ter degree of consistency in 
the guidelines, they will be used and they will be applied retrospec­
tively to those cost reports that have been settled. As I indicated 
already, we have made progress in the context of individual facili­
ties, identifying those kinds of situations and take an action to 
disallow those costs. 

SEmator CHILES. How many home health providers have been 
investigated for possible fraud and abuse, and what have been the 
results of those reviews? 

Mr. KENNEDY. The situation there, Senator, is a little complex. 
The: stage at which a case reaches or ripens to the point where we 
feel a fraud investigation is required varies from situation to situa­
tion. We have in Florida, for example, worked very closely with the 
Inspector General's office, and I think they are looking at the 
instances that we are investigating. 

I think we have perhaps two cases that have been referred in 
sort of a formal sense, but that is misleading in the sense that we 
have been jointly involved in a number of ongoing investigations or 
situations that we are trying to -gather data about. So the mere 
statistics regarding formal referrals is somewhat misleading in the 
sense that we are involved in a number of individual situations. 
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Senator CHILES. How many home health providers are pending 
review for possible fraud or abuse? 

Mr. KENNEDY. We have approximately 15 reviews underway at 
the current time. 

Senator CHILES. The General Accounting Office turned over to 
you a number of home health providers for review because of 
possible fra\ld and abuse. You were to complete review of those 
providers during this year I take it. How many providers were 
heard from, and how many have you reviewed to date? Can you 
tell me something about what your review disclosed, again without 
identifying the providers, of which evaluations have been done? 
Will your review on all those providers be completed this year? 

Mr. KENNEDY. Senator, in the context of the GAO report, there 
were a number of particular situations that 'were' cited. My under­
standing is that those cited instances were in every case, instances 
of situations where the audit of that provider had not been com­
pleted in the normal way that audits are conducted. Certainly, in 
the context of the completion of those audits, the observations and 
points that were made in the GAO audit with regard to those 
individual providers will certainly be taken into account. 

I cannot tell you today, Senator, whether or not in the specifics 
that were referenced in the GAO report, those cases have been 
adjusted to reflect those concerns that were expressed in the GAO 
report, but I do know that those instances, to the best of my 
knowledge, were not instances in which the areas cited had been 
subjected to a study by the intermediary. 

Senator CHILES. Well, are you going to follow up on each one of 
those cases? 

Mr. KENNEDY. We are going to follow up, Senator. 
Senator CHILES. Is that going to be done and completed this year? 
Mr. KENNEDY. We are going to be following up in terms of the 

audit aspect for every home health agency. The intermediaries, in 
addition to the guidelines that we have already provided, will be 
given additional materials, additional audit formats or audit plans 
that we hope to design, gaining from the experience here in Flor­
ida, to utilize in all situations that appear to represent the situa­
tions of abuse. 

So the short answer, Senator, is that all home health agencies 
will be audited and we will do everything that we can to design an 
instructional framework that will point intermediaries in the direc­
tion of these potential abuse situations. And to the extent that that 
produces results we will reopen those cost reports and make what­
ever adjustments in them the facts warrant. 

Senator CHILES. Well, based on your reviews, how many home 
health agencies employ people specifically to solicit patients? 

Mr. KENNEDY. The pattern that seems to be emerging, Senator, 
is that those agencies that are primarily servicing medicare benefi­
ciaries typically employ individuals in that capacity. I cannot say 
that in every instance that occurs but it certainly seems to be the 
pattern in those instances we have taken and that we are investi­
gating to date. To the extent that those services and the r.:osts 
associated with them are identified, there again, Senator, those 
costs will be disallowed on audit. 
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Senator CHILES. How do you determine if the activity is legiti­
mate or not? 

Mr. KENNEDY. That question, Senator, is the kind of question 
that we are attempting to address in the framework of these spe­
cialized audits that we are conducting here in Florida. We don't 
know all the answers to this, and what we are attempting to do is 
zero in on the situation her~ in Florida and develop the kinds of 
lead information that we can provide in a larger framework, so 
that when audits are conducted-whether they be in Florida, Cali­
fornia, New York, or anywhere-the kinds of information neces­
sary to make the decision as to whether or not they are legitimate 
is provided. That is what we are attempting to do here in Florida, 
Senator. 

Senator CHILES. My understanding is that one of your reviews 
found that one of the agencies had three full-time nurses who 
billed the agency for 480 hours and yet the nurses only made five 
patient visits during that billing time or during that month and yet 
they called on the hospitals and the doctors that they were seeing 
at least once a day. Would that kind of a charge be a legitimate 
ch::lrge? 

Mr. KENNEDY. Senator, in the context of the facts as you just 
represented them,' I would have to conclude that they would not be 
allowable costs, and to the extent that that situation is document­
ed, I have every reason to believe that those costs will be disal­
lowed. 

Senator CHILES. Do you have any estimate of the amount of 
money which may have been inappropriately paid by medicare for 
this kind of patient solicitation? 

Mr. KENNEDY. Senator, I think that it would be inappropriate for 
me to extrapolate from the limited experience that we have had to 
date. I think the preferable approach, the more judicious approach, 
if you will, would be for us to not assume in every situation that 
we identify that we can leap to the conclusion that those are 
always unallowable costs. 

So I think, Senator, it would be more appropriate for us to reach 
a pattern of conclusions, if you will, with reference to our investi­
gation of these individual situations. Then if we can gain from that 
the kinds of signposts that would suggest these are \lnallowable 
kinds of situations, to the extent that those can be identified in 
other situations, we are in a much better position to make projec­
tions as to the amount of unallowable costs. I would prefer, Sena­
tor, to indicate that as we reach decisions in individual cases that 
involve these kinds of situations, we will make individual decisions 
as to allowability. Once those decisions are made, we will be in a 
position to give clear indications as to the amount of unallowable 
costs associated with those kinds of activities. 

Senator CHILES. On what basis do you disallow expenditures in 
the area of patient solicitation? 

Mr. KENNEDY. I am sorry, Senator. 
Senator CHILES. What is your basis on which you operate to 

disallow expenditure if you feel it was a cost incurred on a patient 
solicitation as opposed to services direct? 

Mr. KENNEDY. I think primarily, Senator, it is simply a question 
of reaching a conclusion that that is not a reimbursable, it is not a 
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reasonable expense. There are certain activities that are permissi­
ble in relationship to advertising the availability and the existence 
of a home health agency which are not inappropriate but to the 
extent that those kinds of activities go beyond that--

Senator CHILES. You do have an intermediary letter 79-22 which 
allows cost incurred to increased patient utilization, don't you? 

Mr. KENNEDY. Yes, sir. That is correct, sir. 
Senator CHILES. That is the basis on which you would deny? 
Mr. KENNEDY. The instruction is out there. I thought you were 

seeking the conceptual reimbursement principles that were in­
volved that provide the basis for that. That principle is while we 
permit a certain level of advertising, to the extent that it goes 
beyond that, we reach the conclusion that those are unallowable 
costs because they are not related directly to patient care as pa­
tient care itself. 

Senator CHILES. The HCF A Administrator Derzon told me in 
May 1977 that you were going to be considering ways to eliminate 
the 100 percent or medicare-only home health care providers. How 
many such agencies have you identified? 

Mr. KENNEDY. I think there is clear indication that there are a 
very substantial percentage, upward of perhaps 7''( percent here in 
Florida. Nationally, Senator, our information would indicate that 
there are approximately 650 out of a total of about 2,700 home 
health agencies. I think in Mr. Lowe's earlier testimony there were 
indications that there has been growth in that area. 

Senator CHILES. When do you propose to deal with the 100 per­
cent, or will they be eliminated? 

Mr. KENNEDY. That question, Senator, is a very difficult one to 
answer. On the one hand, it can be argued that the mere fact an 
institution or an agency structures itself to provide as a 100 per­
center is a sufficient reason to reach the conclusion, almost auto­
matically, that it is a situation that is designed to capitalize or 
otherwise abuse the system. That is one line of argument. 

There a!e others .that woul~ say that that is not necessarily true, 
and that m many mstances It can be argued that in areas where 
others are not willing to provide the service, that proprietary or 
other kinds of institutions that are geared to provide services to 
medicare beneficiaries, provide a protection that otherwise would 
not simply exist in those areas. 

So on the one hand, Senator, we are in the dilemma of address­
ing the situation that seems to be characteristic of that particular 
type of provider; but on the other hand we are reluctant to reach 
the conclusion that in every instance those kinds of situations are 
per se ab':lsive. We t.hin~, Senator, that the. kinds of things that I 
was alludmg to earlIer, If these areas of reImbursement practices 
that we have been discussing are identified, and the cost associated 
with them disallowed, and if that is in any sense characteristic of a 
large number of these kinds of organizations, we think that that in 
and of itself will tend to provide a basis of addressing the 100 
percent situation. 

Senator CHILES. Your answer reminds me a little bit of Harry 
Truman's dilemma in which he said he was going to get himself a 
one-armed economist. He said he was too tired of hearing econo­
mists saying on the one hand the problem may be so and so, but on 
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the other it may be something else. I think maybe you need a one 
armed administrator of HCF A. . 

How then has the policy changed? perzon told m~ a~ the Admm­
istrator, that we are going to be tak~ng steps to ehmmate ~he 1O~ 
percenters. Is that no longer the _pol,lcy? Has that changed. Oh":'1-
ously nothing has been done to ellmmate them. That was done m 
1977. We are now in 1979 and there are no steps taken: Are yo~ 
telling me today that the policy has change.d, that th~t IS not so. 

Mr. KENNEDY. No, Senator. What I am trymg to say IS that there 
are two ways of looking at that solution. 

Senator CHILES. Put one hand behind your back and tell me the 
answer. d . 

Mr.. KENNEDY. There is what might be called the more racoman 
appr~ach and that is to say, by fiat, there s~all be ~o ~ore. of these 
kinds of institutions. If there are those kll;ds of .m~tItut~ons and 
they are abusing the program, .what we WIll do IS IdentIfy t~ose 
abuse situations and deny the reImbursement for those abus.e SItua­
tions. That in itself may be a legitimate way of addressmg the 
problem, and perhaps the elimination of the problem 100 percent. 

I don't mean to imply, Senator, that. we have abandoned the 
former approach. We have asked our OffIce of General Counsel ,for 
an opinion as to the legality of that more, shall we say, dracoman 
approach. They have not formally responded to us yet about the 
legal feasibility of that. approach, but that does not mean that we 
have abandoned it. Second, it does not mean that we are not 
pursuing those c~sts ~nd ~enying them to the extent that they are 
reflective of abusIve SItuatIOns. . . 

Senator CHILES. Many of the 100 perc enters are nonprofIt pr.ovld­
ers and they are tax exempt. 'Yhat are you doing to c?ord~n~te 
your activities with the IRS to msure that these are mamtammg 
that tax-exempt status? .. 

Mr. KENNEDY. We are already having some plans 111 that ~I,rec­
tion, Senator. Let me say a lot of people feel. that the. ongmal 
granting of a 501 exemption status probably .IS som~thmg t~at 
should be reevaluated in the context of th.e kmd ?f mf?rmatIOn 
that is being discussed here today. A ser,les of dIscussIOns and 
meetings have already been held to see If a procedure on. the 
process can't be worked out. There a,re some pr?bleI?s of confIden­
tiality and other things that enter mto that SItuatIOn, but I feel 
confident that as a result of our meetings and discussions that that 
issue can get joined. .. . 

Senator CHILES. The GAO report said 5 orgamzatIOns ~ssisted 
with establishing or providing assistance .to at lea~t ~8 dIfferent 
home health agencies. You identify those fIve orgamzatIOns, I take 
it, or the report did. 

Mr. KENNEDY. Correct. . 
Senator CHILES. The Unihealth in New Orleans with 23. agenCIes, 

Capitol in Florida with 20 age~cies, N~tion~l Health DelIvery Sy~­
terns in Chicago with 19 agenCIes, MedI-PatIent Hom~ He~l~h Cale 
Consultants in Chicago with 7 agencies. Have you Ide?~Ified any 
additional management organizations? How many addItIOnal pro­
vider agencies do they cover? 
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Mr. KENNEDY. I am not exactly sure of the precise number. My 
information is that approximately 8 to 10 other such organizations 
may be in a comparable business elsewhere in the country. 

Senator CHILES. How does the home health agency enter into 
these contracts? Describe the types of services provided by the 
management funds. Does the billing permit the intermediary to 
determine the service and the amount of such service? 

Mr. KENNEDY. Well, it is hard to say exactly what lJrecisely they 
provide for. Oftentimes there are organizations that provide guid­
ance development, manual billing procedure development, auto­
matic data processing systems, provide consultation to these agen­
cies in relationship to their ability to meet certain Federal stand­
ards relating to health and safety and other considerations. They 
often have an initial demand and then a percentage of the gross 
income facility, I forget the exact number, somewhere in the neigh­
borhood of 6 or 7 percent on a continuing basis for those agencies 
for those continuing services. The problem there, of course, is the 
extent to which those consulting firms are related to the organiza­
tion. The extent that it can be demonstrated that those organiza­
tions are related$ and that the transaction occurred in a non-arm's 
length way or posture under the regulation, is to say that we will 
not recognize charges for those services, but that we will only 
recognize the cost associated with the service as provided by the 
consulting organization. 

That means that we would have a right to access the information 
that is necessary to demonstrate what those costs were and to the 
extent that they are reasonable they would be allowable. To the 
extent that they are unreasonable, they would be denied and to the 
extent they are undocumented they will be denied. 

Senator CHILES. GAO has said that management firms charged 
$10,000 to $20,000 to set up a home health agency. Does HCFA 
assist new agencies in setting up if they come to HCFA to seek 
assistance? 

Mr. KENNEDY. Well, in the relationship to the kinds of organiza­
tional arrangements that are necessary to develop a home health 
agency, they are spelled out, the conditions of participation that 
these agencies must meet. The conditions of participation are avail­
able as public documents, and the availability of consultation or 
guidance as to the applicability and the intent of those regulations 
can be obtained from the certifying agency, which is the State 
health department. 

Senator CHILES. Well, we have reports that medicare is paying a 
large startup cost for nothing more than a Xeroxed manual. Is that 
correct? 
. Mr. KENNEDY. I am sorry, Senator. Could you repeat the ques­

tIon? 
Senator CHILES. We have reports that medicare has been charged 

and has paid large startup costs for nothing more than a Xeroxed 
manual. We see that in one review $10,000 was paid for each of 
nine agencies to one consulting firm for the same manual, $90,000. 

Mr. KENNEDY. The facts as you discuss them indicate to me, 
Senator, that those costs would be disallowed on audit. 
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Senator CHILES. I have some other questions and I will probably 
submit them to you for the record. 1 Our time is running. We thank 
you for your statement. 

Mr. KENNEDY. Yes, Senator. 
Senator CHILES. One other thing I want to ask you. We have 

listened today about the potential of a focus by HCFA and the 
Office of the Inspector General and HEW to coordinate activities in 
trying to approach this problem not only from the audit function 
but also from the investigation function. You would change the 
course of direction and set some guidelines on this. Is HCF A sold 
on this program and are they going to cooperate with the Office of 
Inspector General in this regard.? Or is this going to be another one 
of those things where we see some activity now and then it fades 
after a while? 

Mr. KENNEDY. Well, Senator, I can speak from my side. I have 
had discussions with Mr. Morris. My staff has already had discus­
sions with the staff of the Inspector General. It was my sincere 
belief, Senator, that the relationship that we have established is a 
good working relationship and it is one that will continue. I feel 
working together we have not only an obligation but a very good 
opportunity to capitalize on the experience that they have and 
make it work closely with the kinds of more in depth programmatic 
experience that we have, so that when we operate in our area, 
from a program standpoint, the case will be well developed and 
developed also with some sensitivity to the implications that it may 
also represent. At that point, the case is turned over to the Inspec­
tor General for the lead regarding those cases representing poten­
tial criminal fraud. 

Senator CHILES. That kind of cooperative effort is only going to 
work if both sides are working hard to make it work because if 
people are looking for turf priority, credit, or one side is just 
dragging their feet as to whether they think the investigation 
should go forward or not, it will break down. What I want to know 
is whether everybody is committed and determined to make it 
work. Is everybody going to continue to work through problems 
that will arise when it comes to finding ways to make it work? 

Mr. KENNEDY. I certainly am committed to that, Senator, and 
from my discussions with Mr. Morris I am confident that he is 
likewise committed to it. 

Senator CHILES. Mr. Kennedy, I hope you will tell everybody else 
in your shop that I am committed to making it work, and that I 
hope it is going to continue in this regard. I hope that we don't 
hear from either HCFA or from the Office of Inspector General 
that there are any problems in turf or other problems of somebody 
dragging their feet . 

Thank you. 
Mr. KENNEDY. Yes, sir, Senator. 
Senator CHILES. Now we will hear from Mr. Jack Eskenazi, the 

U.S. attorney for the Southern District of Florida, who is accompa­
nied by Pat Sullivan, Chief of the Criminal Division, and Joel 
Rosenthal, Chief of the Fraud Section. 

I See appendix 1, item 2, page 59. 
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STATEMEN1' OF J. V. "JACK" ESKENAZI, U.S. ATTORNEY, 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA, ACCOMPANIED BY PAT 
SULLIVAN, CHIEF, CRIMINAL DIVISION, AND JOEL RO­
SENTHAL, CHIEF, FRAUD SECTION 

Mr. ESKENAZI. Good afternoon . 
. Senator CHILES. Mr. Eskenazi, I don't know that we have ever 

had a chance to formally meet. 
Mr. ESKENAZI. I am delighted to have the opportunity, Senator. 
Senator CHILES. I had the opportunity to recommend you for the 

job in the Justice Department and Justice decided to go ahead with 
that recommendation. I am glad to have a chance to meet you. 

Mr. ESKENAZI. I assure you it is a distinct pleasure for me to 
meet you as well. 

Mr. Chairman, I appreciate the opportunity for myself and mem-
bers of my staff to appear before you today and would like to take 
this opportunity to commend this committee's efforts to expose 
fraud and abuse in the home health care industry. 

I think it might be appropriate for me to give you some perspec­
tive of the position of the U.S. attorney's office in the Southern 
Di.strict of Florida and to the extent that I am able to do so the 
Department of Justice with respect to these problems. 

Senator CHILES. My understanding is that you are here today 
speaking not only on behalf of yourself as the U.S. attorney, South­
ern District of Florida, but also as the representative of the Justice 
Department, and to answer questions as far as you can about the 
Justice Department policy. ' 

Mr. ESKENAZI. That is absolutely correct, Your Honor-Senator. 
Senator CHILES. That is the first time I have been called Your 

Honor in a long, long time. 
Mr. ESKENAZI. It is most deserved. 
Senator CHILES. Note that for the record. 
Mr. ESKENAZI. Let me begin by telling you a little bit about the 

U.S. attorney's office for the Southern District of Florida and th2 
efforts of the Department of Justice a;ld my office to address the 
problem of abuse in the home health care industry and what 
progress may realistically be expected in the future. It may be 
important to know what the U.S. attorney's office in this district 
consists of. 

'I'he U.S. attorney's office in the Southern District of Florida is 
composed of 39 assistant U.s. attorneys, of whom 12 are assigned to 
the Civil and Lands and Natural Resources Divisions and 24 are 
assigned in the Criminal Division, and of that 24, 4 have arrived on 
board within the past month, and 2 have arrived as recently as 
yesterday. 

Senator CHILES. Have yoU been given any additional numbers yet 
because of the new judges that have been assigned to this area? 
Has anything gone forward for providing additional U.S. assistant 
attorneys? 

Mr. ESKENAZI. The latter four positions, which I just mentioned, 
are essentially dedicated as a result of the increase in judge power 
in the district. We anticipate that we will receive--

Senator CHILES. You are getting fewer assistants than you are 
getting new judges. 
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~r: ESKENAZI. I th~nk it is in a sense the first installment. We 
anticIpate that. we w~l~ receive .something in the order of magni­
tude of some SIX addItIOnal assIstants after the judges take their 
plac~ ?n the bench and .we expect that allocation to be made, 
real~stIcally, after the begmning of the next fiscal year across the 
Nation. 

Senator CHILES. So you will be getting approximately two assist­
ants per each additional new judge. 

Mr. ESKENAZI. If I had to make a guesstimate Senator that 
would be my closest guess on the question. ' , 

Senator CHILES. All right. 
M~. E~KENAZI. In the Criminal Division responsibility for pros­

ecutIOn IS allocated amon.g the General Crimes Section, the Special 
Controlled S~stances Umt and th~ Fraud and Corruption Section. 
'Fhese 24 assIstants are charged wIth the responsibility of prosecut­
mg all Federal criminal violations within the district which ex­
tends from Fort Myers on the west coast and Fort Pierce on the 
east coas~, south t? Key. West and the Dry Tortugas. 
. Acc~rdIIl:gly, thIS. offIce prosecutes all Federal narcotics cases, 
m?lud~ng ~mpor~atIOn and smuggling, boat cases, and other con­
spIraCIes mvolvmg cocaine, ~arijuana, heroin, quaaludes, and 
other dangerous drugs: ~~rcotICs s~uggling and sales are, as you 
knmy, S~nator, a mult~bllhon-dollar mdustry in Florida, and south 
Fl.o:lda IS the entry pomt for the bulk of this illicit traffic. Counter­
fmtm.g a~d ~he smuggling of illegal aliens are pervasive problems 
m thIS diStrI~t as are. frequent we~pons violations, involving illegal 
sales, smugglmg and mterstate shIpments. 

Cases prose.cuted. in the. fr~uds section include mail and wire 
frauds, s~me mvolvmg maJor mternational swindles, including so­
~alled . bOI~er room co~mo.dities frauds. We have presently under 
I~vestIgatIO.n or have mdICted or successfully concluded prosecu­
tions of mall,fral1;d. schemes involving franchise and land frauds, as 
well as false mvoICmg schemes of many different varieties. 

Bt:lnk fraud .and embe~zlem~nt cases are handled by the frauds 
sectIOn, mcludmg cases mvolvmg elaborate and sophisticated com­
puter schem7s .and elaborate account manipulations. Bankruptcy 
f:au~s are wl~hm our exclusive jurisdiction and their proper inves­
tIga~IOn reqUIres careful accounting work and thorough review. 

WIth t~e advent of the Florida no-fault law in 1971, a whole new 
genre of msurance fra?~s was born, created by unscrupulous doc­
t~rs ,and lawyers who Jomtly engaged in bilking insurance compa­
mes through false and inflated accident claims. Our. frauds section 
ha~ successfully prosecuted a number of these conspiracies each of 
whICh takes months or year~ to investigate and anywher~ from 2 
weeks to 2 mo~ths of trIal time. Other such conspiracies are pres­
ently under active. grand jury investigation. 

Our frauds s7ctIOn. also prosecutes tax frauds in this district as 
well as cases mvolvmg labor law and agriculture violations. A 
l~rge volume of cases are referred and prosecuted involving various 
kinds of frauds upon agencies of the United States. Thus FHA and 
HUp. refer numerous cases involving fraud by loan and mortgage 
reCIpIents, an~ the Smt:lll Busin~s~ Administration and the Veter­
ans and SOCIal SecurIty Admlmstrations refer cases involving 
frauds upon those agencies. 
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C . l' g CETA fraud medicaid and medicare fraud, com­
ases Invo vm 'Th f d 't' presently rise the bulk of program fraud cB:se~. e. ral:l s um IS f 

Involved at one stage or another m mvestIgatlOns of a. number 0 
these cases Some of these investigations involve allegations ?f fals~ 
1 'ms b 'single individuals while others involve allegatIOns 0 

~idespre~d fraud and abuse involving volumi~o~s fiAes'ili.uferods 
witnesses and many potential defendants. AddltlO~a y, e . rau s 
section is charged with investigating and prosecutmg fcases l~~olvt 
ing official corruption and misconduc~. These cases, ~eq~~n y ad 
the earliest investigatory level, reqUlre the close t;her: Idnr a~ 

articipation of an assistant U.S. attorney because 0 eI~ e lca e 
~nd s~nsitive nature and their significance to.the commumt~.. d f 

T ically, an assistant in the frauds sectIOn. l?-B;s B; case .oa . 0 
betX~en 30 and 75 cases at various stages from Im.tIal mvestIgatlO~ 
through appeal in the court o~ appeals. Each aAISjart U tSth~ttoll 
ne is responsible for appeals m hIS own cases. n 0 pu . IS a 
in yp~rspective, there are but six assistant U.S. attorneys m our 
frauds sectiol1. . tt f the 

Our staff is assisted by Department of Justice a' orneys r~m 
Fraud and Tax Divisions, who periodical~y tra,;,el f,rom W dshl~1to~ 
to Florida to assist my office in the mvestIgatlOn an t trfa J 0 
numerous cases. At one point this year, seven .Departm~n.o us­
tice attorneys were simultaneously engaged m mvestIgat.lOns or 
trials in this district. . ' t t th 

D 't the volume of cases confrontmg our aSSlS an s, e 
volu

e
:: ~f cases confronting the district judges is equally stagger­

. Recently the clerk of our district court cal?ulated that as of 
sg't mber i 1979 the backlog of criminal cases m the court, based 
u~~; their ~stima'ted trial time, will take the judges of the court, 
sitting continuously, until nearly September 1, 1980, to. try: 

That is the present state of our office and our dlstnct ?ourt. 
Recently the Department of Justice has created ~he qfflCe of 

Economic Crime Enforcement. The Office ?f Econ?m~c Cnme ~n­
forcement currently has eight economic crIme unIts m operatIOn. 
Seven economic crime enforcement sI?ecial~sts pre~entlYh sta1~f t~hse 
units. The office maintains an ongOl?g dIalog wIth t e 4 0 . er 
U.S. attorney's offices that have the!-:».' own f!aud all? corruptIOn 
units, as does mine, in order t? share Infor.matIon and .Ide~s. 

Senator CHILES. Does MiamI have an offIce of that kmd. . 
Mr. ESKENAZI. It does not, and I will speak to that m one 

moment. . . . .. 
In fiscal year 1980, the Depa~tment ant~cIpates addmg a mIm-

mum of six new units, beginnmg early I,n a~tumn .. The sOl:lth 
Florida area that has traditionally been Identified WIt?- a hIgh 
incidence of white collar crime activiti~8 ~~ll fe.el ~he lmpac~ of 
that expansion. However, the Federal Judlcla~ dls~nc~ ~ata ~ ow 
that 55 percent of the population of the State lIes withm. Its mIddle 
district. If possible, the Departme~t will create one offlCe for the 
State with two separate locations, m order to serve both ~re~s. M~ 
close~t guesstimate, Senator, is some time after the begmnmg 0 

the year. . . t' 
Let me read to you for just one moment a recent commumca Ion 

from the Department on this subject, and I quote: 
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While we anticipate going through the process of data gathering and assessment 
of existing patterns of fraud and corruption that is performed for any new location, 
a significant amount of work has already been accomplished by the three U.S. 
attorneys in Florida. They have already identified priority areas for investigation. 
Therefore, we should be able to quickly establish local priorities that are consistent 
with national ones, and so will be able to focus investigations on those priority areas 
with unusual speed. 

Our method of operation will be to assemble a task force comprised of, in a home 
health care fraud, for example, investigators, auditors and program people from 
Health, Education, and Welfare, as well as criminal investigators from traditional 
law enforcement .'lgencies such as the Federal Bureau of Investigation, Postal In­
spection Service, et cetera. The efforts of all members of the task force would be 
guided by the economic crime enforcement specialist and/or an assistant U.S. 
attorney. This guidance would flow from a detailed investigative plan that would 
have been developed by the specialist and the assistant. 

Our own review of the cases presently active in our office, and 
the cases which are under investigation by the various investiga­
tive agencies in which we play an active role, reveals that there 
are many priorities in this district and it is neither useful nor 
productive to assign a hierarchy to them. What we have in this 
district is an exceedingly high number of cases which by law en­
forcement standards, or in the eyes of one of the many constituen­
cies in this district, have very high priority. 

Among these cases are the overwhelming number of drug related 
offenses, bank frauds and mail fraud swindles, and the program 
fraud cases. Obviously, program fraud cases involving health care 
are priority cases in this district, if for no other reason than the 
fact that their impact upon the people in this district, both as 
victims and as taxpayers, is exceedingly great. 

At present our office is actively participating with HEW investi­
gators in a number of medicare fraud cases. Some of these involve 
home health care agencies. 

Perhaps it might be helpful if I explained how a health care case 
is referred to our office and the manner in which the investigation 
is coordinated with the HEW. Typically, allegations of criminality 
will come to our attention or to HEW's attention through com­
plaints of dissatisfied patients or former employees or principals, or 
through a referral from an auditing agency which may uncover 
irregularities or apparent criminality. 

At this preliminary stage, the HEW investigators will conduct 
interviews or examine records. If, in their judgment, it appears 
that no crime has been committed, or the crime may not warrant 
prosecution, they will present their finding$ to the chief of the U.S. 
attorney's fraud section who will ev~luate them and decline pros­
ecution and terminate the investigation. 

If, on the other hand, the agents believe that furthe:r investiga­
tion is warranted, or if the chief of the fraud section believes that 
an investigation should be conducted, further investigation will be 
authorized. At this stage, a file will be opened in our office and if 
necessary an assistant U.S. attorney will be assigned permanently 
to the case. Otherwise, Mr. Rosenthal, who is the chief of our fraud 
section, himself, will supervise the issuance of subpenas and assist 
the agents in the direction of their investigation until such time as 
it is appropriate to assign another assistant U.S. attorney the 
responsibility for taking substantive grand jury testimony or other­
wise becoming actively involved in the case on a day-by-day basis. 
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Some cases, because of their relatively straightforward nature 
and generally because they may only involve a single individual 
engaged in a pattern of fraud, are susceptible to investigation by 
the agents without the need for much involvement by an assistant 
U.S. attorney other than the issuance of grand jury subpenas to 
produce records. 

In those cases, at the conclusion of their investigation, the agents 
generally prepare a written report for the prosecutor. This report 
will summarize all the testimony of witnesses and all the other 
evidence in the case. Based upon this report, the assistant U.S. 
attorney will then conduct grand jury proceedings and if appropri­
ate seek an indictment. 

Home health care cases, on the other hand, because of the size of 
the agencies involved, the number of potential targets of the inves­
tigation, the complexity of the regulatory scheme, and the account­
ing procedures involved, are not susceptible to a similar approach. 
There may be varying levels of criminality and key witnesses may 
need to be immunized in the course of such an investigation. 

This is generally done through the grand jury in conjunction 
with field investigation by the agents and requires the active par­
ticipation of an assistant U.S. attorney. Similarly, the grand jury 
subpena power to obtain live testimony frequently becomes neces­
sary in these kinds of cases where witnesses may be reluctant to 
talk with an investigator. In these cases, because of the combina­
tion grand jury and interview investigative approach, prosecutive 
reports are generally not writt.en which summarize the whole case 
or all the evidence. Thus, home health care cases are initially 
investigated with the active participation of a grand jury. Needless 
to say, this process is not a short or easy one. 

I think it is fair to say that the investigators of the Department 
of HEW in this district must have complete access to the advice 
and assistance of the chief of our fraud section and the assistant 
U.S. attorneys who are assigned to particular cases. HEW investi­
gators, .like other investigators, must frequently consult with the 
prosecutors and seek advice and guidance. By the same token, Mr. 
Rosenthal advises me that he and his assistants need and have full 
access to the resources and assistance of these investigatQrs. Neces­
sarily, our successful investigation of program fraud cases requires 
the good will and active cooperation of our assistants and HEW's 
investigators. I believe that such cooperation presently exists be­
tween our staffs and that we can look forward to continuing in this 
relationship. 

Prosecution of home health care frauds is a lengthy process. 
Only recently has HEW been accorded the resources which are a 
prerequisite to our staffing the k.ind of grand jury investigation 
necessary to a thorough, successful prosecution. Any grand jury 
investigation must be assisted and guided by a staff of experienced 
auditors and criminal investigators working as a team and capable 
of seeing such an investigation through the trial stage. 

In this district we have seen that HEW, as its resources become 
availa.ble, is ready and eager to assign the manpower to investigate 
and prosecute those cases in this district which warrant investiga­
tion and prosecution. As HEW has supplied the investigative man-
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power, we have endeavored to su 1 
U.s. attorney to conduct the investi&~dTona corresponding assistant 
. As Mr. Lowe may have explain d . f 

tIve teams are headed by att e, some 0 the HEW investiga-
Federal prosecutive ex erience °ThYS, ~on:e. of whom have prior 
assistance to our stafl and ·t·· es~ mdlvldua~s will be of great 
appropriate time such individ~als entide~Yf concelVable that at an 
responsibility. s cou ,1 necessary, be given trial 

Successful prosecution of th . 
part Gf both the prosecuto~ e:~dcaths ~eqU1~~S experience, on the 
mvestigation of such cases and . e mv~s ~gat~rs, both in the 
leg~l problems that develop dUri:lt~ri~e dIffIcultIes of proof and 
sanl~, then, experience in the firsi fi and ~pon appeal. Neces­
creatmg a pattern for the investigati~:S ~as~sllis a prerequisite to 
and l?recedent for prosecution strategy W 0 ow and as. a model 
reachmg that stage. . e are only Just now 

As an example the fifth . . 
versed a medicar~ fr d clrCl;ut c0';1r.t of appeals recently re-
i~g kickbacks in a l:bor~{oOrsec~~~n an~m~ in this district involv­
kICk~ack scheme which ulti~atel rn:' flUdm~ that the particular 
~edICa~e and consequently to the lax esu ed m a great.er cost to 
l~ke thIS necessarily must serve p~Yder was not a cnme. Cases 
tlOns. as gUl eposts to futUre prosecu-

Another factor that contributes to th " 
and the delay in prosecution in e dIffIculty of prosecution 
co~plexi~y of the regulatory sc~:! t<?i\~lealth care cases is the 
latIOns WIth which a potential defi d' 10 a IOn of the law or regu­
ly not easily susceptible of proofn snt ~.aYl?e charged are usual­
Code of Federal Regulations re u·· peCl lca y, for example, the 
ers fJf ~~rvices must be based q o~e~hth~~ all payments to provid­
~ervICes and it also requires that c e ~easona~le cost of such 
necess~ry and proper costs" wh' hsts w~ICh are l.ncurred must be 

develop~ng and maintaining the Ie at~e aPfProl?nate and help in 
and actIvities." opera IOn 0 patIent care facilities 

Application of these standards in . 
matter, particularly where th G partIcular cases is not an easy 
i~ten~, beyond a reasonable doubIernm~ht must prove fraudulent 
WIth Incurring or claiming reimb ,on e part of those charged 
tures. Many of the kinds of ~rsement for particular expendi-
ih. the Comptroller General ~x~:;:~~reC of this n~ture a~e detailed 
t IS year, with which I am sure 0 f on~~ess, Issued m May of 

In this overall connection Ie lOU are amIlIar. 
!Dent 1 from the Department of J me. read. to. you l?art of a state­
mg home health care investigatio~s~tlCe Cnmmal DIvision concern-

CRIMINAL DIVISION STATEMENT ON FRAUD IN HEW' H 
MATTEHS SOME HEALTH CARE FRAUD 

In 1976, the Senate Committee on A . 
dPegatio.t;ls. of fraud in the home hea'th gmg referred .to the Department of Justice 
hlfficu~t JOInt HEW/FBI investigatio~ h~~r~ pr1frdm III nort~ern California. A very 
in~~r~edi~~h cTh atg~ncy's. chi~f financial offi~~r ~h~e~~stly ~n a guilty plea by.the 
. . d' . y. a mvestIgatIOn and a s d"l . a ormer employee of the 
JUriS ICtIOn are continuing. Prosecutive st~~fn slbl. ar mves~igation in the same 

are emg supphed by both the U.S. 

, The full statement appears in appendix 1, item 4, page 70. I 
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attorney in the Northern District of California and the Fraud Section of the Crimi­
nal Division. 

For the past two years, a second home health care investigation has been ongoing 
in the Southern District of Florida. That investigation, staffed jointly by the U.S. 
attorney's office and the fraud section is presently before a Federal grand jury. In 
addition, the U.S. attorney in Miami is staffing several other fraud investigations 
involving home health care. These lnvestigations are the result of referrals from the 
Inspector General of HEW. , 

These experiences have given the Department of Justice a variety of insights into 
the home health care program structure, regulations, and procedures. There shculd 
be no doubt that simply due to the very nature of the program-health care services 
in the home-fraud investigations are very difficult. Further, due to the wide scope 
of the program, broadly worded regulations which are designed to insure program 
flexibility make the prosecution of these investigations most difficult. Finally, the 
key role of the intermediaries in the administration of the program complicate the 
investigations. 

We are unable at this time to speak specifically about the pending investigations 
which are largely the source of our knowledge on the home health care program. 
The fraud section of the criminal division has assigned four attorneys to these cases 
and hm; made a broad commitment to the Inspector General of HEW to support his 
programs. 

The Inspector General of HEW is very familiar with the difficulties in these 
investigations and the program weaknesses the investigations have revealed. We 
would defer to his observations in this regard. 

The criminal division is committed to the success of the HEW Inspector General's 
investigation programs; health care and home health care fraud cases in particular 
are one of our highest priorities. As Senator Chiles is particUlarly aware, GSA and 
Defense Department matters also require high prosecution attention. 

At the conclusion of the investigations presently staffed by the fraud section, the 
attorneys assigned will be made available to the staff of the committee to share, 
within permitted procedures, the results of the investigation. 

Finally, let me say that I share your concern that the prosecu­
tive process be speeded up. 

Obviously, more prosecutors and more investigators would help. 
Equally important, however, we need a regUlatory scheme which 
imposes clear requirements upon providers and operators of home 
health agencies so that it will be clear to all parties concerned 
what claims for reimbursement are simply not allowed and that 
any effort to make such claims would be fraudulent. Prosecutors 
and investigators would not, therefore, have to search for other 
evidence of fraudulent intent as they do now. Other controls which 
must be considered include setting maximum fee schedules for 
services and more frequent, thorough audits. 

Clearly for prosecution to have a deterrent effect and to have an 
impact upon the activities of unscrupulous home health operators, 
prosecutions must be frequent and swift. If we had more prosecu­
tors, more agents, and a bet.ter regulatory scheme, this would be 
accomplished to some degree. However, it will still take many 
months for the investigation and trial and still many more months 
thereafter after appeals before any defendant actually goes to jail. 
But we must remember, however, that the criminal investigative 
and prosecution process, no matter how swift, is not the whole 
answer. It is necessary to hit unscrupulous home health care pro­
viders equally hard in the pocketbook. To the extent that it is 
possible, this should be done administratively. 

Home health care administrators and operators should be held 
personally liable for fraud and abuses which occur in their agen­
cies. Reimbursements must not only be recovered but there must 
also be a punitive element as well. This can only be done with 
some concept of personal liability, since in the cases of those home 
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health care agencies which are 100 percent reimbursed by medi­
care any recovery will occur to the detriment of the Federal Treas­
ury. 

Once again let me thank you, Senator, for the opportunity to 
appear today. If the committee members have any questions, I or 
Patrick Sullivan, the Chief of my Criminal Division, or Joel 
Rosenthal, Chief of the Fraud Section, will be happy to respond. 

With respect to some of the more particularized cases that you 
may be interest.ed-in; to the extent that response would not preju­
dice any ongoing grand jury investigation we will certainly try to 
be cooperative. I want to defer to the chief of my fraud section, Mr. 
Rosenthal, where it involves the interacting of representatives of 
HEW with our own office since he is most closely associated with 
what that relationship has been. 

Senator CHILES. Thank you, sir. 
Let me say at the outset that I don't want to impinge on any of 

your active investigations so if I touch into that area just feel free 
to tell me that we are in a dangerous area. 

You cited that the present medicare program currently offers no 
incentives to control fraud or abuse and cited the difficulties in 
obtaining prosecution in many of these cases and going through 
with the prosecution. What is your opinion as to whether we need 
to have a civil penalty bill to try to address areas that fit into the 
fringe, or the borderline, as to outright criminal fraud and in areas 
where it is very difficult to obtain prosecution and conviction? 

Mr. ESKENAZI. I think that Mr. Lowe articulated the very legiti­
mate problem that this would pose with respect to the judgment 
proof nature of some of the targets involved but the concept, the 
attachment of personal liability, I think, is a matter that has to be 
considered very seriously. I know that the Department has given 
substantial consideration to the question of appropriate bonding in 
these instances. 

Mr. Rosenthal, do you have any observations in this respect? 
Mr. ROSENTHAL. I can only say one or two things based on my 

experience in New York medicare fraud a couple years ago and the 
fact that there was no real civil penalty provision in the manner in 
which reimbursements were made. The people who we prosecuted 
told us later on that they were encouraged because the worst they 
thought they would face was having to pay the money back, and 
the same notion could probably be attributed to people in home 
health. I am not saying that I would, but certainly where there is a 
lack of any kind of deep pocket theory that if you commit a fraud 
or an abuse, you are going to be personally responsible for it that 
that would create deterrence. As a practical matter it would 
amount to recoveries that are not possible now with 100 perc enters 
in regard to getting money back that had been misspent. 

Senator CHILES. You mentioned the necessity to convene a 
grand jury early on in a home health fraud case and you cited a lot 
of reasons for that. 'W ould it be possible using the Office of Inspec­
tor General personnel, because they are now putting together 
teams in which they will have competent investigators and audi­
tors, to initially try to short circuit, or not go before the grand jury 
that early? 
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I know the time delays you are going to be in. In other. ~ords, 
the Office of Inspector General has the subpena power admmlstra­
tively and otherwise to get information. So you cou~d depend on 
them more to make the case as opposed to referrmg. the case. 

It would seem that with the workload that you are talkmg abo~t, 
even if we get a civil fraud division in Florid~, that. ~ou are still 
going to have a real problem o~ manpower m ad~ItIon to your 
assistant district attorneys and mvestIgators and It woul~ seem 
that these people would know more of what you are lookmg for 
because they are more specialized. 

We put together the strike forces in which we use peopl~ now 
from the Department of Labor; they are the most competent mv.es-

" tigators. When we were about to lose th<;>se pe~sonnel, we worried 
about possible labor abuse problems ~hICh mIght come up If we 
lost this expertise and about the particular sort of subpena power 
that the Department of Labor had, or their right to .go in and l?ok 
at all records, as opposed to having to go t?rough WIth everythm9"' 
It seemed that that kind of approach mIght make sense and It 
would short-circuit the calling of the grand jury. ... . 

Mr. ESKENAZI. I think we have explored the possibIlI.ty of makmg 
better utilization of the resources that could be provIded throug~ 
HEW attorney staffing and consider the possibility altogether feasI­
ble to have special assistant U.S. attorneys. We have not really 
considered that. I am aware of the creation of a separate task force 
in the sense that strike forces have been created across the country 
to deal with the problems of organized crime for various reasons. I 
think that perhaps the Departmen~ will ~?-ve .to speak to that issue 
itself but I do see a more cooperative utilIzatIOn of those resources 
for the very purposes that you pointed out; namely, that they are 
the people with the expertise. 

We do face some other problems. I know, Pat, you m.ay have 
some thinking on this line and perhaps you can express It to the 
Senator. . . thO 

Mr. SULLIVAN. The grand juries have always been active m IS 
particular area. Without them, we probably could not prosecute 
most white-collar crimes. Recently, however, there have been cer­
tain, in my view, impediments placed ~n ~ront of the gran.d jury 
investigations in this area. These inv~stIgatIOns largely reqUlr~ th~ 
subpenaing of tons of records, sometimes from whatever the mstI-
tution is that is b~ing investigated. . 

Since the passing of the Financial Privacy Act, and c.ertam. gr~nd 
jury procedural laws, they have not obstructed any lI~vest~gatIOn 
but they have certainly slowed it down. when the grand Jury I.S used 
and in the context of bank records whICh are always a very Impor­
tant tool. For any type of white-collar investigation .there is a 
multitude of paperwork that has to be prepared. 

Under the provisions of the Financial. Priv?-cy Act whenever any 
record that is subpenaed to a grand Jury IS turned over to the 
investigators of that particular investigation such as a home hea~th 
investigator, any other type paperwork must be pr~pared to adVIse 
the courts just who has access to these grand .Jury subpenaed 
records. All of this tends to slow down the operatIOn of the grand 
jury investigation. 
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Other Federal agencies do have subpena power. The DEA, Drug 
Enforcement Administration, does have an administrative subpena 
power. The IRS has an administrative subpena power. That sub­
pena power is often used in their investigations and it circumvents 
these restrictions that have recently been placed on the grand jury. 
So a subpena power with the Inspector General's office could be 
well utilized in these investigations we are discussing today. 

Senator CHILES. What do you think of the other cooperative team 
approach to having a special U.S. attorney made out of part of the 
team where he had prosecutive experience before? 

Mr. SULLIVAN. I think our experience with those types of units 
has been fairly successful, Senator. We had such a unit that pros­
ecuted the doctor/lawyer teams of ambulance chasers that still 
exist in this area made up of investigators from State and Federal 
agencies with several different assistant U.S. attorneys advising 
and guiding the prosecution. 

Creation of such units I think would be of assistance to us in this 
area as well. There is always the problem of finding the qualified 
people for this type of investigation. You cannot hire anyone just 
off the street. It must be someone with several years of experience 
in Federal prosecution before they can proceed in this area. But 
the concept is a good one and we have always had good experience 
with it. 

Senator CHILES. Well, I would hope that wearing your hat as a 
Justice Department spokesman, as well as the U.S. attorney for the 
Southern District of Florida, that this could be explored with the 
Justice Department not only with south Florida but also for the 
rest of the country with the hope of trying to put together the 
same problems that you are talking about that handicap you in 
Florida and handicap every U.s. attorney in trying to get any kind 
of priority to these cases and trying to see that successful prosecu­
tions are going forward. 

You stress the need to have a regulatory scheme which imposes 
clear requirements on providers and operators of home health 
agencies so that it would be clear to all parties concerned that 
claims for reimbursements are simply not allowed and that any 
effort to make such a claim would be fraudulent. I think that is 
one of the most important things and that is what we have been 
trying to have happen since we started this in 1976. 

I think that the agencies are entitled to that-the providers. 
They are entitled to know clearly what the rules are. I think one of 
their biggest problems is that they are in an area where someone is 
legitimately trying to do the job properly. As long as you have the 
gray areas and someone can reasonably say, well, I think this is 
legitimate or someone could advise them or they could see that the 
other agency is doing it that way, then we have to do it that way to 
compete, then it just becomes a part of the system. I think where 
you can make the rules very clear, you can tell the people with 
white hats from the people with black hats, and it is a lot easier. 

I know that that is not something that you all can do. I hope 
that that is something that we can get the Health Care Financing 
Administration and HEW to do. Congress, if necessary, has to step 
in and try to make the regulation. 
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I have some other questions and I may submit some of them. We 
are running over awful long in our hearing. 

We thank you very much for your statement. 
Mr. ESKENAZI. Thank you very much for allowing us to appear, 

Senator. 
Senator CHILES. Our next witness will be Judith Travis who is 

the president of the Florida Association of Home Health Agencies 
and executive director of the Visiting Nurse Association of Hills­
borough County, Inc., in Tampa, Fla. 

It is nice to see you again. 
Mrs. TRAVIS. Thank you. 
Senator CHILES. You testified before me in 1976. 
Mrs. TRAVIS. Yes, I did. 
Senator CHILES. I understand you are kind of wearing two hats 

today. 
Mrs. TRAVIS. Yes. 
Senator CHILES. Proceed with your statement. 

STATEMENT OF JUDITH M. TRAVIS, R.N., B.S.N., TAMPA, FLA., 
PRESIDENT, FLORIDA ASSOCIATION OF HOME HEALTH 
AGENCIES, AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, VISITING NURSE AS­
SOCIATION OF HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, INC. 
Mrs. TRAVIS. Thank you. 
I ~~)Uld l~ke to expr.ess appreciation to you for allowing me to 

partICIpate m the hearmg. I do really feel that by doing so you are 
giving an opportunity for some of the positive aspects of the pro­
gram to be at least recognized and put into proper place. 

The members of our association feel very appreciative of the fact 
that ~ou have looked into this problem; that you are really inter­
ested m home health care, and that you feel that it is a very viable 
system and an important component of the health care delivery 
system. I would like to address some of the problems we see. I have 
seen many of the problems myself from a firsthand viewpoint. 

Before I really get involved in the testimony I would like to refer 
back; I do have a copy of my presentation for you. 

I have included with my statement ${lme attachments 1 that I 
feel are very important to be at least reviewed and considered as 
far a~ the consideration of the whole testimony is concerned. I feel 
that.m many cases t~ere has been an attempt to add additional 
reqUIrements, regulatIOns, and so forth, without really recognizing 
what already is required. 
~or your information I ha-ye included a copy of a licensure appli­

c~tIOn for the State of FlorIda. As you well know, Florida has a 
lIcensure law. I have also included a licensure survey form which 
in many ways is duplicative of the medicare certification process 

I have also included a copy of the Federal home health agency 
survey report, a copy of the Florida minimum standards for home 
health agencies, and charts and forms used by one home health 
agency which are representative of those required that do meet the 
standards throughout the State. 

I think you will see that there are certain requirements that 
must be included. Basically, these are universal although each 
agency has its name at the top, generally speaking.' 

I All attachments, except the code of ethics, are retained in committee files. 
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Other attachments, of course, relate to the USHHAR study; and 
forms from the Florida Association of Home Health Agencies, 
which include the code of ethics,2 the membership agency question­
naire, and the philosophy of home care. 

With that, I will move into the meat of the presentation. One 
thing that we often hear is that we look at home care as an 
alternative for institutionalization. I think in many cases this is 
true, but so often I have heard people say, "Well, look at all the 
elderly that are in nursing homes that should not be there." But if 
you look at the specific elderly that are in these nursing homes, in 
many cases these are those who would fall into the area of custodi­
al care and there is no way under the present system that that can 
be overcome. Medicare does not reimburse for custodial care. I 
think this is another area that I would like to address at a later 
time with you, because I do feel that this is something that is very 
important. 

The complexities of providing care and continuing to meet stand­
ards are compounded by confusion, vascillation, and inconsistency 
in interpretation of guidelines, not only in the provision of care, 
but also in the area of reimbursement; and I am sure you have 
heard that before today. Retroactive disallowances of payments 
previously authorized and paid make it extremely difficult for 
agencies to continue to operate with stability and foresight. 

One case in point is that of an agency which submitted its 
management consultant contract for review and approval in 1974. 
Not any of the con.tract fees were disallowed in 1975; however, in 
1978, when audits were conducted for 1976 and 1977, 50.3 percent 
of the contract fees was disallowed. We talk about abuse but how 
can it be abuse when it has been previously authorized? I think 
this is something that really seriously needs to be considered. 

This disallowance is presently being appealed. The appeal proc­
ess in itself is a problem since it takes approximately a year for a 
hearing because of the provider reimbursement review board's 
backlog. In the meantime, the provider is faced with repayments 
pending the decision. 

In order to deal with the fiscal intermediaries and the variance 
in interpretations, our State association established a liaison com­
mittee, made up of a person from the department of health and 
rehabilitative services and representatives of the intermediaries. In 
the past it has dealt not only with fiscal considerations and disal­
lowances, but also in the area of coverage issues. It has appeared at 
times that denials of visits for patients with a particular diagnosis 
occur almost on a periodic basis. . 

A.s an example, focusing in on patients that have Foley catheters; 
for a while, all of the home health aide visits to Foley catheter 
patients were being denied, regardless of the severity of the pa­
tient's infirmities. I have had it mentioned to me on any number of 
occasions that denials seemed to increase near the close of the 
fiscal year. I have seen cases that in a 30-day billing period there 
would be, for example, 4 visits out of 13 denied but there was no 
attempt to identify which ones were denied; it was, just said that 
there were too many, That response, to me, does not seem rational. 

2 See appendix 2, page 76. 
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Agencies have been. mand~ted. to determine when a p.atient no 
longer meets the medIcare crIterIa for car~; so by extenslVe study, 
working with the liaison committee, a~d trIal.and error, they h.ave 
become quite proficient ~n~ accur~te m makmg these determma­
tions resulting in a decllnmg de mal rate. Apparently the1 have 
done their job too well, since I understand t?at the o~s~rvatIOn has 
been made that there are not enough demals on VISltS as far .as 
home health is concerned. Of course, wh~n the h?m~. he~lth demal 
rate goes above 2.5 percent: then th~ ~aIver of lIabIlIty IS lost ar:d 
the agency is then responsIble for VISItS they have mad~ .when, m 
essence, perhaps they did not really know that these VISItS would, 
not be covered. . . 

F AHHA members have worked with other Stat~ assoclatIon~ and 
national organizations in an effort to develop umv~rs~l~ consIstent 
application of the .guidelines and to. expand ~he avaIlabIlIty of ~ome 
health services wIthout an undue mcrease I? cost to th~ me~I~are 
program. Many meetings have left the partIClpan~s feelmg dISIllu­
sioned and angry and that attendance at the meetmgs had been an 
exercise in futility. .. 

There has even been inconsistenc~ in the I:nte~pretatIO~ of the 
guidelines on a geographic basis. Patients c~mmg Into FlorIda who 
have been under a home health program m another part of the 
country expect the same type of interpre~ati,on here be~ause th~se 
are Federal guidelines, but they do vary m mterpretatIOn. I thmk 
the interpretation in Florida is much more strmgent and much 
more conservative than it is in other areas of the country. 

Last February, I attended a .m~eting in Atlanta sponsor~d by 
region IV of the Natio~lal ASSO(;Ia~IOn of H?m~ Health Agenc~es to 
meet with representatIves of the mtermediarIeS and HCF A m an 
effort to solve some of the difficultie~. In the morni!lg, there w~s a 
panel which consisted of representatives from provIders of varIO';1s 
States, and we each discussed the proble:ms that we ~ncounte!ed m 
our State. Those who were on the panel m the mormng were m the 
audience in the afternoon. 

The panel in the afternoon consisted of representatives of HC~A 
and the intermediaries. One of the comments I made that morn~ng 
had to do with the fact that the nurses in my agency: are makmg 
two to three less visits a day than they were 5 years ago, because of 
paperwork. The comment was made, "Prepare yourselves because . ." more IS commg. . 

It does not seem appropriate, or even rational,. to reqmre more 
layers of duplicative documentation without knowmg what already 
exists and how the system works, from t?e initial. referral .ri~ht 
through to the receipt of payment for serVIces. The mtermed~arIes 
are involved in care, and I think have been extremely responSIve to 
the problems that we have encountered, but they are bet:veen a 
rock and a hard place. I think ~hey have b~en very re~eptIve ~nd 
have tried very hard to work wIth the provIders. At thIS m~etmg, 
and at numerous others, it was suggested that representatlV~s ?f 
HCFA and intermediaries go on visits with the nurse, go withm 
the agency askinp' questions, going actually from person to person, 
asking "Why ar: you doing this and what significance does it 
have?" I don't think HCF A really knows. I mean you can look and 

. b "th' b h " "I say these are the problems ecause ere IS a use ere, or 
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think there is fraud there," but they should really get down to see 
what control is going on, and then certainly more reasonable and 
consistent guidelines can Come out from that. 

As you know, the implementation of the uniform system for 
home health agency reporting has been a serious concern to all of 
us, and the particular agency with which I am affiliated was one of 
the test sites. I am not an accountant and I cannot speak with full 
knowledge of accounting principles, but I do know the result -we 
saw-and we have not had the final report on the study as yet. The 
acco~ntant tha~ does the consulting for our agency and Ben Bailey, 
who IS the chaIrman of the FAHHA finance committee were both 
pre.sent fo~ the confereIl:ce and both of them have written letters 
whICh are mcluded m thIS presentation. 

Initiall~, when cost caps came out, I thought that they were 
astronomIcal and I am sure there were some others who did in 
particular areas of the country, but then when our cost report was 
redone by the USHHAR system so much of the administrative cost 
was broken over into the contract services that our speech therapy 
went way up almost beyond the cost caps, and I think we have a 
pretty conservative agency. So if it can happen to one that has 
always been extremely conservative, it can happen to anybody I 
think that ~his is something that really needs to be looked 'at 
because I thm~ the USHHAR system needs some serious changes. 

We'do, I thmk, speak out very much in favor of the uniform 
system of cost reporti~g; I think it would be more meaningful to 
us, as well as to the reImbursement program, but I think there are 
!llany problems that should be resolved before this system can be 
Implemented. 

Then we g~t .t~ consideration of the 100 percent agency. I have 
hea~d t~e defIIl:ItI,on of that and the definition that I am currently 
~etb~g IS that It IS any agency that receives 85 percent or more of 
ItS reImbursement from the medicare program. This includes many 
health. departm~nts VNA's and whatever else, because medicare is 
the pl'lmary reImbursement source for most of the home health 
program, particularly in Fiorida. 

One of the problems that we have seen is that we need to explore 
the reasons. why there. ar~ so ~any 100 percent or nearly 100 
perceIl:t .~edICare agencIes m Flonda and determine the validity of 
the C~'ItIClsm that has been levied because it is this way. I think 
~hat If you .felt that there was an agency participating exclusively 
m the :r;nedICare progral? and it tended to abuse, or its costs were 
out of hne, certamly thIS would be something that you would look 
at; but, on the other hand, there are many agencies that don't fit 
that. patter? an? t~ere are legitimate reasons why we see this 
partICular sItuatIOn m Florida. 

No agency can be expected to provide care without full reim­
bursement for the reasonable co~t incurred; I think in most cases 
the agency .c?uld not long surVIve by doing so. The majority of 
peopl.e reqUIrmg home health services are elderly and medicare 
rec~pIents; many are living with fi:c~d incomes. Very few of these 
patients and few of the others reqmrmg home health services could 
afford to pay for .the f~ll cost of care. F AHHA for several years has 
~ncouraged the mclusIOn of home health coverage in all medical 
msurance plans. 

i 
I 
i 
[, 

II 
lJ 

~ 
Ii 

1\ 
'! 

il 
U 
,II 

11 
Ii 
II 
Ii 
(; 

/I 
I' 
I 



i 

i 
'i 

48 

Another reason for a high medicare participation is the fact that 
many agencies cannot afford to participate in the medicaid pro­
gram. So long as the medicaid reimbursement system fails to meet 
the home health agencies' expense for providing services there will 
remain a barrier to care for those patients who reside in areas 
where there are no home health agencies receiving community 
funding. Medicaid is paying $16 for a nursing visit and $9 for a 
home health aide visit. I don't think you can find service anywhere 
at that price. The Council of Home Health Agencies and Communi­
ty Health Servi.ces of the. National League for Nursi;ng has recom­
mended in testImony dehvered before the Senate Fmance Health 
Subcommittee that title XIX mandate cost-related prospective re-
imbursemen t. 

In summary, we see at ~east three fact9rs in~olved ~n the~e being 
a high percentage of medIcare only provIders m Flonda: F~rst,. t.he 
financial limitations of the patient himself; second, nonavaIlabIhty 
of insurance coverage; and third, the lack of adequate reimburse­
ment under the medicaid program. 

Recently I was called by a representative from the medicaid 
office in Tallahassee; she was interested in knowing which agencies 
happened to be medicaid providers and did I know when she gave 
me a list of agencies she had that had medicaid provider numbers I 
was amazed. 

One of the first actions of F AHHA was to establish an ethics 
committee composed of representatives from each of the five re­
gions in the State. The committee elected its own chairman. This 
committee back in 1975, put together a code of ethics. Subsequent­
ly copies ~f the code have been sent out to various State and 
National organizations that were interested in the code of ethics. I 
think that it has been a very important committee and I would like 
to commend it for its activity. 

However, the way it was designed was t~at it would pr~cess 
complaints that were brought to the commIttee; the commIttee 
does not go out and police. One thing that was just decided recently 
was that if complaints were found about an agency that was not a 
member of the State association and there were problems inherent 
in that agency that were obvious, then the complaint should be 
directed to the executive committee, as opposed to the ethics com­
mittee, because by the adjustment procedure of the ethics commit­
tee it was clothed in secrecy until actual resolution of the problem, 
so it seemed a problem to handicap the ethics committee with 
confidentiality about complaints that were already public knowl­
edge. 

In an effort to assure full compliance with FAHHA standards, 
the committee developed a form which would be completed by 
agencies applying for membership in the association and the appli­
cant must also agree in writing to subscribe to the code of ethics 
and be reviewed and accepted by the board of directors. 

Providers have long been concerned that decisions are made and 
requirements mandated without benefit of any contributions or 
comments by those actually involved in the delivery of care. There 
are two glaring examples, and I am sure you are familiar with both 
of them but I would like to have them included in the testimony. 
The first dealt with the directive concerning prefilling of insulin 
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syringes for the diabetic. Of course, many cannot see well enough 
to fill syringes, but they can give their daily injections and manage 
to function fairly independently. 

For a long while medica:re had been reimbursing for weekly 
visits by home health nurses to prefill seven syringes which could 
then be stored in the patient's refrigerator. The directive stated 
that this procedure was no longer considered a "skilled" service, 
keeping in mind of course that many of these elderly people lived 
at home alone or that their spouse was as blind or as visually 
impaired as they were. 

After thousands of letters from National and State organizations, 
as well as individual agencies, the bureau then compromised and 
issued a new directive stating that payment would be made for the 
nurse to visit every 2 weeks to fill seven syringes. On alternate 
weeks payment would be made for a home health aide to fill seven 
syringes, incidentally, while she was in the home helping the pa­
tient with a bath. 

Well, no thought had been given to the potential astronomical 
increase in the rates for liability coverage once the insurance carri­
ers discovered that nonprofessionals were filling syringes, or the 
fact that filling syringes is not considered a legal responsibility or a 
legal procedure for an aide to do in most States-it certainly is 
against the Nurse Practice Act in the State of Florida-and the 
danger to patients because, of course as we know, insulin has to be 
measured very, very carefully and it is a very small syringe and it 
takes good eyesight and good knowledge. Ultimately, the issue was 
resolved and medicare is again covering the weekly visits by the 
nurse because of a vast letter writing campaign and intervention 
by concerned legislators such as you, Senator Chiles, and Congress­
man Pepper. 

Medicare announced to oxygen suppliers-now this is the direc­
tive that concerned the oxygen issue-and I think that it was 
extremely significant because this was a directive that was includ­
ed in the carrier's transmittal-and it just happened to be brought 
to our attention. This was something that really had no impact on 
home health agencies, but when we realized what impact it would 
have on patients, we were all extremely concerned. 

The decision was made that after January 31, 1979, oxygen in 
the home would no longer be reimbursed under the medicare pro­
gram unless the patient had an arterial blood gas study which 
reflected a hypoxic state, defined as a P02 level of 55 or below. The 
procedure for drawing the blood is costly and done only in hospitals 
in most areas of the country. 

No consideration was given to the potential hazard for the pa­
tient, the expense of travel by ambulance for those not able to go 
by car t~ the hospital, ~or to the disb:~.~ce involved. Not only was 
the reqUIrement for thIS study a terrIfIC burden for the patients 
needing oxygen but many pulmonary physicians felt that the arbi­
trary standard of a 55 P02 level was dangerously low. There were 
committees in many of the medical associations around the country 
standing ready to act on that directive. 

Fortunately, at the 11th hour, a new directive came out saying 
this would not be implemented until it was published in the Feder­
al Register, and then there would be opportunity for public com-
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ment. I think if these things had been considered to begin with, the 
fear of the patients involved and the problem of having again to go 
to bat would never have occurred. In fact, I think these are two 
disasters that should never have happened. 

We look at the patient, too. I think if you look at it in one way 
by income level, you would see that if he ha? t~e money, he w~)Uld 
have paid for the oxygen rather than submIt hImself to the vIgor­
ous transportation to the hospital for the unpleasant arterial blood 
test. On the other hand, when the poor patient who could not 
afford to pay for the oxygen, got into pulmonary distress, he would 
have to be taken by ambulance to the hospital to be admitted, and 
thtlt would have been costly to the program. 

Florida passed its licensure law for home health agencies in July 
1975 which included requirement for certificate of need from the 
health systems agency. Subsequently, through a misunderstanding, 
a letter was issued by the HSA giving a blanket certificate of need 
to approximately 12 agencies in a county which already had nu­
merous agencies. I knew that schedules for licensure and certifica­
tion surveys had already been made so I called HEW in Atlanta 
and inquired if something could not be done to delay the certifica­
tion process because this delay would help prevent the escalation of 
cost which otherwise would surely result. I was told there was 
nothing they could do. Once the agencies met the State criteria, 
that was all they could do. They would have to accept it and go 
ahead and certify for medicare participation. 

We are concerned about the cost caps. I mentioned that when I 
talked about USHHAR. It would seem that when a contract could 
be drawn, there would be incentive there for an economical system 
for reimbursement. I think that to say "OK anything up to this 
point is acceptable." I don't see that as a good mechanism that is 
cost-effective. Perhaps those more sophisticated in financial mat­
ters would find it so, I don't know 

On August 14, 1979, a meeting on fraud and abuse was held in 
Atlanta actended by representatives of HCFA and the fiscal inter­
mediaries. Considered at this meeting were 11 issues such as the 
use of hospital coordinators and administrative salaries. I have 
heard the issues mentioned in testimony earlier, On at least two 
occasions, one of the intermediary officials stated that he had 
heard "quality of care" mentioned not one time, but that the 
quality of care being delivered was very high. He was told there 
was no time to discuss that issue because they were there to 
discuss the bad things, not the good. 

Since its inception, FAHHA has been vitally concerned with the 
quality of home health care being delivered. In March 1977 an ad 
hoc committee of quality assurance was appointed. The committee 
was changed from ad hoc status to that of a standing committee in 
August of that year. An agency can go back and read the nurses' 
notes and see what actually happened with the patient, what 
changes were involved with that patient because of the interven­
tion of the health ca:re team; if you don't measure up and you could 
recognize it yourself. This is not an end in itself but it shows the 
agency what areas of delivery of care need changing or need 
addressing. 
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The committee also developed a philosophy of home care which 
was adopted by the association and has drafted a home health 
patient's bill of rights. The nursing committee established outcome 
criteria for 19 disease processes. Currently the physical and speech 
therapists are working on outcome criteria for their respective 
disciplines. I have a copy of our quality assurance program which I 
would like to leave with you. 

In a letter to Joan Buddi, current chairman of the quality assur­
ance committee, from Joan Casserta, executive director, CHHAI 
CHS, National League for Nursing, the following statement was 
made: 

To sum it up, you have made an excellent beginning to a quality assurance plan 
which has implications for utilization and funding of home health care . . . Mean­
while we await further developments from your state with interest. 

I would like to call attention again to the statement made by Mr. 
Lowe, where he said: 

We have dedicated ourselves to insure that these programs will offer better and 
more accessible care while we strive to close loopholes that invite abuse. 

I don't want abuse and I am a taxpayer; we all are. I am very, 
very concerned where my tax dollars are going. 

Fraud, I think, is a problem and since it is a problem, it has to be 
identified and taken care of. But in the S.9.me set of circumstances 
within testimony I would like to point out again the positive fea­
tures of the home health delivery system. I think that there are 
some very, very good things that have been done in Florida and I 
feel that Florida in many ways has a potential and has served as a 
leader to many State associations. 

I have attended meetings and I have been asked, "How does 
Florida deal with this?" "How do you cope?" Let me tell you, many 
copies of the code of ethics have been requested; this type of thing. 
I think we have worked very hard to enhance the program and to 
improve the quality of care that is delivered to our patients. We 
are very concerned about our patients. 

I thank you again for the opportunity to be here, and I will try 
to answer any questions that you may have. 

Senator CHILES. I thank you for your statement and I thank you 
for what you said in closing. You said in closing that you are 
concerned about the questions of abuse. Your statement really 
didn't address those questions. 

Mrs. TRAVIS. That is true. Senator, did you see my letter? It was 
addressed to the administrator of the medicare home health care 
benefit, and that is what I geared it to, because I felt it was 
important to bring in the positive side of the program. 

Senator CHILES. But I am glad that you are as concerned as I am 
that we still have these problems because I think that you agree 
that the worst thing that can happen to home health in Florida 
and in the Nation is to let these issues of fraud drag on without 
being resolved. That is all that anybody is ever going to talk to or 
report on every time you bring the program up. It even happens in 
the Congress now when we start talking about the dollars we are 
going to appropriate, how in the world are we going to go forward 
with national health insurance, for example, when we cannot get 
rid of the problems that we have in medicare and medicaid, when 
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we cannot deal effectively with those programs. When we cannot 
deal without fraud, how in the world can we conceive that we are 
going to open this up to treatment of everybody from infancy to the 
time that they die and that we are going to be able to afford the 
cost of that? There is just no way in the world. 

Mrs. TRAVIS. If I may make a comment here, I think the points 
that you made are very well taken and I agree. However, I think it 
is important to recognize that many of the abuses that you are 
alluding to, in fact most, are some time back in the past and there 
has been a great deal of progress. I think there has been a great 
deal of guidance from the intermediaries, that you see very little 
over utilization as far as patient visits are concerned and this type 
of thing. 

Senator CHILES. Well, we have not heard as much about over-
utilization this morning, and I hope that that is not the problem 
that it was before. 

Mrs. TRAVIS. No. 
Senator CHILES. A lot of the problems we talked about in 1976, a 

lot of the problems that Sam Gibbons talked about in 1978, are the 
same problems that we are talking about today-some of the rip­
o1'fs, some of the money charges that are made for startup costs, 
solicitation, all the double billing that goes on. Those things were 
the same things that existed before and they are still existing 
today. All we are doing is seeing more agencies, we are seeing a 
franchise that was set up where the parent is charging these 
excessive charges and getting away with it. We are seeing these 
direct tie-ins and operating between the operation. We are seeing 
again still today in Florida overutilization and expansion of serv­
ices in certain areas, and no services provided in other parts of the 
State. 

You point out that we have the Florida licensure law. Yes, we do, 
and I am glad we have it but it got there after the horse got out of 
the barn really. To come in and create one of them now with what 
was it you're supposed to have-potential 200, 300 patients? How 
many of those agencies today of the ones that we have in Florida 
have this potential right now? Many of them are grandfathered so 
they didn't come within that. 

Mrs. TRAVIS. But, Senator, I think this is a very significant point. 
Federal legislation is not including certificate of need and this is 
where it began in Florida, was including the certificate of need. In 
the rural areas if there is not a sufficient clientele for an agency to 
survive, particularly in view of the fact they cannot participate in 
the medicaid program, I think this is a very important considera­
tion. 

Senator CHILES. I agree. 
You are a member of the Hillsborough County Visiting Nurse 

Association. How many visiting nurse associations are there in the 
Florida association? 

Mrs. TRAVIS. Four. 
Senator CHILES. Does your association have proprietary agencies 

as well? 
Mrs. TRAVIS. No, sir. There are proprietary associate members, 

businesses, but not as regular members. 
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Senator CHILES. You talked a little in your statement about your 
code of ethics. I have looked over the code and it seems to try to 
resolve many problems internally. Does that mean you wa.nt to 
rep.ort .problems to medicare or other officials who might take 
actIOn If those problems come to your attention? 

Mrs. TRAVIS. No, sir, it does not. In fact, there have been cases 
where letters have been written to--

Senator CHILES. You have reported no unethical conduct on the 
part of your members? 

Mrs. TRAVIS. There was one potential member who was reported. 
Senator CHILES. Potential? 
Mrs. TRAVIS. Yes. 

, Senator CHILES. How about a member situation? 
Mrs. TRAVIS. The agencies that we came into contact with that 

would have been reported on the area as far as the fiscal abuse is 
concerned, we don't have knowledge of that. The areas ill which we 
have dealt primarily with the members have been in the area of 
what we would consider unethical practices. Certainly we would 
not be adverse to notify the powers that be if we detected an 
element of abuse or suspected fraud. 
. The thing though that we have noticed is that there were agen­

CIes that were suspended from membership after indeed the Feder­
a~ Govern~ent did mak~ a I?ove. Then we knew that these agen­
CIes were mdeed operatmg m a way that we did not feel to be 
compatible with the code of ethics. Unless we were in the business 
of reviewing everyone's cost report and this type of thing, we do~'t 
really haye the tm?-e or the autho~ity to be a policing organization 
but certamly we wIll try to deal WIth anything that was brought to 
our attention. 

I talked with Miss Deignan at one time and indicated some of 
the activities that we have done. There was a case where one of the 
physicians in an area of Florida was very concerned about home 
health care, but he was overly critical, and yet he would refer he 
wa~ stil~ referri!lg, !=lnd so I said, well, if you have specific dom­
plamts, If you WIll gIve documentation and bring it to the attention 
of the ethics committee, something will be done about it if they 
have that means. 

r:r:he outcome was that the regional ethics committee member and 
I dId go down and spend a couple of hours in a meeting with him 
and several other physicians and the social worker in the hospital 
and he was alluding to situations that had occurred 2 or 3 years 
before. I said these are areas that I think should be brought to the 
attention of the program integrity. 

He said, "I don't know who to write," and I said, ItI will tell you." 
When we got back to Tampa I sent him the information as to 
where the information should go and I strongly urged him to follow 
through with it. 

One of the agencies about which he was complaining was not a 
home health agency at all, it was an equipment company. I think 
!hese are. things .that are important, too. I think sometimes anyone 
mvolved 1ll ~ ~ehver~ of equip~ent or health care or anything else, 
as long as It IS not III a hospItal or nursing home automatically 
becomes a home health agency, and I don't think he realizes or 
recognizes the difference. 
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nor~~IS;c::;p;~[e~eih~n~~~~t~!~lthftel' th~t ~ee~ng said that she 
~hey were doing a fine job and that atell~Ies try er area, she felt 
Job so well without their h~lp. s e ran y could not do her 

Senator CHILES. I understand that . . 
all agencies to report members f b your ass~clatlOn now requires 
boards before they are accepted ~ tl~:rds o~ dt~rectwors and advisory 

Mrs. TRAVIS W 11 th assocla IOn. . hy? 
participation' i~ thee ~ge~~fe:b; the ~ttempt to /dewtify duplicative 
has only been this year that it was dm~dPdol e. ell., let's see. It 
had been worked on. We had seve 1 eCI. e 0 do thIS. The form 
ly. This ~ne was completed and ac~:p:ea(Cbn~hs °t the forn: initial­
and I belIeve that was in June of th' Y de oard of dIrectors, 
not only to be included in the IS yea~, an ~he~ were sent out, 
the existing members of the orgme~bt~rshiP applIcation, but also to 

S t c amza IOn. Mna Tr . HILES. This is to detect interlocking? 
rs. RAVIS. It was an attempt to do so; yes .. 

ac~~~a~~rt~~s~?S' Have you received those back yet and taken any 

Mrs. TRAVIS. Most of those I h t 
went out with the billing to'th ave.~? seen them because they 
fees. e eXlS mg members, membership 

Senator CHILES Do you 1 t 1 k 
your ethics committee? pan 0 00' at those? Would that be 

Mrs. TRAVIS. One copy w t t th t 
went back to the tre en 0 e reasurer. I guess two copies 
committee chairman~T~::e ah~s o:et 'bas t~.be filed w~th the ethics 
becau~e, as I say, it was just imple~en~:d tl~~e to reVIeW them yet 

I mIght add that because of dela' ~s year. 
t~ere were suspicions involved ~~ -Yt m gettmg some 9t them back 
time to fill it out II but't aI.~ 1 was a matter of I don't have 
cooperate to get them ba:k ~as Thery soon that the agencies did 
them and two originals were signed ef;; ilias n? e.fforlt not to return 

Senator CHILES We th k . e prmclpa . 
today. I agree wh~leheart:~IY 1~u he~y much for your statement 
entitled to clear regUlations Al w i £h-u kay, thB:t providers are 
problem, it seems that someb~d s:! k tl~n any time. there is a 
little more paperwork and I y m s ~y can cure it with just a 
bureaucracy. That paperworkeed that p~olIferated across all of the 
policeman. If you are oin oes no tend to be a very good 
looks like you will in t~is a~e~ iFave to hav~ some new reports, it 
new procedures, then we ou h you are g?mg to have to set some 
can get rid of that has not gb t to detek~mme what paperwork we 
percent. een wor mg. I agree with you 100 

-rrs. TRAVIS. Thank you very much 
enator CHILES. Thank you; . 

S
Mrs. TRAVIS. I certainly appreciate it. 

enator CHILES We a . t h . . re gomg 0 ear briefly from John Smith. 
STATEMENT OF JOHN B SMITH 

SEL, MEDICAL PERSONNEL 'p~~~MI, FLA., GENERAL COUN~ 
HOME HEALTH SERVICES ASSOCIATio~ND VICE CHAIRMAN, 

Mr. SMITH. Thank you, Senator. 
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I am general counsel for Medical Personnel Pool, which is a 
proprietary company headquartered in Fort Lauderdale. I am also 
vice chairman of the Home Health Services Association, which is 
the national organization of proprietary companies, equivalent to 
FARRA at the State level. The association has seven members 
with approximately 624 offices throughout the country, of which I 
believe 12 in Florida are certified participants in the medicare 
program. 

We are concerned also, Senator, about fraud and abuse not only 
in the abstract sense, but because we believe that proprietary 
agencies, certainly the ones represented by our association, are 
sometimes unfairly whitewashed by some of the charges we have 
heard brought up at these hearings. For example, I do regret--

Senator CHILES. I have heard of being unfairly tarred before but 
I have not heard of being unfairly whitewashed. 

Mr. SMITH. Well, perhaps tarred is the better word. 
I do regret, for example, Inspector General Lowe's comment that 

he finds all of the abuses applicable to proprietaries that he found 
applicable to nonprofits. I regret that that was not substantiated 
more. We do have some recommendations for dealing with fraud 
and abuse. As you may recall, we made some of these recommenda­
tions in the August 1976 hearings, so let me go over them briefly if 
I may. 

We feel that provision should be made for regional designation of 
regional fiscal intermediaries and perhaps a single national inter­
mediary for home health agencies. We believe that will result in 
more uniform audit standards, more uniform reporting controls 
and the opportunity to make better investigations of cost reports. 

We also support the prohibition of the so-called 100 percent 
provider, perhaps with the exception of the county health depart­
ments and the bona fide visiting nurse association. At the same 
time, I think we need to avoid rigid quotas for any type of patients 
that might be applicable. We also support the improved audit 
activities that are presently undertaken by HEW and the interme­
diaries. We support the reasonable system of uniform cost account­
ing, which is presently in preparation, and representatives of our 
association are participating on the advisory committees of that 
group. 

Perhaps, if I could digress for a moment on the question of 
consultants, my view is that Federal health care regulation is 
perhaps only slightly less complex now than the Internal Revenue 
Code and with the implementation of uniform cost accounting 
rules, I don't know that we can entirely eliminate the need for 
some type of consulting. The day may be approaching where a well­
minded group of community citizens and community health nurses 
won't be able to organize a visiting nurse association without 
access to outside consultants, so I think you need to be careful that 
certain standards are developed that might still permit the use of 
these types of services. 

Senator CHILES. I want to comment on the uniform cost reports. I 
have not had a chance to look into those in great detail and I hope 
to look into them further, I am glad to see that in this instance 
they are doing some expflr4!:nentation work and they are going to 
the agencies themselves '_~hd getting their input before the regula-
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tions are adopted and completed. It seems to me that it is a much 
better method than what is going on now where the hospitals are 
up in arms and have every reason to be up in arms when the first 
regulations came out. I think an awful lot of that was because 
HEW didn't get the proper input. 

My understanding is, in the uniform cost standards that they are 
looking at in your industry, that HEW is requiring a cost benefit 
analysis. I think that is essential. I hope they are going to come up 
with something that is not going to be burdensome but will provide 
some kind of standards that can be used. 

Mr. SMITH. We also support full access to financial records and to 
that extent our company, before we became involved in the medi­
care program, invited HEW's Division of Direct Reimbursement to 
come down and examine our records so we could become involved 
in it. 

We support flexible guidelines for reviewing salaries, fringe bene­
fits, service contracts and fees, and also guidelines in terms of 
percentage or numbers of administrative personnel. Obviously 
there has to be some room for reasonableness and variables, but 
perhaps these systems can work. 

We also support patient or family verification of services pro­
vided. What my company does is for every visit that is made to a 
patient we secure a signed receipt, if you will, by the patient to 
establish the patient's authority that that visit was made, and that 
would help create an audit trail that would obviously not prevent 
forgery, but it would create something else that might be done. 

I think we mentioned at your August 1976 hearings that the 
patients should receive perhaps some summary form of the agen­
cy's billing to their intermediary. Attached to that could be a 
statement of patient rights and a notice requesting the patient to 
advise the intermediary if they see anything improper in terms of 
number of visits or the type of service that was originally provided. 
This procedure might generate patient contact with the interme­
diary. Many home health recipients are not totally helpless and 
would provide some input into preventing fraud and abuse through 
that method. 

Senator CHILES. I might say that in the bill that I sponsored 
before the Finance Committee, I provided that the patient would be 
able to receive the notification of what the billing was. There was 
such a howl from home health agencies-across the whole indus­
try, private and the other-that the Finance Committee deleted 
that. I think a lot of times the patients look at this and they can 
tell you very quickly whether they received those kinds of services 
or not. Even though the Government is providing the payment, 
they don't like to see the Government ripped off any more than 
anyone else. 

Mr" SMITH. That is right. 
Senator CHILES. I think it is a provision that should be made. 
Mr. SMITH. The taxpayers ultimately provide the funds. 
Well, to provide a copy of the complete billing to every patient 

would be an undue bu.rden but perhaps the cover page of the 
provider's billing to the intermediary, which shows the number of 
visits and the type of service or the type of medical problems that 
are being dealt with would be sufficient. 
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Som~thing came to mind today when you were discussing civil 
p.enaltIes a~d the p~oblem as to how to recover those civil penal­
tIes. You mIght be mterested to know that the State of Michigan 
has proposed legislation whereby civil penalties can be imposed on 
home health agencies. The manner in which they intend to recoup 
those penalties is by deducting civil penalties from medicaid pay­
ments n;ade .by ~he St:;tte to the agencies. There may be some due 
process ImplIcatIOns WI~h .that type of arrang~ment, but assuming 
that those could be satIsfIed, perhaps that mIght be something to 
look at in the medicare program as well. 

I appreciate, Senator, the opportunity to make these brief re­
marks. 

Senator CHILES. Thank you. 
At this stage we are going to recess our hearings until further 

call of the Chair. I thank you all for your appearance and your 
attendance here today. 

[Whereupon, at 1:50 p.m., the hearing adjourned.] 
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APPENDIXES 

Appendix 1 

CORRESPONDENCE RELATED TO HEARING 

ITEM 1. LETTER FROM SENATOR LAWTON CHILES, TO LEONARD D. 
SCHAEFFER, ADMINISTRATOR, HEALTH CARE FINANCING ADMINIS­
TRATION, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE, 
DATED SEPTEMBER 6,1979 

DEAR MR. SCHAEFFER: I am writing to thank you and members of your staff for 
participation in the committee's hearings on "Abuse of the Medicare Home Health 
Program" in Miami on August 28, 1979. 

I am encouraged by the Health Care Financing Administration's plans for focused 
home health audits under project integrity III, and I would like to be kept fully 
informed of audit progress and results. I have asked Kathleen Deignan of the 
committee staff to continue contact with your staff in this regard. 

Attached are a number of additional questions which were not thoroughly dis­
cussed during the hearing. We plan to include most of the Department's responses 
in our hearing record, so would appreciate receiving your reply no later than 
October 1, 1979. 

Sincerely, 
LAWTON CHILES, Chairman, 

ITEM 2. LETTER AND ENCLOSURE FROM LEONARD D. SCHAEFFER, AD­
MINISTRATOR, HEALTH CARE FINANCING ADMINISTRATION,1 DEPART­
MENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE, TO SENATOR LAWTON 
CHILES, DATED DECEMBER 19, 1979 

DEAR MR. CHAIRMAN: This is in response to your request for information for the 
record of the committee's hearing on "Abuse of the Medicare Home Health Pro­
gram." 

As we discussed with your staff, we have divided our response into two categories: 
those items which are intended for publication in the record: and those items which 
are for committee use only. The latter items were separated from the rest because 
they involve ongoing investigative efforts. We are concerned that premature publi­
cation of some of this information could jeopardize these efforts. 

I would like to thank you for providing us with the opportunity of testifying 
before your committee. You may be assured that we will continue to work closely 
with you in attempting to resolve the remaining problems in the area of home 
health abuse. 

Sincerely yours, 

Enclosure. 

LEONARD D. SCHAEFFER, 
Administrator. 

Question 1. How many home health providers have been investigated by HCFA 
for possible fraud and abuse and what have been the results of those reviews? 

In August 1978, Mr. Derzon testified before a H .. mse committee that HCFA 
regional office staff had investigated 239 home health agencies for possible criminal 
fraud 'and 75 for abuse. What have been the results of those investigations, how 
many additional inquiries have been made, and how many home health providers 
are not pending review for possible fraud and abuse? 

'John D. Kennedy, Acting Director, Bureau of Quality Control, Health Care Financing Ad· 
ministration, testified for the HCFA, see page 19. 
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Answer. The Health Care Financing Administration is currently in the process of 
developing a computerized system to track cases which have reached the status of 
full-scale fraud or abuse investigation. While we have total counts of initially 
substantiated complaints of potential fraud or abuse against HCFA programs, we do 
not compile statistical data by the type of provider. We do, however, track in detail 
those complaints that are determined to have substance; they are classified as full­
scale investigations. On the basis of data on HCFA's full-scale investigations, 57 
HHA cases have been referred to the HEW Office of Inspector General for further 
investigation and referral for prosecution, 51 HHA cases have been referred to U.S. 
Attorneys for prosecution, and 32 HHA cases are currently under active investiga-
tion by HCFA for fraud or abuse. 

Question 2(A). GAO turned over to you a number of home health providers for 
review because of possible fraud and abuse. You were to complete review of these 
providers this year. How many providers were referred? 

Answer. GAO referred 6 HHA's to HCFA for possible fraud and abuse on August 
28,1979. 

Question 2(B). How many have you reviewed to date? 
Answer. To date we have reviewed four of the six HHA's but have referred all six 

to the Office of the Inspector General (orG) based on the GAO findings. 
Question 2(C). What did your review disclose? 
Answer. Our findings were very similar to those disclosed in the GAO report. 

However, we found additional evidence which would indicate that consulting firms 
and the agencies reviewed were related organizations. 

Question 2(D). Will review of all providers be done this year? 
Answer. The Bureau of Quality Control does not plan to review the other two 

HHA's. For one facility, Bay Area Home Health Services, Inc., the GAO adjust­
ments were minimal. The FBI and ora have reviewed the case and the interme­
diary has performed an audit of the books and records. The results of these reviews 
indicated no material audit adjusi;ments and no indications of criminal fraud. In the 
other case, Home Health Services of Louisiana, Inc., the OIG has been reviewing the 
case for possible criminal fraud and the intermediary has proposed audit adjust­
ments as follows: 1977, $n,057j 1978, $50,183. All GAO findings were considered in 
the audit adjustments by the intermediary. 

Question 3. During your testimony, you point out that GAO did their audit prior 
to the intermediary settlement of the involved cost report. You expressed the 
opinion that the intermediary would have found most of these problems. Have you 
done anything to assure yourself that this is the case? (See page 17 of GAO's report). 
If such followup was done, what did you find? If not, why not? 

Answer. We have been informed that all the HHA's discussed in the GAO report 
have either been audited or are in the process of being audited. The intermediaries 
have advised us that they have ensured that the points raised in the GAO report 
are being covered in these audits. For example, intermediary audit adjustments 
from one HHA have totaled $84,629 for the period ending May 31, 1977 and $78,763 
for the period ending May 31, 1978. 

Question 6. Mr. Kennedy's testimony indicated that approximately 650 of 2,700 
medicare-certified home health agencies nationally are classified as "100-per-
centers." 

What is the Department's definition of a "100-percenter"? How many of these 
2,700 agencies fall within the range of 90 percent to 100 percent medicare only? 80 
percent to 90 percent? How many fall below 75 percent? 

Answer. For purposes of selecting HHA's for further validation review by Federal 
employees of HCFA's Bureau of Quality Control, we have defined those HHA's 
whose medicare utilization exceeds 70 percent of all services provided as predomi­
nately medicare or 1/100 percenters." For purposes of directing intermediary audits, 
HCFA's Bureau of Program Operations has chosen to use a definition of 85 percent 
medicare utilization of total serviees provided in defining "100 percenters." 

Our most recent data, based upon a review of 1,831 cost reports for the year 1977 
shows that 334 HHA's have medieare utilization of between 90 and 100 percent and 
234 have utilization between 80 and 90 percent. Thus a total of 568 HHA's, or 31 
percent of the 1,831 reviewed to date have medicare utilization of 80 percent or 
more. 

Question 7. Please submit, for the hearing record, information for each State, on: 
The number of medicare-certified home health agencies the percent of medicare­
only agencies in 1975 and 1978. 

Answer. 

61 

NUMBER OF PARTICIPATING HOME HEALTH AGENCIES 

Region and State July 1975 June 1978 

All regions, ...... , ..................................... " .... , ........... , ....................................................... , ............... , 2,242 2,605 
========== 

Boston region .............................................................................................................. ,.................... 334 329 
------~~----~~ 

Connecticut ........................................................................... , ......... , .......... ,............................ 87 84 
Maine ............................................................................................ ,......................................... 19 19 
Massachusetts, .................... , .................. "............................................................................... 159 150 
New Hampshire ........... " .......... ,............................................................................................... 40 43 
~hode 1~land ........................................................................................................................... 13 14 

ermon ........ , ..... , ..................................................................................... " .......... "................ 16 19 

New York region .......... " .... " .............................. , ......... " .......... " ....... " ........... , ................................. ===1:::::8=2 ====18~2 
New Jersey .................................... " ... " .... " ............ , ..... "" ... " .... "." .. ".................................... 44 44 
New Yor~ ......... "." ... "" ... " .. " ..... " ............................................................. ,............................. 124 117 
P~e~to RIco ................................. " ........................................................................... "............. 13 20 
Virgin Islands .............. , .......................... , ...... " ... " ................................................ "................. 1 1 

Philadelphia region ............................................................................. " .. "",, ................... "" ....... "" .. ===2=53=====2:::;;13 

D~la~are ..... " .......... " ........ "" ... " ... " ...... " ........ , .. " .............. ""."."." .......... " ........................ ".. 6 5 
~stnct of Columbia ........................................ "...................................................................... . 3 5 

aryland ......................................................................................................... " .. " ......... " .... ". 26 26 
~~nnSYIVanla ........................................................................................................................... 101 111 
wrglnla ......... " ........... " ..................... " ........................ " .............. " .............. " ......... ""............. 99 45 

est Virginia .............................................. " ... " ................... " ..... " ............ "" ............ " .... "..... 18 21 

Atlanta region .................................................................................. "." ........................................... ====4~=9 =:===61=5 
----..:.-

Ala~ama ........................ " ............................................ " ........ " ... "."" .................... " ....... "....... 70 79 
~ ond~" ..................... " ............. " ............................ "."" ... " ............................. " ................... ". 42 122 

eorgla ........ " .................... " ........... , .. " .................. , .... " .................................. "...................... 16 23 
~~nt~c~y ................................................ " ... " .................................................. ,....................... 40 55 

Is~hsSIPpi.: ........................ " .................. " ............... " .................................... "" ........ " ......... ". 89 111 
~or h Caro\\na .... " ... " ............... " .. "" .................... , ...... " ...... "" ........................ """ ..... "" ...... ,,. 61 72 
out Caro Ina ......... "" ...... " ............. " ......................... " ...... "" ... " ....... " .. " ...... " ......... " ........ ". 15 22 

Tennessee ............................................................................................................................... 96 131 
======= 

Chicago re,gion ........ " ......................................................... , .......................... , ..................... "."',,..... 390 464 
------~------~~ 

:"~oiS ........... " .. " ...... "." .......................... " ............................ " .................. , ........................ ".. 81 110 
~. 'hra ............. ""................................................................................................................... 29 44 
Mi~n:s~~~ .............................................. " ........................................................... "................... 48 55 
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Dallas region ........... " ....... " .......................................... " .... " .. " ................... " ...... " ........... " ........... ". 257 311 
--------------~~ 

~rk~~sas ............ ''' ......... " ....... " " .................. " ............................ " ......... "." ...... " ................ ".. 78 79 
N~~sl~~~i~~ ........... " ..... " ... " .................... " ................................... " .................. "..................... 74 80 

.......... ,00' ........... " ....... , ........ , ..................... " ................ , ................................. , ..... , 7 12 
Oklahoma ......................... ,' ......................... , .... " ............ " ............................ ,.......................... 51 59 
Texas ........ " ........... " .... " ...... " .............. " ............. " .................. "." .............. " ..... " ............. " .. ". 47 81 

Kansas City region ....... " ....................... "." ................................ " .. " ... " .... " ... " ... " ......... " .... "." ....... ====14=4 ====18=5 

~~~~.~.;::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::.:::::::::::::::::: 64 84 
MISSOUri 34 42 b ............... "." ......... " ............. " .......... " ............... " ...... "",, ............ " .. " .... " ... "." .... ".".. 34 42 
Ne raska ...... " ................ " .. " ... , .. , .................. " ........ " ....... "" .... "." ... "."" .. " ....... " ................ ". 12 17 

Denver region .. " ....... " ... " ......... "" .. " ........... "." ... " ... " ........ " .............. " .... " .. """ ...... " ......... "" .... ",,.===:::::8=9 ===:::::10~8 
--------------~~ 

COlo~ado .. "." ......... " ..... "." ....... " .... " .. " .................... " .... " ..... " ....... " ..... "." ..................... " ... ". 29 32 
~~r~ha~;k.~i~ ...... ".' .. "" ................ " ... " ... " .. " ......... """."""."" .................. " .......... " ...... "........ 10 15 
South Da~~ta ............ " .. " ... """" ........... " ............ "" ........... " .. " ... " ... ,, ........... "" .................. ".. 291 390 

....................................................................... " ................................................ . 
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NUMBER OF PARTICIPATING HOME HEALTH AGENCIES-Continued 

Region and Siale July 1975 June 1978 

Utah........................................................................................................................................ 9 9 
Wyoming ................................................................................................................................. 11 13 

San Francisco region........................................................................................................................ 107 136 
American Samoa ......................................................................................................................................................................... .. 
Arizona.................................................................................................................................... 11 12 
California ................................................................................................................................. 88 III 
Guam.:..................................................................................................................................... 1 1 
Hawall.,H1ot" ...................................... ,lIlOu ........ u,II ...... , ......... '.II· ....................... U .. hl .... , •• HII.OI. 4 6 
Nevada.................................................................................................................................... 3 6 

Seattle region ................................................................................................. .................................. 57 62 

Alaska ..................................................................................................................................... 1 1 
Idaho....................................................................................................................................... 9 11 
Oregon .................................................................................................................................... 25 24 
Washington ............................................................................................................................. 22 26 

Our most recent data, based upon a revil9w of 1,831 cost reports for 1977 shows 
568 HHA's, o~ 31 percent, having medicare utilization of 80 percent or mor~. State­
by-State data IS not available. 

Question 8. Many of the 100-percenters are private nonprofit providers and tax 
exempt. Please expl!'i~n in. detail what you have done and !'ire going to do to 
coordmate your actIvItIes WIth the IRS to assure that these prOVIders maintain their 
tax exempt status. 

Answer. HCFA will prepare an instruction to medicare intermediaries requesting 
that any HHA's classified as private nonprofit which appear to violate the IRS 
r~quirements for maintaining tax exmpt status be identified in a quarterly submis­
SIon to HCFA's Bureau of Quality Control. We expect to utilize this data as a 
referral mechanism to IRS and will confer with them on necessary actions to 
substantiate potential violations. 

We have discussed the tax exempt status question with GAO and understand that 
GAO intends to initiate a major study of this area. We will cooperate with them in 
every way possible. 
. Question 10(A). ~as the Department evaluated the validity and comparative effec­

tIveness of the varlOUS management services provided by these organizations? 
. Answer. The De~artment. has not .evaluated the validity and comparative effec­

tlVeness of the varIOUS serVIces provlded by these organizations. However the De­
partment has instructed al~ inte.rmediaries to reopen and examine the cos't repZlrts 
of those home health agenCIes WIth management contracts and to submit reports on 
their findings. Intermediaries have reviewed 49 of the 132 contracts and have 
disallowed a portion of the fees paid by 32 home health agencies to the management 
firms. 

Question 10(B). Has the Department developed criteria for "reasonable" reim­
bursement for these management services? 

Answer. ~s ind~cated in. Mr. K~nnedy's ~ta.temen~ to the committee on August 28, 
HCFA has Issued mstructlOns to mtermediaries whICh focus on assuring appropriate 
home health reimbursement with respect to costs incurred under management! 
consultant contra,cts. Intermediary letter No. 78-39 emphasizes that the portion of 
c?ntract costs WhIC~ represents unx;tecessary services as determined by the interme­
dIary and the, portIOn of costs WhICh relates to necessary services but which are 
unreasona~le m amount. cannot be reimbursed. In its evaluation, the intermediary 
must conSIder the duratIOn of the contract. It must also evaluate the relationship 
between the provider and contractor as a result of the terms of the contract to 
determine if the provider is under the control of the contractor. 

qurre~tly,. a revision to th.e Provi~er R.eimbursement Manual is being developed 
wh~c~ WIll mcorp?rate th~ mstructIons m IL No. 78-39. In addition, a proposed 
reVISIOn to regulatIons sectIOn 405.427 more clearly addresses the activities between 
providers and manageme.nt companies with regard to re~atedness, one of the prob­
lems that has surfaced WIth regard to home health agenCIes (see answer to question 13). 
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Question 10(C). Has the Department considered providing direct technical assist-
ance to agencies for startup? . 

Answer. Intermediaries are not in a position to provide the full range of serVIces 
with regard to the establishment, staffin~, etc., of a new .home he.alt~l agency t~at 
can be provided by some management fIrms. However, mtermedlarles do furmsh 
assistance to new providers in orienting them to the manner in which reasonable 
costs are determined under the medicare principles of reimbursement and to the 
necessity for documentation to .supp?r~ costs which are iI~cUl·re~. This assistance, as 
well as other assistance regardmg bIllIng, coverage, etc., IS furmshed not only when 
providers are new but on a continuing as-needed basis. However, assistance is 
primarily furnished to a provider af~er its certifi7~tio~ into th~ medica:e program 
since prior to that time, the agency IS not .a partIctpatmg prOVIder. W~Ile mtern:H~­
diaries can provide some general program mformatIon to an agency prIor to certIfi­
cation we believe it inappropriate to encourage this activity on a broad scale. 

Que;tion 11. Will either new regulations or additional instructions incorporate 
GAO's recommendation that prior intermediary approval for home health agency/ 
management service contracts whose costs exceed a specified amount and/or whose 
terms exceed a specified period o~ time be approved in advance? The qAO repo:ted 
to the committee that intermedIary letter No. 78-39 does not prOVIde suffiCIent 
instruction to intermediaries regarding prior approval. 

Answer. We believe it would be inappropriate for HCFA (thro}lgh its intermedi~r­
ies) to approve contracts in advance. IL No. 78-39 was not mtended to prOVIde 
instructions with regard to intermediary prior approval of contracts nor do we. plan 
any additional instructions in this regard. Such a procedure could place the mter­
mediary in the position of disallowing contract C?st~ based on a year-~nd cost rep?rt 
after having approved the contract at the begmnmg of the year smce the prIOr 
approval of the contract could not provide a guarantee that the provider's costs 
resulting from the contract would be allowed .. Such circumstances could result in 
provider perception of lack of credibility on the part of HCFA and the intermediary. 
Furthermore, without prior approval, a provider has an incentive to continually 
seek the lowest cost available. With prior approval, it may lack this incentive to act 
as a prudent buyer. Finally, we strongly believe that it is inappropriate for an 
intermediary to make decisions concerning the approval of contracts which should 
be made by the provider's management staff. 

However, we believe that the intent to enter into certain long-term contracts may 
be indicative that a provider is not acting prudently and may, because of the 
contract, incur costs which will be found unreasonable by the intermediary. To 
evalnate such situations, we believe that the best approach is that stated in IL No. 
78-;:l9 which emphasizes that intermediaries must evaluate the terms and conditions 
of these contracts. As a part of this evaluation, it specifies that while contracts of 
less than 5 years' duration may be determined to be reimbursable based upon the 
intermediary's evaluation of the services offered and received, the cost inc~rred for 
services furnished after the fifth year of the contract should not be reImbursed 
(unless the intermediary is clearly satisfied that the services are necessary and 
proper and their costs reasonable in accordance with the instructions in effect when 
the services are rendered). 

It is important that a provider's intent to enter into a long-term contract be 
brought to the attention of the intermediary, especially in light of the fact that a 
provider-particularly one with primarily 100 percent medicare utilization-could 
find itself legally liable for paying for the services provided but without the funds to 
satisfy its obligations. We have always stressed, most recently in IL No. 79-14, that 
a provider should never wait until the end of its cost reporting period to consult 
with its intermediary but rather should do so on a current basis regarding the 
allowability and reasonableness of costs that it plans to incur. 

Question 12. Does HCFA have authority for direct accoss to the records of provid­
er contractors? If not, do you believe such acces!! is necessary? 

Answer. HCFA has no direct relationship with contractors furnishing services 
under arrangements (contracts) with participating providers. Rather, HCFA's legal 
and contractual relationships are solely with providers of services, such as hospitals, 
skilled nursing facilities, and home health agencies. Therefore, evaluation of con­
tractor costs and services can only be done indirectly, through \~he provider. There is 
no legal basis for requiring a contractor to make its records containing cost or other 
data available to the Secretary, and there is no legal authority for requiring con­
tractors to enter into agreements with the ~ecretary as a condition of their furnish­
ing services to Federal patients. These limitations have severely restricted HCFA's 
ability to determine reasonable costs in the medicare and medit~aid programs, and 
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have prevented the establishment of a data base which could be used in future 
analyses of costs and utilization patterns. ., . 

Section 1861(v)(5) of the Social Security Act, for example, provIdes th~t gUldelmes 
will be established to determine the reasonable cost of therapy serVIces and the 
services of other health related personnel (other than physicians) furnished under 
arrangements. Under the law, these guidelines shall not exceed an amount equa.l to 
the salary and other costs which would reasonably have been paid for s~ch serVIces 
in an employment relationship, plus the cost of such other expenses whlCh a p.erson 
furnishing such services under arrangements would normally be expecte~ to mcur. 
Under this provision, the intent of which is to control program ~xpendltures and 
prevent abuse .• specific guidelines have b~en developed. for det~rmmmg. the reason­
able costs of physical therapy and respIratory t~erapy serVIces furms~ed. under 
arrangements. Without knowing the act~al costs mcurre~ by the supplIer m ~ur­
nishing services, however, it has been dIfficult to determm~ the amount of r~nm­
bursement in addition to salaries which would be approprIate for these serVIces. 

Similar difficulties exist with respect to ?ontract services, s.~,ch as ma~agement 
and billing services, not included under sectlOn 1861(v)(5). Provlde~s are reI?lbursed 
only for the costs of items or ~ervices that are necessary to theIr operatlOns and 
then only to the extent that the costs are reasonable. Currently, to determine the 
reasonableness of contract management and billing services, intermediaries ~ust 
review the amounts being charged in the market place for co~pa.rable s.erVH!e~. 
While intermediaries can properly make reasonable cos~ determmatIOns usmg thIS 
procedure, we believe that acce~s to. the actual cost data m contractor records would 
facilitate more accurate determmatIOns. 

In view of the above, HCFA believes that access to contractor records is necessary, 
and would support legislation to that effect. However, due ~o t~e e~tremely l~rge 
number of suppliers and contractors, as well as the gre.at dIv~rsity. m .the servI~es 
they provide, RCF A recom~ends that t?e S~cre~a~y be gIven dIscretIOn m determm-
ing how or the extent to whlCh such legIslatIOn IS I~plemented.. . 

Question 13. You have just proposed changes m your regulatIons concern~ng 
"related organizations." When will this be final? How will it differ from eXIstmg 
regulation? . . 

Answer, HCFA anticipates that the proposed revision to regulatlOns sectlOn 
405.427, cost to related organizations, will be published in final form during the 
third quarter of fiscal year 1980.. .. . 

The existing regulation treats a provIder and a supplymg orgamzatIOn as related 
if they are associated or affiliated "to a significant extent." The definitions of 
"common ownership" and "control" also ~se the ter.ros "significan~ ?wnership" and 
"significantly" influence. We are proposmg to reVIse these defimtlOns to remove 
these subjective phrases. 

The existing rule does not deal specifically with how the costs of a related 
supplying organization are to be determined .. We are proposin~ that the suppl~er'.s 
allowable costs be determined in accordance WIth the general reImbursement prmCI-
pIes of subpart D of the medicare r~gul~tions. ... .... 

We are also proposing some clarIficatIOns and reVISIOns m the eXlstmg CrIterIa for 
granting an exception to the general principle. . 

The proposed revision to the regUlation also applies the rule for related orgamza­
tions to cases in which the provider and the supplying o~ganization a~e unrelated 
prior to the execution of a contract, but common ownershIp or control IS created at 
the same time by the nature of the contract or by other means. 

Question 14. Several providers have terminated their contracts with management 
firms. Some intermediaries have allowed the contract termination fees as an allow­
able expense. Others do not. What is HCFA's policy on termination costs? 

Answer. Contract tt..rmination costs are reviewed to determine if they are the 
result of a prudent business decision and to determine if the costs are reasonable. 
Under this policy, the costs may be fully disallowed, partially disallow~d or allowed 
in full based on the intermediary's evaluation of the facts and CIrcumstances 
related' to the contract termination. We agree that HCFA needs to clarify policy in 
the area and we plan to issue instructions in the Provider Reimbursement Manual 
on this area in the future. 

Question 15(A). In Mr. Kennedy's statement, he indicated that HCFA plans to 
provide more specific guidelines to intermediaries on fringe benefits. What changes 
are you planning to make? 

Answer. Section 2144 of the ProvIder Reimbursement Manual includes a number 
of fringe benefits recongized by the program and specifies that while other items not 
enumerated therein mar represent fringe benefits they must be referred to. the 
intermediaries for approval prior to being treated as fringe benefits. IntermedIary 
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~etter. No. 79-14 emphasized t~ese instructions and the necessity for providers to 
IdentIfy on the cost report all frmge benefit costs with other employee compensation 
t~ enable the intermedi~ry ~o determi!!e the reasonableness of total compensation. 
Smce there apparently IS. s~1l1 s.ome mI~understa?ding of ~CF A policy in this area, 
we plan to reevaluate eXlstmg mstructIOns and Issue clarIfications where appropri­
ate, 

Question 15(B). Do you plan to eliminate intermediary authority to approve fringe 
benefits other than specifically stated in program policy? 

Answer. We do not plan to alter intermediary authority in Provider Reimburse­
ment Manual section 2144 to approve fringe benefits not specifically enumerated in 
that se.ctio~. We believe the intermediary is in the best position to make these 
determmatlOns. 

Question 16(A). Based on HCFA's audit activities to date, what do you believe 
shoul.d be an appropriate :ratio of agency administrative salaries to total personnel 
salarIes? . 

Answer. HCFA has formulated no such ratio of administrative salaries to total 
perso?nel salaries. There are .many factors which: must be considered in developing 
a ratIO, and. we are not certam that anyone l'atlO would suffice. For example the 
type o.f se~'vlces that an agency provides, the number of visits it provides the e~tent 
to whlCh It contr!'lcts for ser.vices, and whether it is hospital based vs. f~eestanding 
all aff~ct the r~t:o. In. additlOn, the same problems presently being encountered in 
analyzm.g admmls~ratIve cost d.ata from the cost report (see question 23) are also 
present m developmg salary ratlOs from cost report data. 

Question 16(B). Do you include fringe benefits in determining these ratios? If not, 
why not? 

Answer. HCFA considers total employee compensation including salary and fringe 
b~nefits in determining the reasonableness of such costs. Therefore, if the ratios 
dIscussed above were to be developed, fringe benefits would be included. 

Question 17. In one Provider Reimbursement Review Board decision (77-D32) the 
B~ard suggested "sp(~cific guidelines for p.rospective application in all major' cost 
reI:nbursement areas of home health agencies serving only medicare beneficiaries. 
ThIS could go as far as: 

(A) Limitation on pension percentage. 
(B) Limitation on each and every fringe benefit. 
(C) Rel!'ltionship of. every j?b ?escription to a sp~cific. civil service as rating and 

salary WIth approprIate semorlty and cost of hvmg mcreases since all are 100 
percent compensated by the medicare program, etc. ' 

In this regard" w~at has been done to respond to the concern raised by the Board? 
What are HCF A s VIews of these suggestions? 
A~swer. I~ PRRB dec.isio!! No: 77-D32, ~he Board ~uggested that intermediaries 

prOVIde speCIfic cost gUIdelmes m the major cost reImbursement areas for home 
health agencies serving only medicare beneficiaries. We expect intermediaries to 
employ ~ny measul:es they be!ieve necessary within the authority set forth in the 
law and Implementmg .r~gulatIO~s to assure that providers are reimbursed only the 
reasonable cost of provldmg serVlCes. We also support actions taken by intermediar­
ies. ~o furnish ~uidartce. to providers in incurring only those costs which, in the 
op~mon of the mter~e~Iary, ar~ r~aso!!able, ~hus minimizing year-.end cost report 
a.dJustments. T? aSSIst mterIhedIaries m makmg these reasonable cost determina­
tIOns, we have Issued several intermediary letters, including IL Nos. 78-16 and 78-
39. Also, '!fe h~ve always st~essed, most r~centlY,in IL 79-14, that a provider should 
never WaIt untIl the end of Its cost reportmg perIOd to consult with its intermediary 
but rather should do so on a current basis regarding the allowability and reason­
ableness of costs that it plans to incur. 
W~ile an intermediary does not have the authority to apply its own cost limits in 

speCIfic cost areas, we would encourage intermediaries to develop guidelines and to 
use other such tools in assisting them in determining reasonable costs. As you know 
to supplement these intermediary activ~ties, HCFA is already applying cost limits t~ 
control overall home health agency costs and has placed a high priority on develop­
ing limi~s to control admi~istr~tive costs i~curred by home health agencies. 

Questwn 18. The commIttee IS aware of mstances where m~dicalrecords (nursing 
notes) have been cha?ged to make sure medicare reimbursement would continue, 
eve!! t~ough t~e patIent mar no longer need home care. (A) Is the Department 
revIewmg nursmg notes as part of a focused audit? (B) How prevalent is this 
problem? (C) Is HCFA considering medical audit guidelines which would routinely 
address such practices? 

Answer. We do not have data on the extent of the problem of altered nursing 
notes. However, some intermediaries are now rev.i,'wing nursing notes as well as 
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visiting patients as part of an on site medical audit of HHA services. W~ ~re 
currently preparing medical a~dit guid.elines wh!ch would ~eq~ire all i?termedIanes 
serving HHA's to perform medIcal audIts accordIng to specIfic InstructIOns. 

Question 19. Are home health agencies required to ?arry out a formal program ~f 
utilization review as did hospitals prior to the profeSSIOnal standards reVIew orgam-
zation program? If not, why not? . 

Answer. Our regulations (405.1229(b» require tha~, at least quarterly, app~opnate 
health professionals of the home health age?cy revIe:v. a sample of bot~ actIve. ~nd 
closed clinical records to assure that establIshed polICIes are followed In prOVIdIng 
services. Also required is a continuing review of clinical records for each 60-day 
period that a patient receives services to determine adequacy of the plan of treat­
ment and appropriateness of continuation of care. 

Since the ctatute (1861(k» specifically required utilization review of hospitals and 
skilled nursing facilities, but omitted home health agencies, the Department felt 
constrained to use the term in regulations in applying the clinical record review to 
home health agencies. 

Question 20. You advised GAO that you planned to issue instructions to interme= 
diaries to intensify review of medicare claims submitted by proprietary and private 
nonprofit home health agencies. Was this done? What have you learned from this 
intensified review? 

Answer. Some intermediaries are now performing intensified review of propri­
etary and private nonprofit agencies. The medical records audits outlined in ~e­
sponse to question 18 include a means of ranking HHA's to assure that the audIts 
are performed in the m?st suspect HHA'~. G~nerally,. these ",:,i~l b~ proprietary and 
private nonprofit agenCIes because of theIr hIgh medIcare utIlIzatIOn, hIgh average 
number of visits per patient and high denial rates. 

Question 21. You issued home health limits on a per visit, aggregate basis 2 
months ago. How much money will these limits save for the remainder of this year 
and next? 

Answer. Home health agency cost limits were effective for cost reporting periods 
beginning on or after .July 1, 1979. HCFA estimates that .$~.5 mi~lion will be .saved 
in the fiscal year endIng September 30, 1~79, and $20 mIllIon WIll be saved In the 
fiscal year ending September 30, 1980.. . . . . . 

Question 22. What steps are you takmg to develop cost lImIts by type of VISIt? WIll 
you be able to set such limits? 

Answer'. The HHA cost limits effective July 1, 1979, were developed and published 
by type of visit. Separate limits were set for each of the six home health services 
reimbursed under medicare; skilled nursing care, physical therapy, speech therapy, 
occupational therapy, medical social services and home health aide services. Howev­
er, the limits could not be applied directly to each type of service because many 
home health agencies use a method of cost finding which results in an average cost 
for all services. HCFA is planning to require HHA's to report costs on a per 
discipline basis which when effective will enable application of HHA cost limits by 
type of service. We anticipate the effective date for reporting costs by discipline to 
be cost reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 1980. 

Question 23. In response to GAO's report, HCFA stated that it would study the 
feasibility of setting administrative cost limits. 

(A) What has your study revealed? 
(B) Do you plan to develop administrative cost limits and for what type of 

expenses? 
(C) When will these limits be proposed? 
Answer. Analysis of administrative ,cost has been severely hampered by the lack 

of uniformity in the way home health agencies report costs under the medicare 
program. The multiple cost reporting methods used by home health agencies make 
it very difficult to draw reliable comparisons. Nevertheless, HCFA has extracted a 
large volume of administrative cost data from medicare cost reports to determine 
what expenses may warrant specific limits and how best to determine limits. 

Although comparison of home health agency administrative costs based on cur­
rently available cost report data is difficult because of the variety of cost reporting 
methods used, HCFA is placing high priority on developing a means of controlling 
excessive home health agency administrative costs. However, we are unable at this 
point to predict when these limits will be proposed. 

Question 24. In response to GAO's report you advised GAO that the uniform 
method of reporting cost would include, specific reporting for employee salaries and 
fringe benefits. This recommendation was not adopted. Why not? How can an 
intermediary develop total compensation (wages and fringe benefits) per employee 
when such a reporting requirement does not exist? 
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Answer. The GAO recosmmendation in question was that HFW, Ilrequire that 
home health agencies provide specific reporting on the salaries and fringe benefits 
furnished to individual employees." We believe that requiring home health agencies 
to report the salaries and fringe benefits of each individual employee would be 
excessively burdensome, would be impractical and unnecessary and would constitute 
the creation of a system of records that would be covered under the Privacy Act. 
From a practical standpoint, the gathering of salary and fringe benefit information 
for each individual employee would produce more information than would be mean­
ingful or useful. Rather, we think that gathering salary and fringe benefit data by 
functional cost center in the aggregate and individually for key employees, adminis­
trators and owners would be meaningful and useful. We believe this would be 
adequate as virtually all the abuses that have come to light involve only the key 
employees (administrators, medical directors, directors of nursing, etc.). 

Revised cost reporting procedures under develvpment will require the reporting of 
salary and fringe benefit information for each cost center. In addition, we are 
considering revising the reporting requirements to include the individual salaries 
and fringe benefits of key employees, administrators and owners. 

Question 25. You said you would issue regulations to limit the number of cost 
finding methods to one, rather than four. When will this be done? 

Answer. The proposed regUlation for nonprovider based home health agencies 
which would allow only one method of cost finding and cost apportionment is 
currently scheduled to be issued in the near future. We plan to make this proposed 
regulation effective for cost reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 1980. 

Question 26(C). Will the draft home health reporting system be revised before 
proposal? 

Answer. There are anticipated changes to be made to the draft home health 
reporting system; however, these discussions are still in progress. 

Question 27(A). In Mr. Kennedy's testimony he pointed out that HCFA is develop­
ing a home health Cost Report Evaluation Program. How will this Cost Report 
Evaluation Program work? 

Answer. Each HCF A regional office reviews a statistically representative sample 
of all HHA cost reports settled by intermediaries during the year. This is a review 
of the intermedlaries' professional judgment made by accountants and reimburse­
ment staff in rliviewing and auditing cost reports and applying the medicare regula­
tions on reasor.able cost reimbursement. The home health agency cost report evalu­
ation program (HHA-CREP) provides a uniform approach to measuring the quality 
of intermediary performence in cost report settlements, that will permit eventual 
ranking and comparisons of performance. CREP also leads to the discovery and 
appropriate adjustment of significant dollar errors in the cost reports. 

Question 27(B). /tWill this program attempt to assess the scope of the audit 
actually done?" 

Answer. The methodology of CREP is to ask a series of objective type questions in 
order to rate each intermediary equally and uniformly. Therefore, through the 
series of questions the scope of the audit is reviewed. If the intermediary has not 
included an area for review in the scope of audit, the RO will give a negative score. 

Question 27(C). How does the cost report evaluation program differ from your 
focused audits? 

Answer. The HHA-CREP differs from the focused audit in two material aspects. 
First, the focused audit reviews approximately 12 specific problem areas, while the 
HHA-CREP looks at the entire audit and cost report settlement process. Second, 
the focused audit reviews only the 100 percent medicare providers. The HHA-CREP 
program is designed to review all types of HHA's, on a statistically valid sample 
basis. 

Question 27(D). How many intermediaries have you reviewed, and what have you 
found? 

Answer. At the present time HHA-CREP is only in the pretesting stages. We 
have commitments from the regions to look at 28 intermediaries and central office 
personnel will review one intermediary during pretesting. Pretesting is still in 
process and we anticipate results will be available January 1980. 

Question 28(A). During previous hearings HCFA stated additional funds would be 
made available for home health audits. How much additional will be spent? 

Answer. The incremental costs to perform intensive full scope audits in Florida is 
$144,270. Nationally, additional audit funds have been made available for HHA's. 

Question 28(B). Are planned audits full scope or limited scope? 
Answer. The planned audits in Florida will be full scope in most instances. 
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. ~.ue~tion 29(A). Mr. Kennedy's testim' . 
In,ltIatl\:,e to do focused audits of home h °llh mentIO.ne~ a pr0!5ram mtegrity special 
wIll be mcluded? ea agenCIes m Flonda. What other States 

Answer. HCFA will do full sco d·t· 
ci~s. in those States where the str~i~~s lor th many insta~ces of h?me health ~gen­
utIhzed by medicare/medicaid at' t e home health agencIes are primarily 
gions th?se areas necessitating s~eci~lliC":A :ff~rfurrentlY discussing with the re-

Questzon 29(B). Is this part of HCFA' I s'. 
agencies as referenced in Question 28 s I? at~ .to do a:~l~ional.al!~its of home health 
Answ~r. This is an additional initiati~e~s IS an a dltIOnal mltIative? 

~~~~~~~ 4~~C;I~~~~d a~diribe. the scope of th~ audits planned. 
Question 29(D). Why are t:~l~ubdit~Ullo~cope m most ~nstances. 

rather than contractor operations? g ng to be momtored by program integrity 
Answer. These audits are under the di t . 

st~ff and are going to be monitored b thb or of the r~gIOn~1 contractor operation 
atIOns. . 0 y program mtegnty and program oper-

Questzon 29(E). Will this effort r I 
developed as part of the desk revie~? ace or supplement areas to be audited that are 

Answer. This audit effort ill . I 
as part ?f the desk review. w supp ement areas to be audited that are developed 

Q~estzon 30. GAO in its report recomm d d th . . 
routmely test provider adherence to then de at Y01:lr reqUlr~ mtermediaries to 
recommendation be implemented? Wh ? e ocumentatIOn requIrement. Will this 

Answer. Effective November 1 '1978 eFiCFA . . 
audits (part A Intermedi~ry M~nual' sectionl~~g~e~hn ~~ guidelines for provider 

overnmental Organizations Pro ra' At'·. e tandards for Audits of 
Comptroller General of the Unite8 s~f' U l'd"tIe\ and Functions" issued by the 
the provider's records, there appears the e;~llo~i~~: t e standards for examination of 

E. ADEQUATE EVIDENCE MUST BE OBTAINED 
1. Sufficiency, Competence, and Releva f E . 

support conclusions and recommendat' nce 0 Vldence.-Evidence obtained to 
vant to afford a reasonable basis for th~n:ud.~st, be s.u~ficien.t, competent, and rele­
and ~ec?mme~dations. SUfficiency of evidenc~ ?r :h opmIOns, Judgments, conclusions, 
convmcmg eVIdence to lead a prudent pe tIS th e presence of enough factual and 
Wh.e~ th~re is conflicting evidence the rSd?t 0 e same conc~usion as the auditor. 
POsItIOn IS Supported by the wei ht of ti;,u 1 °T must make a Judgment as to what 
m~thods should be used to est~lish sUffl ~vldencC When appropriate, statistical 
eVIdence and. the best attainable throu hCihncy. ompete~t evidence is reliable 
~ompete.n~ eVIdence is that obtained direc11 the uSb. °bf audIt. methods. The most 
rom orlgmal documents and under y roug 0 servatIOn and examination 

m2ans the evidence has;; logical relati~n~h~d fY~~.rn, of i~ternal control, Relevanc~ 
. Types of Evidence.-Regardless f th Ip 0 e ISSU~ mvolved. 

tests of this standard-sufficiency c~ t type, thde eVIdence must meet the basic 
Support a~dit fi~dings may be: ' mpe ence, an relevance, Evidence needed to 

a. Phys.lCal ~vldence obtained by observati . . 
b. TestImomal evidence obtained b . t on.' p~otograph, or sImIlar means 

volved persons, y m ervlewmg or taking statements f;om in-
c. Documentary evidence c . t' 

records, etc., and onSlS mg of letters, contracts, extracts from accounting 
d. Analytical evidence secured b I' . 
Question 31. GAO found that y ana YSIS of mforII,lation obtained. 

found throughout the cost report H~~n~il they. consld~r.ed to be abusive are often 
m fr. Kenne~y's ~estimony solv~ this kind ~eclfbl aU~ltmg of the 12 areas specified 

nswer. It IS true that abusive ra t' pro em 
riPort. However, we believe that foc~si~:~~ ral:'t b; cOD;cealed throughout a cost 
w lere abuse is most often found will d r I~h e audIt resources in those areas 
costs .. For example, we antici t th pro uce . e gr~atest benefit in controllin 
coordmat~rs in the State of Flo~id: for it y~he alf~ adbJustments !e!ating to nurs~ 

. ur umform audit program addresse ar WI . e a out $3.1 mIllIon. 
;hews should be intensified. To date this ~ approhhately 12 audit areas where re­

d.Bure.au of Quality Control (BQC) anJ~hoac a~ been used on four reviews by 
dUt It ~dJustments total approximately $387 000 revJer~ by Blue Cross. The BQC 

e ermmed that $300 01)0 in costs h ld b ' . an e Blue Cross audits have 
to all seven of these HHA's were mSini~al. e dIsallowed. Previous audit adjustments 
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Our audit effort is requiring intermediaries to conduct in depth audits similar to 
the audit effort in hospitals. Based on the three Blue Cross reviews conducted 
utilizing our focused audit approach, the cost benefit ratio of performing the audits 
was 30 to 1 compared to the normal cost benefit ratio of 5 to 1 for other HHA audits 
(current audits are uncovering $30 dollars in questionable costs for each dollar 
spent). 

If this effort proves to be successful, as we believe it will based on preliminary 
results, we may expand the audit effort to require all intermediaries to utilize this 
focused approach. We would always encourage the intermediary to review other 
areas in the cost report, where it had reason, through complaints or other informa­
tion, to believe that abusive· practices were present in those areas for those 
providers. 

Question 32. Deputy Inspector General Lowe testified that the Department is 
considering changes in legal fee payments. Currently medicare pays unlimited legal 
fees. This payment can be made even for legal expenses incurred for defense against 
a government action. (A) What appropriate action should be taken to limit such 
payments? (B) How much would the medicare program save? 

Answer. Currently medicare policy does not provide for reimbursement of unlim­
ited legal fees; rather, reimbursement is limited to those legal costs which are both 
necessary and proper to the delivery of patient care and reasonable in amount. 

HCF A is presently reviewing its policy on the entire area of reimbursement of 
legal fees. The number of actions requidng legal expertise which are undertaken by 
home health agencies and ot~er providers of medicare services is continually in­
creasing. A major portion of such actions involve appeals on medicare issues. As a 
result, an increase is occurring not only in the cost of legal fees incurred by 
providers but for HCF A in defense of those cases. RCF A recognizes that definitive 
steps must be taken to discourage frivolous or unnecessary appeals by providers and 
to establish rules for evaluating the reasonableness of the fees incurred. 

Question 33(A). Section 14 of Public Law 95-142 allows the Secretary to designate 
an intermediary to serve a class of providers to promote more effective and efficient 
administration of the program. Does RCF A feel there are differing levels of home 
health expertise among intermediaries? How can this expertise be evaluated? 

Answer. Yes. These differing levels may be the result of a number of variables or 
combinations thereof. Among the factors which may influence these levels are: 

(1) the number of HHA's serviced by the intermediaries; 
(2) the percentage of total business with RHA's as compared to business with 

other types of providers; 
(3) depth of review in the bill process; and 
(L!) management resources. 
'I'he expertise of intermediaries to service HHA's is evaluated through the con­

tractor inspection and evaluation program which is conducted on an ongoing basis. 
Also, we have developed a structured RHA cost report review program similar to 
that developed for hospitals to assure consistent nationwide application of policy. 
The HHA cost report program is now being field tested in most regions. This report 
program is designed to objectively evaluate a sample of HHA reports and provide 
input into the annual contractor evaluation reports. 

Question 33(B). What is the minimal number of' home health providers an inter­
mediary should serve to do a satisfactory job and develop the needed expertise in 
the area? 

Answer. We doubt there is a particular number that points to success or failure in 
effectively reimbursing HRA's. The problem is for intermediaries- to adjust their 
audit resources to more closely scrutinize problem type RHA's. 

Question 33(C). Does RCF A consider it feasible to develop a separate intermediary 
system to serve home health only? 

Answer. As we indicated in our response to 33(A) above, the issue revolves around 
intermediary expertise in processing RHA claims and determining appropriate 
costs. This may be accomplished by having an intermediary service HHAs and at 
the same time handle the workload being received from other provider types, or it 
may in some instances mean an intermediary servicing only HHA's. We are explor­
ing the approaches to this issue and will study the results of the various approaches. 

ITEM 3. LETTER FROM SENATOR LAWTON CHILES, TO J. V. ESKENAZI, 
U.S. ATTORNEY, SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA, DATED SEPTEMBER 
7, 1979 

DEAR JACK: I appreciate the time and effort you and your staff put into your 
appearance before the Committee on Aging on August 28. 
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I am encouraged by the activities undertaken by your office in regard to fraudu­
lent activities in the medicare home health program. Y.our offer to h!=lve staff 
informally share investigative results with cOI'!1mittee staff IS mu~h appreCH~ted and 
I have asked Kathleen Df:lignan of the commIttee staff to keep m touch wIth your 
office. . hIt "C' . I In addition, I would apprl:!ciate it if you could provIde t e comp e e rIp,-tma 
Division Statement on Fraud in HEW's Home Health Care Fraud Matters you 
referenced for our hearing record. ' 

Once again, I appreciate your participatio~ in o~r h.earing and I look forward to 
working closely with you as you pursue your mvestIgatIOns. 

Sincerely, . LAWTON CHILES, Chalrman. 

ITEM 4. LETTER AND ENCLOSURE FROM J. V. ESKENAZI,! U.S. ATTORNEY, 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA, TO SENATOR LAWTON CHILES, 
DATED OCTOBER 31, 1979 
DEAR SENATOR CHILES: Please excuse the delay in res~,on~in~ to y.01~r. letter of 

September 7, 1979, in which you requested the complete qrImmal DIvISIOn State­
ment on Fraud in HEW's Home Health Care l!'raud Ma~ters as t:eferred to 0!l page 
10 of my prepared statement before the Senate SpeCIal ComI'!1Ittee on AgI,ng on 
August 28, 1979. The original text had been inadvertantly mIsplaced and It was 
necessary to obtain a copy from Department of Justice files. 

The statement, the complete text of wh~ch is ~nclos~d, ~as prepared by the 
Criminal Division of the Department of Justice for mcluSIOn m my prepared state-
ment before your committee. . 

If I can be of any further assistance to you in this matter, please do not hestItate 
to contact me. 

Yours ve-:y sincerely, 

Enclosure. 

J. V. ESKENAZI, 
U.S. Attorney. 

CRIMINAL DIVISION STATEMENT ON FRAUD IN HEW's HOME HEALTH CARE FRAUD 
MATTERS 

In the past several years there have bee.t;I sign!ficant inc.reases in the numbers of 
investigations and prosecutions in connectIOn wIth fraud m health care programs. 
This increase is due to special efforts by both the F~I and the Inspector General C?f 
HEW. In his last report, the Inspector General advIsed that over 66 percent of hIS 
manpower is devoted to health care investigations. The Bureau reports a total of 
1,173 matters pertaining to. frauds committed against the Depart~1'lent o~ Health, 
Education, and Welfare durmg the first three quar~er~ of fi~cal 19l9, ending June 
30 1979. During that time frame a total of 152 conVICtIOns wIth such fraud matters 
w~s recorded by the FBI, consisting of 121 felony violations and 31 m~sdem~anC!rs. 
As of June 30, 1!l79, the Bureau. had a total of 793 such cases under investigatIOn 
with a pending status. . 

In 1976, the Senate Committee on Aging referred to .the Department ?f J~stIce 
allegations of fraud in the home health care program In North7rn Ca~hfor1l1a. A 
very difficult joint HEW IFBI investigation has resulted recently In a guIlty plea by 
the home heaJ.th care agency'~ ch~ef financial officet:' 'Yho ':Vas a forIl!-er ~mployee of 
the intermediary. That investIgatIOn and a second sUJ;ular Inve~tIgatIOn In the same 
jurisdiction are continuing. Prosecutive staff are being supplIed by bot~ the U.S. 
Attorney in the Northern District of California and the Fraud Section of the 
Criminal Division. . . 

For the past 2 years a second hOlLe health care investigation has been ongomg In 
the Southern District' of Florida. That investigation, staffed jointly by the USA's 
office and the Fraud Section is presently before a Federal ~and .jur~. In .additi?n, 
the U.S. Attorney in Miami is otaffing several other fraud inVestIgatIOns involVing 
home health care. These investigations are the result of referrals from the Inspector 
General of HEW. . . .' . 

These experiences have given the Department of Justice a varIety of inSIghts Into 
the home health care program structure, regulations and procedures. There sh~uld 
be no doubt that simply due to the very nature of the program-health car~ $erVICeS 
in the home-fraud investigations are very difficult. Further, due to the wIde scope 

I See statement, page 34. 
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of t~~ program, broadly wor~ed regulatiot;ls whi.ch ~re designed to insure program 
fleXIbIlIty make. the prosecutIOn of these InvestIgatlOns most difficult. Finally the 
~ey r~le o.f the Intermediaries in the administration of the program complicat~ the 
In vestiga tIOns. 

¥fe are unable at this time to speak specifically about the pending investigations 
whICh are largely the soUrce of our knowledge on the home health care program 
The Fraud Section of the Criminal Division has assigned four attorneys to thes~ 
cases an~ has made a broad commitment to the Inspector General of HEW so 
support hIS programs. 
. The. In~pector General of HEW is very familiar with the difficulties in these 
investigatIOns and the program weaknesses the investigations have revealed We 
would defer to his observations in this regard. . 

,T~e Cri~in~l Division is committed to the success of the HEW Inspector Gener­
al s mvestIgatIOn pro~rams; he~lt~. care and home he~lth. care fraud cases in partic­
ular, are one of our hIghest priorities. As Senator ChIles IS particularly aware GSA 
and Defense Department matters also require high prosecution attention ' 

At the concJusion of the investigatiC?ns presently staffed by the Fraud Section, the 
at.tox:neys aS~Igned wIll be made avaIlable to the staff of the committee to share 
withm permItted procedures, the results of the investigatictn. ' 

ITEM 5. LETTER AND ENCLOSURE FROM HON. SAM M. GIBBONS, CHAIR· 
MAN, SUBCOMMITTEE ON OVERSIGHT, COMMITTEE ON WAYS AND 
MEANS, U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES TO SENATOR LAWTON 
CHILES, DATED SEPTEMBER 6,1979 ' 

DE.AR SENATOR CHILES: I thank you for the invitation to participate in the field 
hearmgs. held by your Senate Special Committee ~m Aging on the administration of 
the medIcare home health program, held August 28 in Miami. Mr. Byron S. Gallo­
'Yay, the staff meIl!-ber on the Ways and Means Subcommittee on Oversight respon­
sIble for medIcare ~ssues, did attend and advised me about the hearing. 

At your suggestIOns, I have enclosed a statement of my views on the medicare 
home he!llth program for inclusion in the hearing record. It appears that we are in 
subs~a!ltIal . agr~ement on many of the changes needed to tighten up program 
admmistratIOn m home health and I hope we can work together in the futUre to 
make h?me health a better and more efficient program. 

Smcerely, 
SAM M. GIBBONS. 

Enclosure. 

STATEMENT ON THE MEDICARE HOME HEALTH PROGRAM BY CONGRESSMAN SAM M 
~~:BONS, CHAIRMAN, OVERSIGHT SUBCOMMITTEE, HOUSE WAYS AND MEANS COMMIT: 

The Oversight S~bcommittee has been involved in monitoring the medicare home 
health program. Since 1976. We .have been continually aware of the program's 
excellent potential. Because care IS provided in the familiar surroundings of one's 
own home, home health can represent a humane alternative to institutional care 
Becaus; room and bo~rd is not. involved, it can also be more cost effective. However; 
we ha\ e a,Iso seen thIS potential repeatedly undermined by certain providers. The 
program sI.mply does not need providers who seem more motivated by opportunism 
than altrUIsm, who play a cat and mOUEie game with the Government to see how 
much the program can yield in personal gain, and who have little or no motivation 
to ope.rate on a sou~d and efficient basis. I am pleased to share with you what the 
OversIght SubcommIttee has learned about how the program has been abused and 
what controls are !leeded. to counteract that abuse. My comments are being submit­
ted ~s my own VIews, smce we have not had an opportunity to hold oversight 
hearings on all of the issues I wish to discuss. 

At the outse~ let me commend this committee for its continuing efforts to improve 
~he care prOVIded to the elderly under medicare. Home health is of course an 
Important part of the medicare program. I've heard repeatedly fr~m constitu~nts 
how much they value the opportunity to receive needed care in the home setting 
Thus, I give. a hi~h priority to m~king sure that adequate and good quality hom~ 
health ?are IS avaIlable to all medICare beneficiaries. However, with present budget 
?onstra~nts .we m~st also make sure that medicare home health funds aren't wasted 
m f1;lndmg meffiCIe~t ~nd-w~at is worse-unscrupulous providers. That only robs 
the mtended benefiCiarIes and It robs the taxpayers. 
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Several Me~bers .of Congress have proposed liberalizing the medicare home 
heal~h benefit m varIOUS ways. I am sympathetic with this general intent but I am 
convmced that we must m~ve very cautiously in this direction. Not simply because 
o.f the .cos~s, b~t more partICular!y because of the abuse potential that Some of the 
hberalIzatIO~S mvolve .. I am afraId that some of the proposed liberalizations involve 
too great a ~Isk of fue!I~g abuse for us ~o be able to consider them at this time. We 
need to. realIze that l'lght now ~he medIcare home health program is wide open to 
abuse. We must, therefore, thmk through proposed liberalizations with a clear 
awar~ness of the dangers. At the same time, we must begin to attack the abuse that 
bedeVIls the program so that we can end the waste of our increasingly limited 
health resources. 

I wo.uld like to comment on the liberalizations that have been proposed' I will 
speak m support of s0!TIe and in opposition to others. However, before taking these 
up, I would lIke t? reVIew for you, m some detail, the reforms that I believe must be 
made to the medI~are, home health program right now, if we are to begin to get at 
~he abuse that eXIsts m t~e. pro~ra~. These re~orms fall into three areas: Changes 
m the standar~s for partrcipatIOr;t m the medIcare program; Changes in current 
home health reImbUrsement practrces; and controls on utilization. 

CHANGES IN THE STAN.DARDS FOR PARTICIPATION IN THE MEDICARE PROGRAM 

T~e first change .that is n~eded in the present standards for participation in the 
medIC~re program IS t9 reqUIre new home health agencies to obtain a certificate of 
need m .order to qualIfy. for medicare payments. Certain areas already have too 
many home health. agencle~. Parts of our home State of Florida are just such areas. 
The~e excess provlde~s drIve up what medicare must pay for home health care 
serVICes. Because medICare .pay~ cost, not price, the continual creation of more, ever 
smaller .home he~lth agencI.es gIVes us none of the advantages of competition and all 
of the dIseconomIes of mul~Iple, small operations. More and more overhead is spread 
over fewer and fewer patrents. The General Accounting Office tells us that the 
number ot: home ~ealth agencies continues to rise.! We need to prevent what has 
happened m ~~rtam parts of Florida from happening around the country. We can do 
t~IS by reqUll'lng that new home health agencies get a certificate of need from 
eIther the local HSA or HCFA. 

We m~st also.c~ange.presen~ stan~ards so that home health agencies will not be 
allo"Yed to p~rbclpate m. med~care If the agencies accept no patients other than 
medIcare elIgIbles and dlscontmue serving patients when their medicare benefits 
run out. I've already alluded to the problems and improper incentives that are 
create.d by the syst~m of cost reimbursement that medicare uses. However, for those 
agenCIes that. serVICe some n?nmedicare patients, these problems are lessened to 
sOl;ne extent, I.e., t~e non medICare portion of their business often depends on their 
bemg. able to prOVIde t?ervices at a certain price. In contrast, the medicare-only 
agenCIes, the so-c~lled 100 perce.nters," have almost a blank check from the Feder­
a.l Go,!,ernment, smce we pay baSIcally whatever their costs are. We should end this 
sItu~tIOn a~d ':Ve; should also act to assure an adequate supply of home health 
serVICes to mdlvlduals who either don't have or have exhausted medicare home 
heal~h cov~rage. Both. of these things can be done by not allowing medicare only 
pr?Vl~erS m .the medICare home health program. I was pleased to see that this 
prmciple, whICh wa~ added by the House Ways and Means Committee to H.R. 13097 
last year ha~ ~een mcluded I!l H.R. 3990. I think we need to strengthen H.R. 3990 
by also provI~mg that agenCIes must obtain specific, minimum levels of nonmedi­
care busmess m accordance with an established timetable. 

We also ne;ed to c?l!lnge; th~ stand~rds of participation to make sure that home 
health agenCIes partIclp~tmg m MedIcare are adequately capitalized. There are too 
many cases where agenCIes that owe the medicare program money simply go bank­hupt, hlodse up shop and the program ne~er collects. In the past, too many agencies 
ave a no money but the Government s. Very often, everything is leased and the 

~overhme?t makes the I?ayments. Eliminatin?, 100 percenters is a partial solution 
ut w at I~ also need~d ~s to g~t the sponsors own money involved so they have ~ 

real commItment and It IS not Just a paper corporation. Along these same lines we 
iliUStt ma~e sure ~hat HEW controls the amount of interest on agency indebted~ess 

a medl~are reImburses. Too many agencies pay back the Government for over-
bcharge~ WIth a loan the trust fund services. HCFA needs to carefully police agency .orrowmg. 
t Find ally, we mu~t assure good quality care by changing the medicare participation 

s ,an ards regardmg home health agency employees. The Oversight Subcommittee 

N 1 Ad dr~port by the' Comptroller General: "Home Health Service-Tighter Fiscal Controls ee e . 
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staff has found that some agen(~ies make contracts with separate entities in order ~o 
arrange for home health aide s(lrvices for th~ir patients. 'r'he staff has found th~t m 
these cases aides are generally not superVIsed by the agency nurses .as. medICare 
program ruies require. This has led to erratic quality and ~ breakdo.wn m .Important 
care related communication between the nurses and the aIdes. I thI~k thIS probl,;in 
is inherent in situations where an agency contracts out to prOVIde s?me of ItS 
services. We should change the participation rules so that agencies WhICh employ 
such contracts are denied particiloation in medicare unless the Secretary &rants a 
specific exemption. We also need to make s';1re that HEW .better supervI~es the 
qualifications of agency employees. The oversIght staff has dls~overed, o,ccasIOns of 
home health aides being given as little as 8 hOl.!-rs of "obse~vatIOn tram~ng:' before 
being sent out to render patient services on then' own. MedIcare benefiCiarIes need 
and deserve better care than this. HEW should be required to establish and enforce 
minimum standards for a participathng agency's training program. 

CHANGES IN CURRENT MEDICARE HOME HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT PRACTICES 

We also need changes in current medicare ho~e health reimb~rsement I?r.actices. 
First and most basically, we need to do somethmg about the hIgh .per VISIt ra~es 
that many home health providers are charging the trust funds. I thmk prospective 
reimbursement can help in this area. I generally support moving to a system of 
prospectively determined reimbl!rsement in our federally funded he~lth programs. 
More specifically however I thmk we should move toward prospectIve reImburse­
ment in the ho~e health' area as rapidly as possible. The home health provider 
should be told up front how much the Government will pay. I think this wiP aid the 
responsible providers and I think it will help control program costs. I mtend to 
explore with HEW how we can most productively start down the road to home 
health prospective reimbursement. 

But we must also do something right now to combat high home health costs. I had 
hoped that limits adopted p~rsuant to section 223 of the 197.2 amendments could 
help in this regard. I still think t~ey can, but I've. been very dI.st~essed by the great 
liberality of the limits HEW has Issued. I'm afraId the hIgh hmlts that have been 
proposed are going to start a gold rush, with the agencies that now h.ave moderate 
costs contracting the ripoff fever certain others have had. To stop thIS HEW must 
promulgate for general intermediary use, tough screens along the lines of those 
developed by its own Division of Direct Reimbursement. It also should go ahead, 
pursuant to section 223, with sublimits on specific items of cost, such as I?eneral 
overhead and administrative salaries, since these components of an agency s costs 
are particularly susceptible to abul>ive expansion. . 

In addition to taking these steps to hold down overall costs, attentIOn must also .be 
given to specific reimbursement areas that are persistent problems. The first .m­
volves the practice of some agencies to ~ontra?t out f<?r management or consultmg 
services. Some of these arrangements WIth thIrd parties have come about because 
franchisors have entered the home health services area. This is a problem we 
focused on in H.R. 13097 last year. The situation generally involves a management 
consulting firm that for its part promises advice on how to start and run a ho~e 
health agency, if the agency-to-be will pay x dollars up front and a percentage of ItS 
billings over the duration of a long term contract. Even though ~he promIsed 
assistance is seldom worth the amount negotiated, the agency owner IS told not to 
worry because no more will really be charged than the Government will pay, so 
long as the agency owner cooperates by trying to get all he can. . 

H.R. 13097 took the approach of giving the Secretary discretion to deny.medICare 
participation to providers who entered into contracts that were too eXpt3~lVe or too 
long term. This moves us in the right direction, but I think we need to st~engthen 
our approach by requiring HEW review of contracts with abuse po.tential on a 
prospective before-signing basis, by prohibiting management or consultmg contracts 
that deter~ine costs on a percentage of billings basis and by giving HEW access to 
the books of contractors so that HEW can correctly ascertain the val~e of rendered 
services. HEW's Inspector General agrees that access to such books IS necessary, to 
counteract abuse. Access to a contractors books and records can also help WIth 
another type of contract for management consulting services, the contract to. a 
related organization. The Oversight Subcommittee has observed a pattern of certam 
nonprofit home health agencies contracting for services with rel~ted, for-profit 
organizations. These situation~, of. course! have the danger. of bemg sweetheart 
contracts. While Congress prOVIded 111 PublIc Law 95-142 for dIsclosure of ownershIp 
interests there are more indirect types of relatedness that also can lead to abuse. 
Access tb books would permit detection of such indirect, but still significant rela­
tionship and would permit testing of compliance with existing disclosure rules. 

ii 
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HCFA also needs to improve its published guidelines on related organizations. These 
are the guidelines used by intermediaries in making reimbursement decisions, but 
the present guidelines are so vague and general that they do not really assist 
intermediaries, nor do they serve to guarantee uniformity of application. I have 
written to HEW on this and have made specific suggestions for improvement. 

Another specific reimbursement area that has been subject to abuse and needs 
congressional attention is provider attorney fees. Presently when a provider litigates 
with the Government over whether it was properly reimbursed, its legal fees are 
treated as a reimbursable cost. If the agency is a medicare only agency, then 
medicare is reimbursing 100 percent of the agency's legal fees. This is true no 
matter how many times the agency appeals, and whether the agency wins or loses. 
In addition, agencies often hire the very best and brighest and the most expensive. 
Several Florida agencies hire the same New York lawyer. He merely flies down as 
the need arises, the Government pays the bills. Congress should allow routine 
reimbursement of attorney's fees only through the administrative phase. If the 
agencx appeals to court, reimbursement should be allowed only if the agency 
prevaIls in significant part. Moreover, attorney's per hour charges and expenses 
should be limited to reasonable amounts with a fixed dollar ceiling on the total 
amount reimbursable. In cases where the Government is ~rosecuting someone for 
criminal fraud, medicare should not reimburse for attorney s fees at all. This is not 
an operating cost. Cumulatively, these changes would correct the present imbalance 
in this area. 

CONTROLS IN UTILIZATION 

New controls on utilization are also badly needed. This was another area where 
problems were recognized by provisions :in H.R. 13097. GAO's work for the Over­
sight Subcommittee has made clear that some agencies routinely give each patient 
the maximum number of visits that can ble passed off. Since present review is very 
limited and depends on the individual intermediary, in many places this means 
utilization is quite high. HCFA should bEl required to develop national utilization 
screens, as was called for in H.R. 13097. However, this should be backed up by 
required checks of patient medical recordEI as well as actual sample visits to agency 
patients. 

In addition we must stop wholesale patient solicitation by home health agencies. 
H.R. 13097 included and important step in this direction by prohibiting a physician 
from certifying a plan of home health treatment if the physician had an interest in 
the provider agency. It also called upon HEW to consider steps to end the control 
that certain home health agencies have over the discharge planning function of 
hospitals. I've instructed the staff of the Oversight Subcommittee to study whether 
some, very limited PSRO review might not help in this area. Some outside control 
seems necessary. At present there is nothing to stop very cozy, and thus very costly, 
relations between hospitals and home health agencies. 

I also believe consideration needs to be given to reinstituting copayments for 
home health care. Utilization is always a difficult problem in situations where the 
consumer of health care has no incentive to hold down the amount of care con­
sumed. Some very modest copayment could provide the patient and his family with 
some incentive not to accept excess care, without really amounting to a financial 
burden. To minimize the cumulative burden in serious, long-term cases, the copay­
ment could phase down- as the number of visits rose. In addition, if prospective 
budgeting for home health agencies were introduced it would be easy to provide a 
variable copayment that would require patients to pay more for services from the 
less efficient or abusive home health agencies that have high service costs. 

These are the reforms that I believe are necessary. Some of them were contained 
in H.R. 13097 last year and have been retained in H.R. 3990. 

As I've stated, reforms to prevent abuse must be given the highest priority. If we 
mandate such reforms, then I think we can consider certain modest liberalizations. 
Huwever, some of the liberalizations that have been proposed should be rejected as 
too dangerous and too potentially wasteful for adoption at the preseut time. 

First, the liberalizations that I support. I support removal of the three day prior 
hospitalization requirement for part A home health benefits.2 This requirement does 
not have a significant prophylactic justification presently, and thus can be eliminat­
ed. This would benefit certam people who there seems little reason to disadvantage 
now. 

I think we also can allow certain single service providers to enter the medicare 
home health program. In some nonmetropolitan areas, home health agencies pro-

. 2 Elimination of this requirement would, of course, be coupled with elimination of the require­
ment that treatment received by beneficiaries be related to their hospital or skilled nursing 
facility stay. 
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vide only a single skilled service. They cannot participate in medicare because they 
don't satisfy medicare's two service rule. If an agency of this type is the only home 
health agency in the area, then that area has no medicare home health services. I 
think we can change this without engendering abuse problems, and thus achieve 
greater medicare services in currently underserved areas. These agencies should 
still be required to provide a skilled service, but the Secretary should have discre­
tion to allow such non metropolitan agencies to participate in medicare even though 
it's only a single skilled service that they provide. 

These are the liberalizations I support. Other liberalizations have been proposed 
that I cannot support, as I am convinced that the program cannot afford them at 
this time. I am opposed to the elimination of the homebound requirement. If a 
medicare beneficiary can visit an ambulatory center, then there is no need to spend 
the additional money it takes to bring the care to that person. The homebound 
standard is a rough-and-ready one, but it's one that medicare patients understand 
and that can prevent abuse by utilization-prone pro.viders. 

I am opposed to elimination of the skilled care requirement. From an abuse point 
of view, this one is very dangerous. It plays right into the hands of those agencies 
that presently give 8-hour home health aide visits three times a week. If such aide 
visits no longer have to be related to the provision of skilled care, I'm afraid the lid 
will be entirely off. 

I am opposed to adding homemaker care services to medicare right now. If we're 
going to move in that direction, it should be through the merger of the various types 
of federally funded home care. To just add it to medicare without such a basic 
restructuring would merely create a disorganized and costly duplication of title XX 
services. 

I strongly oppose the above changes. Further, I also question the advisability of 
eliminating the twin part A and B 100 visit limits. At the old-time home health 
agencies we've examined, there is generally no problem providing medicare benefi­
ciaries with fully adequate care within these limits. However, at some of the new, 
fast-buck agencies that have entered the program in recent years, the limits are 
often hit for types of cases that traditionally have not required high utilization. At 
the same time, I'm very sympathetic to the fact that there may be occasional cases 
that really need more than 200 visits. Perhaps we should establish a lifetime reserve 
pool of extra visits that a beneficiary could draw from in exceptional circumsta.nces. 
However, I am very reluctant to drop the basic, annual limits given the enfeebled 
status of existiug mechanisms to control home health utilization. 
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Appendix 2 

CODE OF ETHICS OF THE FLORIDA ASSOCIATION OF 
~OME HEALTH AGENCIES, INC.l 

PREFACE 

The code of ethics is administered by the ethics committee, which is elected by the 
general membership upon nomination by the nominating committee. It is composed 
of five members, one from each region in the State of Florida. 

The ethics committee shall: 
Create the initial code of ethics and standards of practice. 
Create the procedures for disciplinary action. 
Establish such further responsibilities as it deems proper for approval by the 

general membership. 
The ethics committee creates and invokes the code of ethics under authority of 

the F AHHA by-laws, article II, membership, section 3.e, which states: 
Membership shall be cancelled by a two-thirds vote of the entire membership 

for conduct detrimental to the association in accordance with applicable law 
and after an opportunity for a full and fail' hearing. 

PREAMBLE 

The most serious responsibility inherent in membership in the Florida Associ­
ation of Home Health Agencies is that the members adhere to and comply with the 
highest ethical code of behavior in all personal and business conduct. For any 
member to do less is not only to place in jeopardy his own integrity and business 
operation; bu.t, also that belonging to all his fellow association members. 

The fvregomg demands that each and every member of the Florida Association of 
Home Health Agencies continuously maintain self-surveillance that will identify 
potential!y upethical behavior and self-discipline that will el~minate the possibility 
of eng:agmg m any such conduct. It further demands that, If and when unethical 
behaVIor does occur, each member be prepared to take whatever action is necessary 
to eliminate the continuation of this behavior. 

The. FAHHA code of ethics is designed to minimize the opportunity for unethical 
behaVIOr by: 

Creating broad guidelines which establish a fixed base of ethical conduct. 
Establishing certain specific acts which are considered unethical' ' 
Applying these guidelines and restricted acts to individual ~embers on a 

case-oy-case basis; and 
Holding a9countable for u~eth~cal behavi~r the top-level management of the 

member agamst whom a merItorIOus complamt has been unfavorably adjudicat­
ed. 

No me,mber,. regardless o~ any positioI?- held in FAHHA, is above this codl~. 
Mt;mb~rs . dealmgs, whe~het: mternal. or WIth one another, or with the multiplicity 
of mstltutIOns and agenCIes mvolved m home health care, are subject to being tested 
against the standards created in this code. 

THE ETHICAL STANDARDS OF PRACTICE 

I. GENERAL PRINCIPLES 

l(a) Members shall pl~ce first loyalty to the patients whom they serve. 
(~) Purpose.-The patIent's welfare must be the primary motivation ~n our work. 

ThIS means, for example, that (i) We strive to create an environment that is 
conducive to a speedy recovery and individually tailored to the needs of each 

I Submitted by Judith M. Travis, whose statement appears on page 44. 
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patient· (ii) We acknowledge and respect the social practices, cultural herita~e and 
religio~s beliefs of each patient; (iii) We respect, at all pimes, the. patient's rIght to 
c(,nfidentiality in com~unication and medical r.ec·ords; (IV) .We st~Ive to develop and 
maintain health-care mdependence of the patIent and hIS famIly to the greatest 
extent possible. . 

2(a) Members shall promote and support cooperation among all health prOVIders 
and community agencies in the locality. .. 

(b) Purpose.-As home health providers, we are a segmen.t .of an. mdustry WhIC~ 
must concern itself with the overall health status of all the CItIzens m the commUl1l­
ty. This concern can only be realized in a tangible manner if the various providers 
and community agencies aid one another in patient assessment, transfer and treat-
ment. 'I d I' • Itt 3(a) Any report or communication to the publIc shall accurate y an lair y s a e 
the facts relevant to the message conveyed. The member's public image shall reflect 
what in fact is the member's position. . 

(b) Purpose.-Public relations communications which are untrue. or susce'p~Ibl~ to 
being declared "inoperative" at some future date are self-destructIve and InJurIOUS 
to the home health care pr?gram. All public utt~ranc~s ~ust mer. it the public's 
confidence. 'rhus, disseminatIon of false and/or misleadmg .mformatIOn by a. home 
health agency regarding another agency or health care prOVIder must be conSIdered 
an unethical practice. .. . 

4(a) Members shall, in sum, exercise fairness, honesty and impartialIty m all 
professional activities and relat:ionships. 

II. SPECIFIC ACTS 

A. Internal Affairs 
l(a) Members shall not compromise the home ?-ealth care c~ncept .by. payment to 

anyone that unjustifiably exceeds the compensatIOn l~vels be~md. paId m the. mem­
ber's geographical area or by the ~eE!sonabl.e medICare gUIde.lmes wh~n I~s~ed, 
various institutions to employees of SImIlar skIlls and/or whose Jobs reqUIre SImIlar 
effort and/or responsibility. . .. 

(b) Purpose.-(i) Excessively 111gh levels of compensatIOn are unfaIr to the home 
health program because it derives costs up; (ii) this. in turn is unfE!ir to the patie~t 
because the public comes to scorn the program WhICh eventuates m the p!'ogram s 
curtailment or perhaps, its abolishment; (iii) it is unfair to :all other health providers 
in the area because it drains off the skilled and/or tramed personnel pool they 
spent years developing. 

2(a) Members shall deliver the appropriate level of care at the appropriate fre­
quency-thus avoiding both overutilization and underutilization. 

(b) Purpose.-(i) Over utilization results in promoting t~e dependence. of the .pa­
tient and/or family on the agency and, further, exhausts m a short perIOd of tune 
the coverage benefi.ts of the patient, and this is to be avoided for the reasons cited 
above at 1(b), and (i); {ii) underutilization is unfair to the patient since he has the 
right to receive the full degree of medical care available to him under the program 
by virtue of which he receives treatment. To do less is to place institutional loyalty 
over patient loyalty. . 

3(a) Members shall maintain at all times adequate staffing, properly and ~ontmu­
ously trained and supervised, to meet the reasonable needs of aU the patIents to 
whom they render care. . 

(b) Purpose.-Each member's reputation is built primarily on the conduct of ItS 
staff. A deficient staff, whf~ther in quantity or quality, reflects poorly on the 
member itself directly and 011 all its fellow association members indirectly. . 

4(e) Members shall comply with all o~fici~l aI?plicable laws, rules and regulatIOI?-s, 
(b) Purpose.-Each member's reputatIOn IS dIrectly. and. advers~ly affected by ~ts 

failure to adhere strictly to relevant governmental dIrectives. ThIS conduct, agam, 
indirectly affects adversely the reputation of its fellow members. 

5(a) Members shall not interfere with the operation of any other member agency 
by acts such as libel, slander, including employees to breach existing contracts, shall 
be subject to censure. 

(b) Purpose.-Top-level managemet\t must be entrusted with a myriad of confiden­
tial information, the divulgence of Which to a IIfriendly" competitor would unfairly 
and adversely affect the original employer. Thus, a contract designed to reasona~ly 
curtail the divulgence of this information should be honored by the membershIp. 

6(a) Members shall not pay expenses for agency personnel for travel and enter­
tainment that exceed the reasonable norm. 

(b) PUl'pose.-See section 1, b, (i) and (ii) supra. 
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7(a) No member shall, directly or indirectly, pay entertainment expenses on a 
regular and/or customary basis to or on behalf of any individual who is not a bona 
fide member of the agency's own personnel with the object of receiving preferential 
treatment and patient referrals. 

(b) Purpose.-It is not in keeping with the philosophy of a nonprofit hl)me health 
agency to incur andlor pay these entertainment e!<penses for nonagency personnel. 

B. External Relationships 
l(a) Members shall not engage in any course of conduct which involves interfer­

ence or intrusion in the operation or affairs of any other agency so as to give it an 
unfair trade advantage or cause injury to such other agency; nor, shall any member 
engage in payment of any bribe, favor, inducement, p, thing or value to any person 
engaged in health care the purpose or effect of wr" •. Jh is to recieve referrals of 
patients; nor, shall any member obtain or seek to obtain any patient information 
from allY health provider except in the normal course of business and shall further 
maintain the confidentiality of any patient information obtained. 

(b) Purpc:r;:;3.-Conflict of interest arises whenever the individua.Linvolved in the 
decisionmakjx~g process is faced with two or more contradictory loyalties. Such a 
situation is unfair to ther persons or institutions to whom the decisionmaker owes 
conflicting loyalties as well as unfair to the decisionmaker himself. In the health 
field such conflicts are even more unacceptable than is the case in other business 
since the patient inevitably suffers. The patient depends upon and is owed complete 
loyalty by the health provider charged with his care. 

(c) Examples.-Specifically, conflicts of interest actually or potentially arise when 
a member: 

(n Pays compensation, in any form, to any social service or worker or discharge 
planner employed by a hospital, nursing home or state agency whether in an 
employment, contractual or consultant relationship to the member. 

(ii) Involves a social service worker or discharge planner employed by a hospital, 
nursing home or state agency in the affairs of the member's business such as 
making said worker or planner a member of the member's Advisory Board even if 
no compensation is paid. 

Exceptions.-Sections (i) and (ii) above do not preclude the use of any such worker 
or planner for an in-service to the member's personnel so long as there is no 
regularity to such use, the frequency of such use does not exceed more than one 
such in-service in 4 months, and the fee paid is that regularly and customarily paid 
to othl3r in-service instructors. 

In those geographical areas where qualified personnel are in short supply, sec­
tions 1) and ii) above shall not apply. 

(iii) Attempts to obtain and/or willingly receives business information about any 
other member from a common supplier. ' 

(iv) Without disclosures as set forth below, contracts w;ith, pays monies or grants 
anything of value to, or accepts gifts and/or services from any other business 
organization with and/or in whom the member's owners and/or top management 
personnel have a pecuniary interest. Such contracting, paying granting and/or 
accepting shall be dont! only after the member divulges said pecuniary interest to 
the ethics committee which shall file said information and make some available to 
any member who requests it. 

(v) Receives information regarding patient admissions and/or discharges from 
therapists and/or other staff members of a hospital, nursing home, clinic and/or 
other health provider who are also employed by or under contract to the member 
agency. Divulgence and acceptance of such information is contrary to the principle 
of confidentiality of patient information, constitutes an unfair competitive practice 
and is unethical. 

(vi) Visits patients in hospitals or nursing homes to solicit referrals to provide 
home health services on discharge with or without given or implied consent of 
administr"itive or other facility personnel. Visitation to such patients must be 
restricted to: (1) V~sits made to a former patient of said agency; (2) visits made to 
provide predischarge planning for an individual patient on whom the agency has 
already received a physician's or social worker's or discharge planner's referr·al. for 
home health care. 

(vii) Visits andlor opens a patient record on a patient with knowledge that the 
patient has been referred tD or is being seen by another home health agency. 

2(a). Members~~all, at all times,' show respect and act temperately in their 
dealings "with their'lellow members. 

(b) Purpose.-The Association shall bl.. effective and worthwhile only to the extent 
each and every member cooperates one with another. Spreading gossip and arbitrar-
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ily refusing reasonable committee requests are actions which are unethical and self-
destructive. I . th' 

3(a) Members shall, at all times, show respect and act teI?perate y I:t,1 ~Ir 
dealings with the leadership of the Association and the leadershIp shall do lIkeWIse 
in dealing with the members. 

(b) Purpose.-See section 2(b), supra. 
4(a) Members shall promptly pay all monies owed the Association and. they shall 

participate to the fullest extent possible, in a generou~ sJ?irit, when assIgned andl 
or/voluntarily undertake to perform tasks for the ASSOCIatIOn. . . 

(b) Purpose.-The Association is simply a collection. of Ihemb~rs who have J?med 
together f·;r a common goal. Each member must contrIbute momes a~d tale~t If the 
Association is to succeed. It is not fair to those m~mbers who do contrIbute, If others 
get the benefits of their efforts and yet pay no prIce. . . 

5(a) Members who have ethical complaints about other indlvldm s shall adhere 
strictly to the complaint adjustment procedure.. . . 

(b) Purpose.-Ethical c;:ornplaints must b7 resolv7d m an effiCIe~t an~ faIr method. 
Complaining about another member's ethICS out~Ide the complamt adjustment pro-
cedure parameters is destructive and nonproductIve. . 

6(a) Members shall not provide unnecessary andlor non ordered durable medICal 
equipment. .. 

(b) Purpose.-See section (A), (1), (b), (i), and (n), above. 

III. DISCLOSURE 

The name and addresses of the member's owner, board of directors, excecutive 
officers, and resident agent shall be filed with the ethics committee and kept 
current. 

IV. REPRISALS 

Members shall not take reprisals against, :t,1or advers~ly aff~ct in any manner, 
anyone who files a complai:t,1t un.der the ethICS c?mplamt adjustment procedu:e. 

Purpose.-'rhe code of ethICS wIll only be effectIve to t?-e exten~ that pot~ntIal 
complainants know they are protected by the code of ethICS. ReprIsals are SImply 
intolerable. 

v. DISTRIBUTION 

A copy of the code of ethics must be placed in the a&,ency's policy manual and 
made available to all agency personnel at all reasonable tImes. 

ETHICS COMPLAINT ADJUSTMENT PROCEDURE 

1. THE COMPLAINT 

(1) To be processed it must: 
(A) Be in writing, signed and sworn to; . 
(B) Specifically allege and/actually. support ~he unethical conduct cha;rge; 
(C) Be filed with the regIOnal ethICS commIttee member (RECM) w~th seven ('!) 

copies of it and supporting documentatioI?-, if any. ~ the pers~m comp~amed about IS 
the RECM the complaint shall be filed WIth the ethICS commIttee chaIrman. , . 

(2) Processing of the complamt: . . . . . 
(A) The RECM, after receipt of a valId complamt, s?-all wlthm fiv~ (5) days. 
(i) Forward copies of the complaint and any supportmg documentatIOn to the 

other six members of the ethics committee; . 
(ii) Forward by certified mail, return receipt, a copy of the complemt and any 

supporting do~umentation, with the complainant's name deleted, to the respondent 
agency's administrator or executive director. . 

(B) If the RECM initially determines that the. compla~nt and supportmg ~oc!1-
ments lack the required specificity or any otherw~se defiCIent, RECM .shall, Wlthm 
three (3) working days, return the original complaI~t and ~ny supp~rtmg documen­
tation along with the seven copies to the com pi amant Wlti} a wrItten statement 
setting forth the deficiencies. In this event, no further actIOn shall be taken by 
RECM until: ., t d 'th' 

(i) The complainant refiles all the papers with the defiCIenCIes correc e WI m 
twenty (20) days; or . . .. 

(ii) The complainant successfully appeals to the full ethICS commltte~ by I!lalhng, 
within three (3) working days of receipt from the RECM, the complamt WIth at,y 
supporting documentation and the RECM's ~eficiency n.otice to e~ch member of ~ht­
ethics committee requesting that the commIttee find hIS cOlnplamt and supportmg 
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documentation sufficient to be ,.~rocessed, and the committee, by majority vote, 
agrees with the complainant. 

II. THE RESPONSE TO THE COMPLAINT 

(1) To be processed it must: 
(A) Be in writing, signed and sworn to;. . .. 
(B) Specifically deny each factual allegatlOn, If untrue, and specIfic allegatIOns not 

denied shall be thereby deemed to be admitted as true (general denials are not 
accepted); 

(C) Be filed with RECM with seven (7) copies of it and ~ny supporting documeD;ta­
tion within twenty (20) days of receipt of the complaint and any supportmg 
documentation. 

(2) Processing the response: 
(A) The RECM after receipt of a valid response, shall, within five (5) days: 
(i) Forward copi~s of the response and any supporting documentation to the other 

six members of the ethics committee; 
(ii) Forward, by certified mail, return receipt, a copy of the response and any 

supporting documentation to the complainant. 

III. NOTICE TO PROCEED 

Within five (5) working days of the receipt of the response papers, the complain­
ant must notify the RECM in writing that he wishes to proceed with the charges. 
Failure to file timely this notice to proceed will result in the complaint being 
dismissed by the RECM. 

IV. INFORMAL CONCILIATION STAGE OF PROCEEDINGS 

(1) Within five (5) days after the RECM receives the notice to proceed, the RECM 
shall notify the respondent of the complainant's name and arrange for the com­
plainant and respondent to meet informally with the RECM for an informal con­
ciliation conference. 

(2) The conciliation conference shall be held within twenty (20) days after receipt 
by the RECM of the Notice to Proceed. Only the parties and the RECM shall attend 
this conference, unless these participants all agree to invite any other individuals, 
and nothing said or submitted for consideration by any participant may be used as 
evidence in any subsequent proceeding. The conference may be adjourned from time 
to time, but it must be concluded within seventy-five (75) days from the date the 
RECM received the notice to proceed. 

(3) Within ten (10) working days after the conclusion of the conference, the RECM 
shall prepare and mail to all members of the et~ics committee and to the two 
parties 'a written report which states the following: 

(A) The conference was successful in that: 
(i) The complainant agreed to drop the charges; or 
(ii) The respondent, witbout admitting guilt, agreed to acceptably modify his 

practices, conduct, etc., in the following particulars (specified); or 
(iii) The complainant dropped some charges (specified) and the respondent agreed, 

without admitting guilt, to acceptably modify his practices, conduct, etc., with 
respect to the remaining charges; or 

(B) The conference was unsuccessful and formal proceedings should be initiated; 
or 

(C) The conference was unsuccessful because the complainant was unreasonable 
in his position and the RECM recommends the compromise offered by the respond­
ent, which is set forth in the report, be accepted by the committee in spite of the 
complainant's failure to agree to the settlement. The committee, by majority vote, 
can accept, within ten (10) days, the RECM's recommendation and after notifying 
the complainant of its action, within five (5) days, the case will be closed; provided, 
however, the complainant can send to the committee members his written objec­
tions to the settlement within ten (10) days of recept of the notice of the committee's 
acceptance, and the committee may, within ten (10) days after receipt of these 
objections reopen the case' and so notify the parties. 

V. THE FORMAL STAGE OF THE PROCEEDINGS 

Up to this point all action taken shall be handled in strictest confidence by the 
parties and the committee. 

(1) If the RECM conference report states the conference was unsuccessful and 
formal proceedings should be instituted, or if the case is reopened after the com-
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pla~nant's obje\:tions to a settlement are reviewed, a notice of hearing shall be 
ma~led by regular mail to the members of the ethics committee and by certified 
mall, return receipt, to the parties by the RECM within ten (10) days after the 
conference report is sent to the members and parties or within ten (10) days after 
the committee notifies the parties the case has been reopened, whichever be the 
case. 

(A) This notice of hearing shall: 
(1) Establish a date for the hearing which shall be no sooner than twenty-five (25) 

days nor more than forty-five (45) days from the date of the notice' 
(2) Establish a time for the hearing to start; , 
(3) Establish a place within the respondent's region where the hearing will be 

held; and 
(4) Inform the respondent of his right to be represented by counsel, to present oral 

and written evidence, to confront and cross-examine witnesses, to present argument 
and file briefs. 

.(2) The hearing shall b~ held .before the ethics committee. If any interested party 
WIshes to file a posthearmg brief, he shall state so at the end of the hearing and 
send a copy of E.dme to each member of the ethics committee within twenty-five (25) 
days after the hearing concludes. Within twenty-five (25) days after the hearing 
co~cludes, or, in the eve.nt briefs are .filed, ~ithin twenty-five (25) days after the 
brief due date,. the commIttee shall mall, certified, return receipt, to the parties and 
Py regular mall ~o the board of ~irectors, a detailed report of the proceedings with 
Its recommendatIOns. The commIttee may recommend various degrees of punish­
m.ent, such as ~uspension for a time certain, the filing of periodic progress reports 
WIth the commIttee, and the like up to and includlng expulsion. Within twenty-five 
(25) days after receipt o.f the hearing report and recommendations, any party may 
send to the ~oard of dIrectors a statement in support of or in opposition to the 
recommendatIOns. 

(3) Within fifty (50) days after receipt of the hearing report, the board shall issue 
its decision accepting, modifying, or denying the ethics committee's recommenda­
tions, The board will notify the proper governmental authorities in those cases it 
deems this action appropr~ate. In all cases, except expulsion, its decision shall" be 
final. .In the case of expulSIOn, the .board shall present a resolution of expulsion for 
adoptlOn by the general membershIp at the next membership meeting. The decision 
of the membership shall be final in expUlsion cases, 

VI. EFFECTIVE DATE AND STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS 

This code shall be effective as of September 20, 1975. Acts complained about must 
have occurred at least sixty (60) days after the effective date of this code, but not 
more than two (2) years prior to the date the complaint is filed. 

. BE IT KNOWN ~hat on ~hi~, the 20th day of September, 1975, the board of 
dIrectors of the Flo:lda AssoClatI?n of Home He~lth Agen~ies, Inc., approved, adopt­
ed and endorsed tIns code ~f ~thICs and the ethICS complamt adjustment procedure. 

BE IT KNOWN that on ~hIS, the 7th day of May, 1976, the board of directors of 
the Florida Association of Home Health Agencies, Inc., approved, adopted and 
endorsed the amendments. 
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Appendix 3 

STATEMENTS SUBMITTED BY THE HEARING AUDIENCE 

During the course of the hearing, a form was made available by 
the committee to those attending who wished to make suggestions 
and recommendations but were unable to testify because of time 
limitations. The form read as follows: 

DEAR SENATOR CHILES: If there had been time for everyone to speak at the 
hearing on "Abuse of the Medicare Home Health Program," in Miami, Fla., on 
August 28, 1979, I would have said: 

The following replies were received: 

P. A. HEWETT, JACKSONVILLE, FLA. 

Credit for public awareness for home health services available must go to those 
people who have worked so hard during the past 5 years. The large majority of 
these agency officials are simply earning a salary while providing quality patient 
care. I see nothing wrong with this. 

PAUL MASS, FLORIDA HOME HEALTH SERVICES, INC., MIAMI, FLA. 

(1) Yes, there are abuses, but I feel that they must be proven. Don't penalize a 
good industry for the abuse of some; some of which I could name. 

(2) If abuse or fraud cannot be proven in a court of law, then get off our backs and 
expand home health coverage. 

(3) I can cite more abuse and malfeasance from H.E.W. officials which is worse 
than what the agencies commit. 

(4) No clear regulations have ever been enacted; morever, the providers can write 
better regulations that H.C.F.A. 

(5) H.C.F.A.'s response to throw the baby out of the tub because there is some 
dirty water, is not the way to go. For example, an order to retroactively thl'uW out 
coordinatOi."s salaries will not stick up in court. The approach should be clear and 
concise regulations; nOI,; the vagueness of intermediary letter 78-16. 

(6) Eliminating coordinators will not guarantee that hospitals will properly do 
discharge planning into the nursing home or home health. Home health is noninsti­
tutional and; therefore, hospital people need to be educated. Who would pay for 
this?-Answer, H.E.W. 

(7) I can show where a system of payoffs would be generated without coordinators. 
(8) Closing down 100 perc enters is unrealistic. We are contractors of services just 

like thousands of services provided to the Federal Government. Since most people 
who need home health care are medicare patients, why not allow us to contract for 
this service. 

(9) Forcing agencies to close because BIue Cr.oss of Florida received "marching 
orders" from H.C.F.A. will force the Government into defending many cases of 
"abandonment" which will be a national scandal. 

(10) When, in the name of reason, will you get together with the providers and 
write title 21, a separate program for home health care? 

(11) HCFA's lunacy on cost caps and USHHAR are shining examples of abuse that 
is greater than any committed by a home health agency. That abuse is public 
irresponsibility. 

(12) If you go after 100 percenters, what about hospitals that are 92 percent, 71 
percent, etc.; and what about. the dollars that are poured out and the abuses of both 
hospitals and M.D.'s? 
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(13) Wh~t happens if home health is wiped out? The first day back into a hospital 
costs medIcare $900 per day. Home health agencies could make 25 visits for that 
amount, or less. 

(14) ,~enator C~iles, if you recall several years ago, BIue Cross had "marchin 
orders from regIOn IV to cut down on covered services such as home health aide; 
After much agony an.d tremendo~s costs, BIue Cross was forced to admit that they 
ffr~ wrong and revIsed the polIcy. The point that I am making is that HCF A 
o ~clals cannot go off on thei;r own, but I?,;!st work within existing regulations. 
FfafiIl,;!rle ;0 do ISO may result m a large cIvIl and criminal action against those 
o lCia s lor rna feasance. 

As. aD: attorn~y, you are well aware that we are a Nation of laws and not of men 
A prmclple whlC~ I feel ~he Congress understands, as well as, the courts. . 

(15) .Not meanmg to mtroduce a "red herring" I would like to brin to our 
~t~entI.on the fact .that HEW is funding HMO's. I predict that within 5 y~ars Bme 
thIS WIll be ~ natIOnal scandal, far exceeding nursing homes hospitals and hom~ 
realthf agenciles. HEW n?t only rays administrative salaries, 'but pays for solicita-
Ion 0 peop e to ~n;roll I~ HMO~. Who pays for the selling costs? Answer, HEW 

Who pays for admID:lstratIve sal~rles, cars, trips, etc.? Answer, HEW. . 
T.I cal~your. attentIOn ~o an article which appeared in a late August 1979, issue of 

Ime a&,~zme regardmg the colleges abusing grant funds from HEW without 
accountabIlIty. 
th (\6h I aga\n invite yo';! or members of your staff to spend time in a large agency 
Tha .;8 me every audIt thrown our way. Come see what we do and how we do it 

e 1 IOCy of redtape and how, if an agency wants to can a'buse the 1'0 ram' 
b ~r) Dr. Roger Egeberg, Special Assistant of HEW, said'to us that 've artn01 any 

e er or any worse than the population as a whole. 'rherefore I' reiterate find 
those people who. abuse the pr~gr~m and clean it up and don't p~nalize thos~ who 
are not, who are m the vast maJol'lty. 

MARY FAY VERVILLE, R.N., GOLD COf.i!L'f HOME HEALTH SERVICES, POMPANO 
BEACH, FLA. 

I would ha,:e aweed witJ: those speakers who encouraged prospective denial of 
abused' The.g;Uldelmes as Written are up for grabs on interpretation-they should be 
more efimtIve. 
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